
71,10 
5'3 Jo 

; 9fLfe_ . 
PUBLIC HEARING 

before 

ASSEMBLY IHiISIATIVE CJJEBSIGBT COIMITME 

on 

~ IN 'ItiE DIVISIOO CF YOOTH AND FAMILY SERVICES 

Held: 
October 22 and 23, 1984 
Room 346 
State House Annex 
Trenton, New Jersey 

MFJl:3ERi OF COIMITJEE PRESENr: 
Assemblyman William E. Flynn, Chairman 
Assemblyman Thomas P. Poy, Viqe Chairman 
Assemblyman Anthony s. Marsella 
Assemblyman Richard A. Zirnner 
Assemblyman Harold L. Colburn, Jr. 
Assemblyman John T. Hendri~son, Jr. 

AUD PRESENI': 

Assemblywoman Marlene Lynch Ford 

Steven B. Frakt, Senior Research Associate 
Office of Legislative Services 
Aide, Assembly Legislative oversight Comnittee 

* * * * * * * 

PROPERTY OF 
NEW JERSEY STATE LIBRARY 

-·1 

AUG 2021 

185 W. STATE ST. PO BOX 520 
TRENTON NJ 08625-052a-

• 





George J. Albanese 
Commissioner 
Department of Human Services 

Thomas Blatner 
Director 
Division of Youth and Family Services Management Team 

Steve Rosenthal 
National Representative 
Communication workers of America 

Jim Gallagher 
President 
Corrmunication Workers of America, Local 1039 

Betty Wilson 
President 
Center for Non-Profit Corporations 

Catherine A. DeCheser 
Executive Director 
Coomunity Planning and 'Advocacy Council 
The Human Services Coalition of Canrlen Council 

Ciro A. Scalera 
Executive Director 

2 

8 

39 

39 

42 

45 

Association for Children of New Jersey 51 

Mary Wells 
Executive Director of Family Service of Burlington County 
Convener of the Southern Regional Council of Human Services 
Chair of the N.A.s.w. Task Force on Families and Children 54 

OVEitiIGHT RECESS 

Janet Cahill, Ph.D. 
Department of Psychology 
Glassboro State College 

Lauren Anderson 
Staff Counsel 
Children's Rights Project 
American Civil Liberties Union 
New York, New York 

PROPERTY OF 
NE~ERSJ::Y STATE !J~ftARY 

AUG 2021 

185 W. STATE ST. PO BOX 520 
TRENTO~ NJ Ot\f32P:-tr:'.:,n ! 

. ·~ ·"'" ·- ., ... _,_," -.,,,. - . , .. , 

58 

73 



TABLE OF CXNiml'S (continued) 

Larry J. Lockhart 
Special Assistant to Conmissioner 

Department of Hwnan Services 

Ed Sabol 
Staff Representative of Local 1039 

Communication workers of America 

Andrea Shorter 
Employee 
Division of Youth and Family Services 

Paul Schiff 
Employee 
Division of Youth and Family Services 

Joseph Walsh 
Employee 
Division of Youth and Family Services 

Delores McDyer 
Employee 
Division of Youth and Family Services 

David J. Harris 
Administrator 
Greater New Brunswick Day Care Council 

Theodore H. Freeman 
President 
State Council of Urban Leagues 

AP.PtalIX 

Statement submitted by 
Betty Wilson 
Center for Non-Profit Corporations 

Statement submitted by 
Ciro A. Scalera 
Association for Children ot New Jersey 

Statement submitted by 
Mary wells 
Family Service of Burlington County 

90 

93 

100 

110 

120 

127 

134 

136 

lx 

3x 

8x 



TABIE OF a:BJENTS (continued) 

Statement submitted by 

Lauren Anderson 
American Civil Liberties Union 

statement submitted by 

Marina A. Padovani 
Puerto Rican Congress of New Jersey 

Statement submitted by 
Jose A. Morales 
Puerto Rican Corranunity Education 
and Economic Develo.f('OOnt, Inc. 

Statement submitted by 
Hugh Kilmer 
Concerned Citizen 

Statement submitted by 
Joan M. Wright 
Division on wanen 
New Jersey Depart:Inent of Conmunity Affairs 

Statement submitted by 
Dell Raudelunas 
State Human Services Advisory Council 

Letter and statement submitted by 
Lydia J. Valencia 
Hispanic Association of Ocean County 

Statement subinitted by 
tvlia Anderson 
New Jersey Congress of Parents and Teachers 

Statement submitted by 
June K. Weaver 
New Jersey Coalition for Battered Wolnen 

Statement submitted by 

Beverly Gilbert 
Atlantic County Women's Center 

Statement submitted by 
Association for Advancement of the 
Mentally Handicapped 

* * * * * * * 
my: 1-39 
jb: 40-57; 91-119 
mjz: 58-90 
tm: 120-137 

11x 

18x 

24x 

27x 

30x 

33x 

38x 

42x 

45x 

48x 

50x 





ASSBMBLY.MAN WIILIM E. FLYNN (Chairman): I would like to 

apologize to the members of the public who are here. The legislative 

conferences are running late today and a lot of our members are just 

getting here now. Several of them have other committee meetings so 

they may have to leave early as well. 

The proceedings are going to be recorded. Transcripts will 

be available at a reasonable cost to those who would like one. 

Basically, the focus of the meeting is to hear testimony concerning 

caseworkers' loads in the Division of Youth and Family Services ana 

testimony regarding related management concerns -- how they interface 

with each other. 

We have a number of witnesses who have requested to testify. 

The time is not nearly going to be sufficient because we have to break 

at approximately 4:00 p.m. when the Legislature will go back in 

session. We will be meeting again tonnrr0iv at 10: 30 a.m. 'l'omorrow' s 

session is also well subcribed with people who want to testify, so I 

don't want to promise anyone who is on the list today that he will be 

necessarily reached tOirorrow. We will have to do as mud1 as we can as 

time allows. we will request that anyone who has a prepared statement 

and doesn't get a chance to speak today or tarorrow to give it to our 

staff so that the tull committee can review the statements ana it can 

be made a part of our appendix. 

Assemblyman Marsella, Assemblyman Foy, Assemblyman Colburn, 

and I are here. Assemblyman Zimmer has been in and out; he has another 

CX>lTllnittee that he is trying to keep tabs on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes . 

.ASSEMBLYMAN r'OY: I have a oill coming up in the Laoor 

Committee. I am going to run downstairs briefly for it; I' 11 be back 

up, hopefully for the bulk of the testirrony. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r,LYNN: What you can do is, what testimony you 

don't hear, you can review the transcript and listen to it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FUY: All right. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Without too much further ado, I would 

like to call on, I suppose, the person who is the rrost knowledgeable 
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about the concerns the Legislature has, and that would be the Commissioner, George J. Albanese. 
Commissioner, I note that you do have prepared remarks, and I don't kno,., if you want to read the whole 18 pages or it you would like to excerpt from them. I will leave that to your a,.,n good judgment. 

<XJ4MISSICNER GEOKiE J. AI..BANESE: I think because of the importance, I would liKe to go through the entire testimony. We touch on many areas and I think they are important enough to give it that attention. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Fine. 
COMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: Chainnan Flynn and members of the oversight Committee, I thank you for the opportunity to testify today. 
I want to start by citing N.J.S.A. 9:6-8.16 of our New Jersey Statutes on child abuse, cruelty, and neglect: 
"The Division of Youth and Family Services shall, upon receipt of such report, take action to insure the safety of the child ••• and shall investigate the circumstances under whid1 the child was injured and may, after such investigation has been completed, apply for a court order placing the child under its care anct supervision." 

This is State law. It spells out what a DYFS worker can and cannot do. But how can a DYFS worker act, if they are not told of a suspected case of d'lild abuse? 
Let's take the case of "Shawn." Can any ot us forget Shawn? His short life was one long episode of brutality, violence, and neglect. His pain ended only when his life ended, at the hands of his parents. He might have been saved. He should be alive today oecause his bruises were seen by many adults. But, Shawn died because sane adults did not act; sane acted too late, and the actions of sane stopped dead at brick walls. 

'l'here is a lot of Monday-morning-quarterbacking when it oornes to second guessing a lJYr,S caseworker. But if no one comes forward, if no one reports the Shawn's of this world, how can a DYFS worker make a difference·.? And, that is why I am glad I have been asked to testify today. 

I think we have one common goal - you, our legislators; the people in the field, our caseworkers; and the people in the Central 
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Office, the Department's administrators. We need to create a safer, 

happier life for our children and families. As Lyndon Johnson once 

said: "Yesterday is not ours to recover, but tomorrow is ours to win 

or lose. 11 Our tomorrow is our children, and we start the battle to win 

our toonrrow today. 

I believe it will take a canprehensive effort in three major 

areas if we are to achieve that goal: 1.) Reorganization; 2.) worker 

supfl()rt; and 3.) Community participation. 

We must continue our reorganization of the Division of Youth 

and Family services. While the Department has made improvements in tne 

management of DYFS, I realize that the job is not canplete. And, I 

realize that the DYFS caseworkers, the individuals who directly impact 

on our children, are overworked and overburdened. But, we have been 

listening to their concerns and taking the kind of action that 

gradually will lead to a better \\Ork environment. 

Finally, the equation of 1noving DYFS in a new direction would 

not be canplete without bringing the community into our planning. We 

seek out a public/private partnership on all fronts -- in our fight to 

improve rrorale, in our effort to reorganize the Division, and IrOst 

important, in our campaign to prevent child abuse. we nave worked with 

child advocates and abuse experts across the State to develop a new 

comprehensive policy of caring for our families and children -- the 

DYFS Mission Statement. 

I would like to explain each of these three major areas in a 

little rrore detail. I \\Ould like to start bf explaining what I found 

at UYFS when I became Human Services Camnissioner almost three years 

ago. 

Very early in my administration, I became aware of, and 

advised the public of, the tragic child abuse death of children under 

supervision of the Division of Youth and Family Services. We found 

that these deaths were closely tied to stresses caused by poverty, 

unemployment, and other social econanic factors. 

It was increasingly evident to me that DYFS administration 

was failing in its mission to protect the health, safety, and 

well-being of our children and to serve the State's families. 
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When we looKed to find coordination in delivering services in 
each county, we found no mechanism to even determine what type of 
delivery system existed. What we did find was a State child welfare 
system which was not responsive to the problems it was organized to 
deal with. It was operating in isolation from the canmunity and 
reacting to crises rather than working to prevent them. 

Faced with awesane problems, we set out to create solutions 
by developing a management plan, a plan which has become a blueprint 
for accountability. 

For example, in the area of management, we structurea DYFS 
administration at all levels. Our emphasis, however, was in the 
Central and Regional Offices to provide direction, accountability, anct 
consistency for the field. We established a consistent method of 
allocating staff for our district offices. 'rhis accanplishment, in an 
organization of 36 district offices, was seen as progressive by those 
social workers who had suffered with years of DYFS organizational 
stagnation. 

On the district office level, we were able to examine the 
Division inside, outside, and to turn it upside down. For instance, we 
established cost-control metnods, to provide tor an accurate assessment 
of where funds were going internally. And, we revamped an antiquated 
system of reporting unusual incidents, sud1 as child deaths, to ensure 
timely and accurate data in every instance. 

but, most important, in our reorganization, we brought the 
caseworker into the process. we need to know their ideas and their 
feedback. They are our front-line workers. So, we set up steering 
canmittees at every level of the Division, with strong caseworker 
representation, to provide a participatory approach to management of 
DYFS. These canmittees, which each provided representatives to a 
statewide steering COfl1Tlittee, have provided casework staff a way to 
discuss and recommend solutions to management on policy questions and 
to share infonnation on new agency initiatives. 

'£he DYFS reorganization was only the first solution to the 

problems of DYFS. 
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Let's look at the caseworker -- the lone State worker faced, 

on the one hand, with the desire to protect our children, but blockeo, 

on the other hand, by a cwnbersome bureaucracy and overburdened 

caseloads. The result - a roc>rale problem, and it is no wonder. 

The number of reported cases of child abuse has increased 42~ 

in one year and are now averaging 123 a day, or one new report of child 

abuse every 12 minutes. That should total 45,000 reports by the year's 

end. 

becomes: 

•rhe caseload in DYFS keeps growing. The question to be asked 

If a caseworker has a load ot 46 children, how can that 

caseworker spend an adequate amount of time on each? 

There are other problems training deficiencies, laCJ< of 

transportation, and lack of security. 

The Department is moving on the concerns, but the real answer 

is that we need rore caseworkers. I am asking for $5 million for an 

additional 507 workers and support staff to meet increased caseloads. 

We nust have these additional workers because the job they ao 

is so complex. 'l'hey must balance support with assertiveness; speed 

with thoroughness; risk-taking with security; and trust with 

vigilance. 

In the last two years, we increased our front-line staff by 

300. 'rhe increases in child abuse reports have obscured tnis gain in 

staffing. And, because of the increase of child abuse reports, our 

caseloads are not balanced by county. For instance, in one county, the 

caseload ratio might be one to 60, while in another it might be one to 

30. Our request for additional staft addresses this imbalance. 

But, I emphasize again our need for staffing. Our original 

request for over 100 positions was turned down oy the Joint 

Appropriations Connnittee. Now, the need is even greater. 

However, there are measures the Department has taken to 

better support our caseworkers. We have overhauled protective services 

training for new social workers and ensured that all workers cx:mplete 

this 20-day program before they go on the job. 

We have done some simple things. We have improved work 

conditions in district offices, automated some work details, and 



purchased cars so a case'NC>rker has reliable transportation when 'NC>rking 
alone, after dark. 

We have also tackled sane harder ooncerns. We have increased 
career opportunities and salaries by adjusting job titles in creating a 
new career ladder. In fact, retroactive pay checks to caseworkers, 
affected by career-ladder changes, were issued last week. 

Again, I realize the Department has not fully addressed all 
the concerns raised by caseworkers. For instance, there is more work 
to be done in the paperwork reduction, and we want to set up a program 
for worker stress. 

I would like to arm our caseworkers with the tools they need 
reduced caseloads, more training, a better worK environment, and 

support. It is not an easy job to take on the 'NC>rld, and it is time we 
recognize a DYFS worKer can't do everything. That's why the 
cornerstone of my administration has been involving the community. For 
the first time in DYFS, we have carmunity leaders caning forward and 
saying, "These are our children, not DYFS's children." In this area, 
perhaps, we have had our greatest success. The cornmunity has assisted 
us in our goal to be rrore pro-active instead of reactive. 

First, the Deparbnent has involved the State's prosecutors in 
a child abuse awareness campaign. Today, we have a new relationship 
with prosecutors -- a new role. We aren't fighting each otner 
anymore. we have becane a combined force united to bring to justice 
the predators who prey on our children. We recognize the prosecutors 
as a resource -- but they are one of many. 

Governor Kean's Task Force is a second ally. They are 
delivering positive, substantial results. The Task Force is rroving to 
include the school canmunity -- teachers, principals, and day-care 
workers - in the campaign for child abuse prevention. And, they are 
reaching out to the medical profession, also. The Pl'A' s, the Foster 
Parent Association, child-care groups, and business leaders all are 
joining the effort of cornmunity education and awareness. 

We are fonning partnerships with the Association of Children 

for New Jersey, the Battered WCll1len' s Coalition, and other statewide 
groups. 
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We need a community effort, right down to the parents and 

children themselves. 

I am requesting $7.8 million in additional funding to 

purchase cornrnuni ty and residential services for chilaren and their 

families under DYFS supervision. 

All these things -- reorganization, worker support, and 

community involveinent and awareness --- will lead to a rrore protected, 

richer life for our children in trouble. 

I propose your staff and mine work together to form a 

legislative package that, in terms of child care and protection, is 

clearly reform. For, as a noted child abuse expert has said, "We 

cannot wait to help a child in need. We cannot allow the ccmplexity of 

the problem to paralyze us." 

Finally, I believe the new child welfare policies emphasizing 

community partnerships can best be described by many of the advocacy 

groups you have invited to testify today. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I wonder if you could elaborate on that 

request for $7.8 million as to what tnat woula go into. The $5 million 

I can understand for the additional caseworkers. 

CCMMISSICNER ALBANESE: That will be protective services 

needs in the following areas: residential care, foster care, 

subsidized adoption, and general social services which has a heavy 

prevention COinponent. Residential care was $2.25 million; foster care, 

$1.9 million; subsidized adoption, $1.2 million; aoo general social 

services, $2.5 million. 

I might ado, as a result of the family court, tnere is 

another new thing in the State of New Jersey -- the residential care 

component of DYFS -- aoo this is under heavy strain, with the looking 

for the alternative to incarceration and the nome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Of course, in the last six months we nave 

seen the tremendous exposure that the media has given to the problem, 

and I suppose that is the biggest impetus for the increase in your 

caseloads. Does your Division feel that the problem has always 

existed, and it somehow has been kept under wraps? 
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CU1MISSICNE.R ALBANESE: I think that the awareness campaign 
that we started two years ago is having an effect on the numbers that 
we are seeing today. I personally believe that the increase is really 
and primarily a result of the awareness campaign. I think it has been 
here; I think there has been sane increase possibly because of the new 
family structure in our society - the single-parent family and working 
parents. But, for the rrost part I would say that awareness has had the 
effect of producing what we will see this year, 45,000 incidents 
reported to DYFS. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: was it increasing on the same scale, 
prior to the revelations in New York and then later on in New Jersey 
that hit nationwide television? Was that the big impetus? 

COMMISSICNER ALBANESE: In New Jersey, I think, it was 
already increasing as a result of the awareness campaign. we saw that, 
prior to those two rredia events in New YorK and California that were on 
television. I want to p:>int out that if you l<X>k at the history of the 
legislation and the incident reporting, when this law first came out 
back in the seventies, we saw a tremendous amount of re:porting, and 

then, I guess, there was public apathy and we turned to sane other 
areas of concern in society, and it went aown. Then we saw the 
increase starting, with the awareness campaign put on the Governor and 

the adlninistration. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PLYNN: When your department appeared before the 
Appropriations Canmittee -- I guess that woula have been last Mardi. -
at that time, the big numbers of abuse had not hit yet; is that 
correct? 

C0'1MISSILNER ALBANESE: No, it was just starting to climb. 

We were just starting to see the surge about that p:>int in time. Tan 

Blatner, Director of the DYFS Management Team, can give you the 
specific numbers. 

'HIJ¥\S BIA'l'NER: In 1982 the number ot reports was 20,000 reports of 
abuse and neglect a year. That number had been level for the five 

years previous to that. In the following calendar year it went up to 
26,000. So, it went fran 20,000 to 26,000. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: In the 1Y83 calendar year? 
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MR. BIA'INER: Yes. What we are proJecting this year is that 

it will go from 26,000 to 45,000. This increase has been very, very 

sudden. 
ASSEMBLYMAN f:o,LYNN: Is it basically the awareness rather than 

society suddenly becoming nore abusive? Is that your conclusion? 

MR. BIA'INER: I think that there may be - as the 

Coounissioner said -- a slight increase in the actual anount of family 

violence. One of the things that has happened with child aouse, with 

abuse against women in their hanes, and the various kinds of forms that 

family violence takes, is that it is alroc>st as if the taboo has been 

broken, and everybody is caning forward. As every television show is 

on, our emergency line gets more aoo more calls. People are definitely 

nore willing to talk about the pain that they are suffering. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PLYNN: Did the mission of the Department cnange 

at all tran 1982, 1983, and 1984 to increase the number of cxxnplaints? 

Did you mission broaden at all, or has the mission stayed the same? 

Cc»1MISSIONER ALBANESE: In terms of the abuse and neglect, 

really, our errphasis in 1982 and 1983 was to bring this out of the 

closet, to bring awareness to New Jersey, to get people to talk about 

it, and to get people to comply with the law in reJ:?Orting. Most people 

are not aware that it is a misdemeanor not to report a suspected child 

abuse or neglect situation. Everyone has a legal obligation. That has 

been part of our program: To make people aware of reporting and to err 

on the side of safety, when it is dealing with our very vulnerable 

children. So, it has been a concentrated effort, in tenns of 

implementing the law. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I noticed in The New York Times yesterday 

that there was an article in whidl there were three examples of what, 

maybe in the past, would not have been considered child abuse, that now 

you definitely feel should be looked into, such as a child being alone 

on his front doorstep at 9:00 in the evening and a child in a car 

without his seat belt on - things like that which probably the average 

person would not oonsider child abuse. But, the Department does 

consider that those kinas of situations should be at least 

investigated; is that correct? 

Ca.1MISSIONER ALBANESE: 
Pi':iDPERTY OF 

That is correct. NE\fl/ JFRSEY STATE ~,J.!?3/.RY 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Now, has that contributed to the 
increased number of cases? That has to take the same path, I supi;x:>se, 
as an exainple of a dlild being beaten half to death. 

CCXVJMISSIOOER ALBANESE: I think it is very hard to set 
priorities, in tenns of when we talk, between i;x:>ssible neglect or 
abuse. The story that I recall was one regarding a young boy, four 
years old, at 11 :00 at night, wandering around a neighborhCXXI. To me, 
that child is at risk. 'lb me, that should be reported aoo should be 
handled by the Division of Youth and Family Services. I know that it 
says an 11-year old child at 9:00 p.rn., but it really was a four-year 
old at 11:00 p.m. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, in other words, the real facts are a 
lot nore horrible than what I am hearing? 

Ca-1M.ISSIOOER ALBANESE: That is an example I used fran 
personal experience. I think it is incumbent ui;x:>n on all of us to 
recognize that a four-year old should not be out on the streets at 
11:00 at night, wandering around. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I don't think anybody would disagree 
with that. You are indicating that at the present time the caseworker 
is SOJnething around 46; is that correct? 

CG1MISSIONER ALBANESE: That is cnrrect. 
AfiSEMBLYMAN F'LYNN: So that means there are probably sane who 

have less and some who have nore? Are they all the same? In other 
words, if s01neone has 46 cases, are his 46 the same as mine? Woula one 
of his 46 take, maybe, three times the amount of time that one of my 50 
might take? 

Ca-1MISSIONER ALBANESE: Torn can answer that. 
MR. BIATNER: We supervise a variety of situations involving 

children. On one hand, you may have a long-term foster care situation 
where a chila has been in foster care for a long time by everybody's 
agreeinent, and it is a very stable situation without a lot of risks; in 
that kind of case, we may go out to the home once every three or four 
nonths. That is one kind of case. On the other hand, we may have a 
high-risk case that we are supervising, where it is a very risky 
situation; in that situation we would be involved much nore 
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frequently. So, there is no question there is variety in the kinds of 

cases we handle. Family situations we are involved in do vary 

tremendously. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you take us through the process 

fran the first time that your department becanes involved in a typical 

case so that we can appreciate exactly what the caseworker has to do. 

MR. BLATNER: well, I think there are really several 

processes that we go through. First of all, in terms of the previous 

question regarding what we look into, the law requires that whether 

someone calls in anonymously or not, we have to go out and look into 

the situation. Depending upon what the report is will determine how 

fast we go out. For exarnple, if it is imminent danger, we will go out 

immediately. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Who is the "we"? 

MR. BLA'INER: We have 32 district offices around the State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'LYNN: Thirty-two? 

MR. BLATNER: Thirty-two district offices, at least one in 

each county. We have an Office of Child Abuse Control which has an 

800-nurnber and which the law requires people to report to. During the 

daytime, people can either call the 800-number or call their local 

office, and that will activate an investigation. After hours, the 

Office of Child Abuse Control is open 24 hours a day. We have an 

emergency response system that is based in each county, using on-call 

workers. so, we have the ability to go out 24 nours a day and look 

into a situation. When a call canes in, it depends upon the kind of 

report that we get -- if it is inminent danger, we will go out and 

investigate immediately, and take appropriate action. If it is a 

situation of abuse or neglect that does not call for an immediate 

response, we will go out within 24 hours. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Who makes that decision? 

MR. BLA'INER: Pardon? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What type of person makes that decision? 

MR. BLA'INER: Social workers make that decision. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are they all the same? In other words, 

are there different categories of social workers within the district 

office? 

MR. BIATNER: We have had a change in the structure of social 

workers within their offices. The Commissioner mentioned that we 

recently introduced a family service series, Which provides a career 

ladder and increased salaries to our workers. So, there are family 

service specialists at different levels within the work force, as well 

as supervisors. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are there any minimum qualifications for 

these positions? 

MR. BI.ATNER: Yes, there are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: For example, a college degree in sane 

speciality? 

MR. BLATNER: A college degree in some speciality-related 

area and a minimum of a year's experience. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: In each of these district offices is 

there one person who is assigned to do the screening or does it depend 

on who answers the telephone? 

MR. BLATNl!;R: No. What we have done-- One of the problems 

in our initial formula was that it didn't separate investigations fran 

ongoing casework. We do have people in our offices who are just doing 

intake and investigative work. However, the original formula that we 

used for assigning cases, which was drawn fran the national Child 

Welfare League of America standards, didn' t account for this. we do 

have people who are just doing investigations and intake and then 

noving the cases onto ongoing supervision. 

ASSEMHLYMAN FLYNN: When you figure your caseloads, are those 

people included as part of the people who have cases? 

MR. BIATNER: They were; they are not now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: They are not OClw? 

MR. BI.ATNER: One of the things that we tried to do was be 

very flexible in terms of our planning. When we established that 

interim formula, we went out to the district offices. There are two 

additional functions which we identified and which we are planning 
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for. One is to separate investigations and intake out and have a 

separate allocation for that. Secondly, we will have an allocation for 

ongoing supervised cases. And thirdly, there are workers in the 

offices who are doing litigation specialist work, foster heme finding, 

and COillilUnity resource developnent; these workers do not carry a 

caseload. In our original formula, they had been included as part of 

the caseload. So, we separated that all out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I understand that there are sane 

guidelines, I guess national guidelines, as to how many cases a given 

caseworker should handle. What would be the guidelines for the person 

in the field having the supervision of the children? what would be a 

reasonable number, according to the national guidelines? 

MR. BLATNER: well, according to the national guidelines, the 

Child Welfare League of America guiaelines, which we are using, one 

caseworker would supervise 25 children. 

ASSEMBLY.MAN FLYNN: One to 25? 

MR. BLATNER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: SO that if we are at one to 46--

MR. BLATNER: (interrupting) Right OCM, we are at about 70% 

of the Child Welfare League of America standards. What this request 

would do is bring us back up to 85%, which was the request that we made 

t\\O years ago. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If one to 25 is good, and one to 46 is 

current, that is almost double. 

MR. BLATNER: We are in a bad situation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That doesn't sound like 75%; it sounds 

nore like 50%. Or am I figuring wrong? One to 46 versus one to ~5. 

MR. BIATNER: When we figure, we are looking at ranges. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If the average is 46, that means there 

has to be sane probably with 60, 70, or 80--

MR. BLATNER: (interrupting) I'm sorry. One to 34 would 

give you 85i. We have been using a range, so it is 34 to 38. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, you \\Ould like to get--

MR. BIATNl!:R: (interrupting) We would like to get our 

caseloads to one to 34. 
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ASS&\ffiLYMAN FLYNN: 

higher than what it is. 

MR. BLATNER: Yes. 

But, it would be still considerably 

What we had found originally was that 

division-wide and statewide, the Division was at n.% of the minimum 

standard. we had plcnned to go to 85% immediately. we have now 

changed it because of the increase in the reporting in caseloads. So, 

we are requesting just to go back to 85% with the 507 workers. 

ASSEM.l:ILYlvJAN FLYNN: I have seen, in sane of the news articles 

that I have read, that some people have as many as 60, 70, or 80 

cases. Is that possible? 

MR. BLATNER: It is. Again, it would depend on the kind of 

cases ana how you count the cases. For example, I went out, in 

Monmouth County, with a v.0rker who had 4 1 cases and was about to go 

down to 35. They are very active cases. On the other hand, you might 

have a worker who has long-term foster care in the caseload and that 

caseload would be higher. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there any internal control to 

detennine the nwnber that an individual caseworker has and the type of 

cases? How do you handle that? 

MR. BLATNER: We have guidelines for the size ot cases. What 

has happened is that our primary statutory responsibility is to 

investigate a call of abuse. So, what has happened in a nwnber of 

offices is we have had to draw people out of the ongoing caseloads just 

to cover the investigations. That has thrown our ability to keep these 

ratios proper. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: But is it the luck of the draw as to what 

an individual caseworker will have? 

MR. BLATNER: No. What we did when we did our allocations 

was we planned an allocation for each office. First of all, we 

determined a statewide nwnber based upon the Child Welfare League of 

America standards and then we allocated ¼Drkers to each office to 

achieve a reasonable caseload. Our managers are supposed to be 

maintaining that caseload. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do the supervisors take sane cases away 

fran an individual caseworker if their load gets too high and shift 

them to someone who maybe has resolved sane cases? 
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MR. BLA'rNER: To the extent that they can. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FL:tNN: Or isn't that considered a good 

practice? 

MR. BI.ATNER: That is good practice, definitely good 

practice. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: How can anybody handle 60, 70, or 80? It 

is just unpossible. 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: I would just like to make one point. 

I believe it might be appropriate for the phenomena we are seeing right 

now in terms of reporting. That is the question of indexing. Once we 

establish an agreement with the Legislature on proper caseload size, it 

should be indexed so that with the rise in incident reporting, t11ere 

\\Ould be an adjustment so you dOn't get into this frantic scrambling to 

try to meet caseloads. The indexing would also provide a comfort for 

taxpayers; when there is a decline in the number of incidents -- and, 

as we see in government, many things go in cycles -- then, in fact, the 

indexing would be used to bring down the staff ratios. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Where would you get that additional 

money, though, when the index rose? I know the easy answer is us, but 

it is not that simple. 

Ca-1MISSIONER ALBANESE: ·rhat is the problem that you are in 

right now. You are in a position where the difficulty of seeing tllis 

increase and getting the additional dOllars has not been, you might 

say, syncopated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: For example rKYw, I am advised that when 

the budget for this year was put in and requests were made, you did ask 

for some additional positions, but that the targets, as set by CMB, 

were to keep it at a level, not increase it at all. 1'he Governor's 

Management Improvement Plan also said to stay within the present level 

at that time -- tile present positions. Did they have significant input 

fran your Di vision that you were really in bad shape then? You weren't 

in great shape then. You are worse now, but you weren't in great shape 

even when the GMI~ was promulgated. 

Cav!MISSIONER ALBANESE: At that point, we were approaching 

the 85% level. Our submission before the Joint Appropriations 
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Corruni ttee was to nove to what hopefully we 'NOuld s,~e to be the 90\/; 
level of the Child Weltare League standards. At that point in time, 
between the time of the submission of the budget to the 0MB and the 
time we went to the Joint Appropriations Committee, we revised our 
position and stated that case before the Joint Appropriations Committee 
for the additional people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You stated your case, but it is hard, in 
light of the GMlP, to go against it because that theoretically was 

based on considerable study. 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: The <.:.1'1IP, as far as I kno.v, and in 
terms of the study, led to the increase of the 'NOrkers in our analysis 
of DYFS. If you recall, DYFS was one of the first agencies to begin a 
review and reorganization. It was prior to GMI.P and they came on and 

reviewed the findings of the management team. As a result of that 
restructuring, there was a rroving down in our management-fill levels 
and an increasing in our direct-care workers. In fact, we increased in 
direct care, which was not really a reduction of any staff. I do not 
recall GMIP telling me not to increase. In fact, this first report led 
to an increase and redirection of our resources to direct care. 

ASSEM8LY1'1AN FLYNN: HON about the CX'1B targets? Did they, 
rrore or less, keep you from asking rrore than what you got? 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: No, by the time I went to the JAC I 
had asked for additional people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Did you find yourself in somewhat of an 

awkward 1:X)Sition, being a member of the Cabinet where targets are set, 
and at the same time knowing you need more money for more workers -
trying to tread a delicate balance between being a good soldier and 
being a good advocate? Is that one probl~n that you find yourself in? 

Cc»'lMISSIONER ALBANESE: To be a good advocate you have to be 

a good soldier to fight for your cause so I fought for my cause, which 
was rrore wrkers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'l'he question was ho.v hard can you fight 
and be a good soldier at the same time, as part of an overall effort to 

keep costs down, in terms of the Governor's budget? Is that the 
problem you had, trying to tread the water on ooth shoulders? 
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CQl1MISSI0Nt:l:{ ALBANESE: I had approval to go before the JAC 

and ask for that additional noney. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You mentioned in your remarks that you 

~ot 300 new positions or just 300 new workers? 

CQ\1MISSIONER ALBANESE: workers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I understand there is quite a burnout and 

quite a turnover, so that 300 new \\Orkers may or may not necessarily 

create 300 new positions. How many actual new caseworker positions 

were put on line this year out of the budget? 

MR. BLATNER: When we did the original management review and 

the management team entered DYFS, in January of 1983, there was a total 

direct service staff of 1,452, and as of last count, which was 

September 1, we had 1,849. '!hat includes 

front-line supervisors, and clerical people. 

the backup for that. 

direct-line \\Orkers, 

I can provide you with 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You are counting the Central Office, the 

regional offices--

MR. BLA'rNER: 

offices. 

(interrupting) This is in the district 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Strictly in the district offices? 

MR. BLA'l'NER: Strictly in the district offices. When we went 

in in January of 1983, there were 1,45~ direct service staff in those 

offices, including front-line workers, front-line supervisors, and 

clerical staff, and as of September there were 1,849. That is an 

increase of 397 employees in the district offices. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Of those employees, sare are not 

necessarily caseworkers, though? 

MR. BLA'I'NER: 'rhat's right. There were close to 300 

caseworkers. I can give you the exact numbers. There were close to 

300 caseworkers. There was an even split between front-line 

supervisors and clerical people. As I said, I can provide you with all 

the backup information to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Ol<.ay. We want to see if we are getting 

the biggest bang for the dollar that we are putting in. I understand 

you also contract with private organizations to do sane field work? 

Maybe you can give us a little background on that. 
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MR. BLATNER: This is one of the most significant changes 
that has taken place. One of the things that would happen is that we 
would take clients onto our caseloads, and because of the high caseload 
and lack of resources, they would stay on our caseloads for long 
periods of ti.me. So, we changed tne policy and said that we wanted to 
begin to purchase services as quickly as possiole fran the private 
sector for our clients. We started what we called "district office 
initiatives" where we would allocate a certain amount of dollars to 
each district office and they would go out and purchase services fran 
the private sector. For example, we might put homemaker services in a 
hane, we might provide child care, we might provide transportation 
services, or we might provide a lot of family counseling and inv1didual 
counseling. The idea is that these families need services quickly and 
the private sector is best prepared to provide that for them. And, 
hopefully, we will get them off the caseload that way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Ho.v do the Department's caseworkers 
interface with the private organizations? Is there somebody assigned 
to work with them and follCJN those specific cases? 

MR. BLATNER: When we did the original plan we had assumed 
that there would be someone doing that. What has happened with the 
crush is tl1at we have had to draw EMay fran that. Part of our request 
would be to assign a canmunity-resource development specialist to each 
district office to do that work. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I see. Is there a move to have saneone 
like that in each district office? 

MR. BLATNER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Someone to know what is available in the 
CO!llllUO i ty? 

MR. BLATNER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I asswne you have read Dr. Cahill Is 
report on the workers I stress? Both of you are shaking your heads 
yes. 

CCMMISSIONER ALBANESE: Yes. 

MR. BLATNER: tes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 

significant burnout problem? 

Do you both agree that there is a 
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Ca-1MISSIONER ALBANESE: I think it is a very stressful 

situation that the DYFS workers are encountering aI¥i have encountered. 

I am not sure that it has resulted in any m::>re of a turnover than any 

other parts of the Department of Human Services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What is the estimated percentage? 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: 'l'hree years ago there was a 20% 

turnover in the Department. I think we are about down to 10% riljht 

now. I think UYFS is around that nwnber. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Ten percent? That's annual? 

CCl-1MISSIONER ALBANESE: Ten percent. That is an annual 

figure. So, we have seen our attrition slCM down within the Department 

of Human Services and, pretty much, it is canpatible with the 

institutional workers. That is not to say that is not a stressful 

situation. I think it is. I think a DYFS worker, in many cases, is 

out there making life and death decisions, placing a child or taking a 

child out of a hane. 

In my a,.m experience, in reviewing the eight deaths -- or ten 

deatns - in 1982, the fact was that I, in reviewing t11e reports, found 

a complete absence of canmunity in dealing with child abuse in a 

particular family. I saw a canplete absence, in many cases, of law 

enforcement in the investigations. Subsequent to that, we brought in 

other people. 

I believe that the canmunity is a very viable tool for a DYFS 

caseworker to use in assisting in investigations and case management. 

Our euphasis in relieving that stress has really been to bring in other 

agencies. 
The prosecutors are back in the mainstream 110N in child abuse 

investigations. Almost all of the counties are startir¥3 special units, 

working in tandem with our DYFS \\Orkers, and I see that as a tool -- to 

train people in investigation work. 

I see the c.ummunity as a tool. Additional resources will be 

very helpful in providing m::>re tools to the DiFS caseworker. So, I 

\\Ould say it is a stressful situation, and we all have to provide those 

kind of tools. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Of course, I assume that the caseload 

itself, in and of itself, creates a stress. 
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COMMISSIONER ALBANESE:: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN fLYNN: Not being able to do exactly what you 
want to do without the resources to do it. Has DYf'S taken any steps 
toward stress training or anything along those lines to get to the 
heart of the matter? 

COMMISSIONER AI..BANESE: No, we have not. We have looked at 
and are pursuing a stress management program for DYFS as well as for 
other parts of the Department. 

ASSl!:MBLYMAN 1'.,LYNN: It is under consideration? 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: It is under consideration. 

ASSEMBLYMAN J:o'LYNN: How about the paperwork? You read a lot 
about paperwork; somebody can't spend time in the field because they 
have to be back in the otf ice doing paperwork. What efforts are you 
making to reduce the paperwork problem -- if there is a problem? 

CC11MISSIONER ALBANESE: That was a concern of ours when we 
did the management review. I personally lookea at sooe of the forms 
and we put together a group of people, a task force, to look at 
paperwork. It is mandated in many areas, whether it is the courts or 
the State or Federal government. Torn Blatner can expand on it, where 
they are at this p:>int. But, it is a very, very difficult problem; I 
think some of it will be resolved by autanation. 

ASt;EMBLYMAN FLYNN: Tom, maybe you want to expand on that. 
MR. BLATNER: Yes. The first thing that we did was we put 

together what we call the paperworK carunittee, which is chaired by a 
person who used to be a district office manager, and it is attended by 

workers themselves. That paperwork canrnittee was charged with 
reviewing all the paperwork requirements fran the Central Office and 
seeing how much we could eliminate. They did, in fact, reduce a number 
of forms fran a statewide point of view. 

The second thing that we have done is as a result of a number 
of caseworkers filling out the same form, with the same information on 
it, but for different purposes. On January 1, we are putting in a 
whole new case recording system which gathers the information once. 

So, the caseworker doesn't have to keep filling that out. 
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I met with this paperwork canmittee just last week, and one 

of the things that they said was that there were so many legitimate 

requirements for paperwork, in terms of documentation for court, that 

rather than reducing what we have to do, we have to find different ways 

to do it. We agreed to two things. One is that we are pulling in a 

consultant who deals just with automated systems to see how much 

information can be dealt with fran one of the systems. And secondly, 

we are looking at whether we can have specialized clerical training for 

people so that they can fill out sane of these forms and reduce the 

paperwork. 

The other thing that was a real eyeopener for me was looking 

at the quality-assurance program arrl seeing what kirrl of work the 

offices were doing. '!here has been a tremendous increase in paperwork 

because a lot of the forms which were supposed to have been filled out, 

were not filled out. So, at the same time that we were reducing fonns, 

we were asking for canpliance in our offices. For example, if 

caseworkers are only filling out 40% of their initial response forms, 

which are required for court, and then all of sudden we are asking them 

to do 100%, they have nore paperwork. It is a very, very ctif f icul t 

area. I think what we are leaning rrore towara is- I think we have 

gotten close to how much we can actually reduce, but we have to find 

different ways to free up our social work time so the caseworkers can 

do their primary task. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLThlN: I have heard it said, and correct me if 

this is incorrect, that half of a caseworker's time is spent on 

paperwork.. Is that an accurate statement? 

is? 

MR. BLATNER: I don't think it is quite that high, but-

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: (interrupting) How high would you say it 

MR. BIATNER: I would say, maybe, 35% or 40%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: They work 35 or 37 1/2 hours? 

MR. BLATNER: 'rhirty-five hours. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, they are spending 10, 12, or 13 hours 

a week aoing paperwork? 
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MR. BLATNER: We have had our paperwork corrmi ttee go back 

out to our offices and ask office people: "What can we reduce?" I think 
the consensus is there is a lot of paperwork, but there is not much to 
reduce. That is why I think that· the answer now lies in finding 
different people and systems to do it. 

caiIMISSIONER ALBANESE: I think you have to try and capture 
certain pieces of infonuation that could be used for a variety of 
reports, sort of a format. But, you can't tell the prosecutor of tne 
county that you are not going to submit reports to them -- which we 
found happened several years ago. In fact, there wasn't a reporting 
relationship in many areas in the State of New Jersey. That is an area 
where additional paperwork might have been created that wasn't there 
before. But, it is in the law -- "shall be reported." I think the 
real answer is a format that will generate information that could, in 
itself, generate additional reports through automation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are you working with the courts arrl the 
prosecutors' offices in trying to o:xne up with such a format? 

a»1MISSIONER ALBANESE: As a result of the prosecutors 
working group that reported to 11e two years ago, the prosecutors have 
already cane up with uniform reporti03 for the prosecutors and DYFS. 
So, we addressed that particular issue with law enforcement. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If we could just make a dent, sey a 20% 
or 30¥1 dent, in that paperwork, we would all of a sudden have nore 
caseworker hours, and the caseworker locrl would be just that more 
reduced. Do you get the input fran the caseworkers themselves as to 
what they thinJc? You said somethirg about canmittees, that you have 
ongoing canmittees. You said sanething about the supervisors being on 
these canmittees. Are the people out on the line, the firing line, on 
these corrmittees also? 

MR. BIA'.INER: The paperwork carmittee is chaired by a 
manager, but the rrembers of the corrmittee are people who work in the 

offices as workers. we have also asked each oftice to send us 
recacurendations on how we can reduce the paperwork. we spend a lot of 
tiire on it. There are an awful lot of requirements. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You generate a lot of paper. 
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MR. B.LATNE.t<: Yes, that's righ':, trying to figure out how 

much paper we can reduce. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: To this poi 1t, you haven I t been able to 

do too much from what you are saying? 

MR. BLATNER: I think that what we have reduced has been 

rncreased rYJ legitimate demands that weren't fulfilled. On January 1, 

we have our new case recording system going in place, which was 

designed with the courts so that instead of filling out two separate 

forms with the same information on it there is one. In the spring we 

are having a whole automated system go into place. I am hopeful that 

will do it. But, I think we .3.lso have to look at having clerical 

people trained to take sctre of tne infoon-3.tion so that we can free up 

the social worker time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Assemblyman ~olburn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COL.BURN: How many vacant positions do you 

normally have in the social workE·r group? 

MR. BLATNER: Right n:,w, I vould say, in the Division, we 

probably have, out ot tr1e total number of pcx;itions - 27,800 (sic) 

we have division-wide probably 20 vacant D .vfaion positions. 

ASSEMBLY111AN CULBURN: lbout 20? 

r1R. BLA'I'NER: One of the proi:)l ~ms is that because we don't 

have vacant positions we can't l~reate .3 XlOl that woula allow us to 

backfill, so that is one of the things we ire looking at. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURN: Of the 5 i7 proposed new people, what 

categories will they ccme in? 

remernDer. 

You m iY have said that; I don't 

MR. BLATNEH: There are 354 din ct-line workers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURN: What does that mean? 

MR. BLATNER: That means social workers who are front-line 

worken • There are-

CC1'1MISSICtn:;R ALBANESE: ( intE-n upt ing) I have the numbers 

right tere: 354 casewockers, 69 superviscrs, and 84 clerical. 

ASSEMBLYMAN C'Ol..BURN: Where WL"lld you house all these new 

people? Where will these 507 new people l~ placed? 

CCMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: Geograptically? 

ASSEMBLYMAN CUWURT.-;J: No. [X) ycu have enough desks? 
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COvlMISSIOOER ALBANESE: 

additional space. 

We are going to have to get 

space. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURN: You are going to need a new building. 

C(Xv!MISSIUl.'JER ALBANESE: Part of that proposal is additional 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURN: Is that part of the extra--

CXfflISSIOOER ALBANESE: (interrupting) 'l'nat is part of the 

$5 million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURN: That is part of the $5 million? 

C(ll1MISSIOOER ALBANESE: Five million dollars includes things 

such as rental of vehicles, space, furniture, telephones, etc. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COLBURi.'-4: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: During the little break I had a chance to 

take a look at a canparison of the staffing fran figures supplied to me 

by the Office of Budget Management. Now according to this, it says 

that in 1981 , in the categories of SW-1 and SW-l -- social workers 1 

and 2 - and social worker aides and trainees, there was a total of 

1102 positions. 

CCMMISSICNER ALBANESE: What date do you have -- b/10/81? 

District Office social workers, 1102. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay, right. •rhen it seems to be 

relatively level. In 1982, it is the same figure, give or ta.Ke 50. In 

1983, relatively the same figure. And, July 18, 1984, we are only at 

about 1200. So, really in the three-year period, according to this, 

from 1981 to 1984, we have really only increased 100, and I assume 

those are the people who are out in the fie la. How does that square 

with the thought that we have actually 300 more out in the field? 

I.X) you have the same figures that I an looking at? 

MR. BLATNER: Using the figures we have for direct-service 

workers, on 7/1/82, there were about a thousand - 1023. 'l'hen in 

1/1/83, which is the base line that we are using for adding workers in 

the field- Before that there had been a freeze on, and there was 

attrition, so we were down to 953 positions. As of today, we are up to 

1206. Those are our figures. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So really you have only increased by 

about 100 in three years. If these figures that I am looking at, are 

correct -- and these are from OOB--

to 1206. 

CCM1ISSIOOER ALBANESE: (interrupting) You are talking ~!:>3 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What is that? 

CO,,JMISSIOOER ALBANESE: You are talking 953 to 1206. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No, I am looking at SW-1 and SW-2 plus--

CCXvlMISSIOOER ALBANESE: (interrupting) I am looking at 

1/1/83. There was an attrition program on when I first carre on board. 

Uuring the DYFS management review, we realized that we were "attritin9" 

in areas tnat we couldn't afford to "attrite," so tne base that we 

started with was 953 ooving to 1206. If you recall, there was d 

controversy about this attrition program. I couldn't figure out why we 

were "attriting." As a matter of fact, the budget that I was given 

would have called for an additional layoff or attrition of 200 oore 

workers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'rt1e figures, as of June 24th, Whidl would 

be the end of the fiscal year of 1983, have a total of 1111. 

C01MISSIONER ALBANESE: September 1, 1984-- We have another 

chart here; I don't knCM if they have given it to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You must be looking at different dates. 

I am looking at the end--

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: ( interrupting) 'I'hese are the dates 

we are using -- 1/1/83, 953; 9/1/84, 1206. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: When did the figures increase from your 

1983 figure, that you used, of 956 to approximately 1111 at the end of 

June, 1983? 

MR. BLATNER: In 1/1/83, it was about as low as we went. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'rtlat was your low point? 

MR. BLATNER: 'rtlat was our low point. And from then until, I 

would say, about six nonths ago, we were undergoing a hiring program, 

so that from 1/1/83 we went from 953 to 7/1/83, 1121; 7/1/84, 1178; and 

as of 9/1/84, we are at 1206. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So we were catching up basically fran the 
attrition program. In reality, my initial statement -- that we only 
actually increased by 100 in three years -- is correct apparently. 

MR. BLATNER: It depends on the base line. 
C01MISSIOOER ALBANESE: The base line, when we started our 

program to 100ve, was 1/1/83 -- after we did the analysis and 
reorganization of DYFS. The base was 1/1/83. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: But the fX)int I am trying to make is that 
back in 1981 you had 20,000 cases--

CCl-1MISSIOOER ALBANESE: ( interrupting) I think it is a 
matter of the date you are using. What I explained to you is that-

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: (interrupting) I understand. 

CU-IMISSIONER ALBANESE: (continuing) --the budget that we 
were given had an attrition program in it. If I followed that buaget 
we 1r,10uld have had to lay off an additional 200 people in DYFS. We took 
another approadl and did a reorganization of DYFS an:J a fiscal review 
of DYFS, which allowed us to reorganize and 100ve on 1/1/83 fran 953 
because there was an imposed attrition program in the Division of Youth 
and Family Services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So you shifted certain titles? Is that 
what you did? 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: We IOOVed fran management fX)Sitions to 
direct care; is that correct? 

MR. 8IATNER: We also filled the vacant fX)Sitions that we 

didn't have 100ney for because we had asked for a carry forward, and the 
Legislature gave us a carry forward. So, we were able to fill those 
fX)Sitions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: By aoo large, we are trying to deal with 
double-the-caseload now, with about 100 more people than we had in 
1981. Is that fair to say? 

COMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: That Is fair. 
MR. BlATNER: That is fair to say. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: SO, there in and of itself lies one of 
the great difficulties. We need many roc,re-- How many oo you think you 
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can train and put on line in a given six-month period? I assume that 

you just don't put someone out in the field. There is training and 

other things that have to be done. Assuming, the Legislature gave you 

the whole $5 million, would you be able to put those people on-line in 

a relatively short time? 

CavJMISSIONErt ALBANESE: ·rhat is a prorated amount. With all 

cooperation that is necessary, by the end of the fiscal year we 

hopefully would have those people on board. Efforts have already been 

made to coordinate such things as additional space, etc. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: · Before I go on to a question, I have a 

couple of requests fran people who want to know whether they are going 

to testify today. As I said in the beginning, we have a lot ot 

unportant things to learn fran the Conmissioner and Mr. Blatner, and I 

don't know if we are going to get to some of the organizations that 

want to testify or some of the other people who have requested to 

testify. We are going to have another session tCXIOrrow, and we may 

even have a third session if we find that the testimony adds new 

material and new information basically on a positive and constructive 

note. If it gets repetitious, we don't have to go into repetition. As 

we get new information, we will continue these hearings for as many 

days as are necessary to get all the information so the Legislature can 

give the proper tools to the DepartrCEnt. 

We have just been joined by Assemblywoman Marlene Lynch 

Ford. Let the record note that. 

Now, another thing which has troubled me somewhat is the 

actual mission of UYFS. I have heard people say it is to protect the 

children. I have heard people say it is to preserve the family. Both 

are certainly laudable causes. Is there one set mission? 

MR. BLATNER: I can answer that. The law says that we are 

supposed to protect children and preserve families. What we were doing 

was primarily set up as a reactive action around protective services. 

It was primarily that the State goverrurent dealt with the protective 

services and the community dealt with the nonprotective services. One 

of the first things that the Canmissioner said is that we had to get 

out of this reactive situation. And, we called together a number of 
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canmunity people and we did set about writing a new DYFS mission 
statement whid.1 is organized around the idea of prevention, providing 
canmunity services to families when they do have problems so that they 
can stay out of the system or get out of the system, and then have 
protection as the backbone of the system. 

The other thing is that there was a conception on the part of 
DYFS and the public that d.1ild abuse was a State problem, and yet d.1ild 
abuse was occurring in hanes and in families. Our feeling was that we 
had to have a canplete rrobilization of State and private agencies and 
carmunity people to try to deal with these problems. So, we did have a 
long process with canrnunity people. We did draw up a new mission 
statement, which was based upon prevention, canrnunity support, and 

protection. we have put it in place. One of the things we have raised 
in our impact statement is that, with the increased reporting arx:1 the 
increased caseload, sane of the prevention and community-support 
activities that we were planning to do are obviously strained. we may 
have to retrench if we don' t get the resources. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You don't have time for those things at 
the present time because of your load, Just on the firing line, for the 
reactive material you have to do. 

MR. BLA'INER: Right. Exactly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FL~N: In the new mission nCM, what is the 
DYFS's workers first and primary goal vis-a-vis family preservation or 
child protection? 

MR. BLATNER: In terms of the dual mandate, what we have 
asked is- There was a concept of least intrusive in the former DYFS 
policy. What we have asked, when we do investigations -- and we have 
added this training to workers - is when the workers go out to be 

aggressive in either direction. So in other words, if there is a 
burnout in the home and they are going to go into foster care, we have 
given them emergency assistance rroney so that they can put that family 
in a motel oo they don't have to go into a caseload. If there is risk 
in the fainily, then the Canrnissioner's direction is to err on the side 
of safety. So, if there is a potential for fainily preservation, do 

that rrore aggressively; if there is risk of harm, do that rrore 
aggressively. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I'm thinking in terms of where you have 

conflicts. For example, when a parent is abusing a child, is your 

first goal to try to get that parent interfacing with the dlild to 

preserve the family, or is your first goal to get the family awo¥ fran 

that parent and, in effect, cut out the cancer? 

CCMMISSICNER ALBANESE: It might be to get the parent to get 

sane type of treatment if necessary; that could be one step. The 

bottcm line is to protect the child. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That is the primary goal. 

CCXvlM.ISSICNER ALBANESE: The bottau line is to protect the 

child and then to try and keep the family together if at all possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If possible, but the child is the K.ey. 

m1MISSICNER ALBANESE: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Going back to the steering corrmittee. is 

it operative now? Am I correct? 

CCXv!M.ISSIONER ALBANESE: Which steering ccmnittee? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: The one to get the workers' and the 

Department's input on line. Is that an ongoing thing now? 

CavlMISSIOOER ALBANESE: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is that one steering corrmittee 

statewide, or does each district office have a steering canmittee? How 

does that work? 

MR. BLATNER: We started out with a statewide steering 

committee. One of the issues that cane up -- our management team spent 

a lot of time in the district offices -- was that district office 

managers and workers were sitting down and talki03 a lot ot problems 

through themselves. we did rrove to a system where there will be a 

steering committee in each district office. There is a steering 

camnittee at the regional level, and there is a statewide steering 

committee to deal with statewide issues. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are the people who are on this fran 

labor, so to speak, volunteers? HON are they selected? 

MR. BLATNER: They are selected by their peers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Their peers? 

MR. BLATNER: We have clerical people; we have front-line 

workers; we have supervisors; and we have managers. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: How do the peers pick them? l)Q they have 

elections? 

MR. BLATNER: That varies frorn office to office. 'Ihey don't 

have elections. 

ASSEMBLYMAN' FLYNN: So there is no set method? 

MR. BLATNER: No. 

ASBEMBLYMAl.i FLYNN: Now, one of the things that I read 

somewhere is that at times when audits are being done of various 

district offices, the social workers have to come in out of the field 

and spend twice the arrount of time on their paperwork, so that the 

audit will look good. Is your experience along those lines? 

MR. BLATNER: It depends on what kind of job they have been 

doing on an ongoing basis. As a matter of fact, I just went out to two 

district offices where the quality assurance review was excellent, and 

their response time was 99%. Tney didn't have to spend a lot of time 

upgrading their paperwork. It was done when it should have been done, 

on the job. There are also offices which have not been doing their 

paperwork, am they probably do have to go back into the office and 

review their documentation and bring it up to snuff. So, I would say 

that all the quality assurance review does is aSk what is going on 

within the office. If people are doing their job, in terms of 

documenting their critical activities, it doesn't take a lot of time. 

It may, if they are not. 

CCXl1MISSIONER ALBANESE: It happens in hospitals too when you 

go through accreditation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: They put the push on. It is not really a 

healthy situation, but what you are saying is, it is hUinan nature. 

Now, I have also heard a lot of complaints that the people on 

the firing line don't feel they get the support from management when 

they are charged, whether correctly or incorrectly, by people, clients, 

or whatnot. Maybe that may be a perception that is incorrect. I 

wonder if you could address that, as to where you stand and what you do 

when saneone is charged within the Division? 

COMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: What kind of charge? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Let's say a client says that the social 

worker didn't do "X, Y, or z," and they, more or less, report them to 

their superior. What is the process then? Is there a grievance 

proceeding? 

MR. BLATNER: we have set up a citizen action line so people 

either clients or citizens -- can call in, arx:1 if they have issue 

regarding how we are doing our job, we will look into it. Depending 

upon the conlplaint, our citizen action line staff will go out and look 

into it and report back to us, in terms of what the procedure is. We 

have also asked managers to hold our workers accountable; we have asked 

our management team to hold our supervisors accountable. Depending on 

the situation, we will look into it and take appropriate action. 

We have also set up a case review process. We have revamped 

our unusual incident system so if there are cases that are problematic, 

we have a way to look into it. We review it, and a decision will be 

made as to what kind of action will be ta.Ken. And, we will take that 

action. 

CC:l"IJ:JJ.ISSIONER ALBANESE: I would just like to comment on how 

that started because that was my idea. I take credit for that. It is 

somewhat controversial, but I do take credit. 

I kno.v a Lieutenant Danko fran the Clark Police Department, 

who is a foster parent and who had some difficulty late in the evening 

with a foster child. What concerned me was that he wound up at my 

house at a very late hour. He had a very difficult time getting his 

problem resolved between the oourts, the police, and DYFS. As a result 

of that experience and the sharing of his frustrations, I thought that 

people should have an ability to get to tl1e top, in terms ot resolving 

many issues. In this particular case, it was a canbination of the 

courts, law enforcement, and DYr'S, and I felt strongly that a foster 

parent or other people involved in the care of children should have 

sane kind of mechanism to communicate. It wasn't neant to get anybody 

or as a squealing mechanism. It was really meant to provide sone kind 

of relief for sane community person who needed assistance or who had a 

particular concern with the handling of an individual case. That is 

exactly how that line started. I felt that person had a legitimate 

31 



problem. If it took sane kind of rrechanism -- a telephone call --
which would eventually get to rre to resolve the issue between courts, 
DYFS, and law enforcement, I thought a person should have that 
ability. He happened to know rre and cane to my house. But what about 
the other people who do not know me and can't get access to my office? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Once such a charge is lodged against a 
worker, what happens to the worker? Does he get suspended? What is 
the procedure? 

MR. BLA'INER: I would like to point out that there are also 
civil service procedures governing how we deal with our employees. 
There is also an administrative hearing process if clients have a 
grievance. What this is intended to do is to aeal with problems before 
they reach that stage. But, if there is a finding on the part of the 
supervisor that an employee has not followed his or her job description 
then we usually establish procedures of civil service to take 
disciplinary action. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Have sane workers charged that they have 
been basically fouoo guilty in the press before they ever got such a 
hearing? Have you heard charges like that fran sane of the people? 

C01MISSIONER ALBANESE: I haven't heard that charge. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I have received S<'.Xlle canplaints like 

that. 

CCfflISSIONER ALBANESE: Is there a particular case? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I don't have specific examples. Perhaps 

when we have the testimony fran the workers themselves, we may get sane 
specifics on that. I just wanted to get your reaction to it because I 
heard that they felt they were being tried and convicted in the press. 

MR. BLA.'INER: I have heard that on occasion, and I know 
exactly what happened. What we said-- I think it is an appropriate 
stance that we take. If there is a canplaint coming from wherever, our 
first stance is to re1nain neutral, until we look into it. What we have 
said, on occasion -- if there is sare big blowup or sanething - is 
that we will look into it and we will take appropriate action if 
necessary. That is what we said, and I think we staoo by it. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 1'hat is kind of what the background is? 

While we are on the subject of the press, do you have any objections to 

caseworkers talking to the press or talking to legislators about either 

positive suggestions, or even negative suggestions? 

CCXvlMISSIOOER ALBANESE: I have no concern with that. What we 

do have a concern with is discussing any particular case. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Confidentiality has to remain at all 

times, the monymity of people. In terms of where they see problems, 

you don't have any problem with them talking to the press or the 

legislators? 

MR. BLATNER: I don't think we have any problem in terms of 

proolems. I think what we do have a concern with is representing 

Division policy because you have to remember that you are dealing with 

probably th~ most sensitive area there is in life -- child abuse and 

sexual abuse in families and that kind of thing. I think we want to be 

very careful when we represent policy about how we are going to handle 

a particular- situation -- that it is cleared through Central Office. 

This is one area about which we have concern. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Isn't that a little dangerous? If 

someone has a suggestion and you have to clear it through Central 

Office and Central Office says, "We don't like that suggestion," is the 

policy then that is the end of the suggestion? 

CCMMISSIONER ALBANESE: I think 'lbm is talking about policy 

statements: This is the policy of DYFS. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Well, I'm not talking about policy 

statements. 

C<>1MISSIOOER ALBANESE: You aren't talking about suggestions, 

are you? 

MR. BLATNER: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Well, say somebody has an idea. we have 

talked a lot now today. Sanebody may cane up with an idea such as "why 

don't you do this or so legislatively?" 

CCMMISSIONER ALBANESE: Obviously the question you have asked 

me I have heard before fran others - workers ana CWA. I have no 

problem with them asking you those questions. Really, I have no 
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problem. What 'l'orn is saying is that it is one big concern I have with 

the Department of Human Services in its entirety. It is 22,UOO people 

and seven divisions. Within the divisions, there are bureaus and 

central offices. 

My big concern during the first oouple of years was what was 

the policy of the Department of Hwnan Services. It you wanted the 

policy of Human Services, I would like to be able to state that, 

although I was hearing in the field -- not only in DtFS -- that there 

were different p:>sitions, different policy statement:;. I think it is 

very clear that if you want to know the policy of the Department or the 

Division, we would like to have the opportunity to state that policy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: There is no question. No one else can 

speak for you on policy. But I am talking about suggestions. 

CCXVJMISSIONER ALBANESE: But a lot of people do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Who was Bernice Manshel? 

COMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: A fonrer Director of DYFS. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That was your predecessor? Are you 

familiar with her p:)licies in terms of stifling input fran people on 

the firing line? I have a merro that she sent out which kind of 

disturbed me. The meno was directed to the various people in the 

Division and it said that the Division's fX)licy will be that any 

suggestions for legislative change are to be sublnittect to the Office of 

Regulatory and Legislative Affairs. This was directed to everybody. 

Certainly as a legislator, I feel somewhat at a loss to 

understand why people can't CX)lrununicate with me as a legislator 

their individual ideas -- rather than having to go through a chain of 

canmand because, quite often, the chain of canmand is the problem in 

the first place. 

CC1v1MISSIONER ALBANESE: The only problem I have, within the 

Department of Human Services- If you are representing the Departrrent 

of Human Services then I would like to clear legislation that comes out 

of the Department of Human Services. Do not represent the Department 

of Human Services when in fact you are not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So that you-- In fact, I' 11 give you a 

copy of this merro if you don't have it. Perhaps you might want to 
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amend it so the people will feel free to talk to their legislators 

because I certainly would like to feel I could talk to caseworkers and 

say, "What can I do to help with your job and to help the kids in New 

Jersey?" 

MR. BLATNER: Let rre give you an example of a policy that I 

think I would want clear. When we talk about this partnership rrodel 

with the community, there has been a lot of concern about what 

infonnation can ne shared and what can't be shared. We have said, fran 

our level, J:hat if it is a foster parent who has a child, we would like 

them to share relevant medical information if the kid is going 

saneplace E·lse. And then I will get a call fran a foster parent 

saying, "Well, this caseworker said we can't have that information." 

Then it get:, to the press and that kind of thing. We want to make sure 

that when our caseworkers present that Kind of information to 

consumers, Lt is consistent with our policy. 

OfflISSIONER ALBANESE: I woula just like to make a µ>int. 

You brought up a piece of material that is not my p:>licy or part of the 

Department of Hwnan Services. 'l'hat was the first time I even knew 

there was a letter or rremorandum in existence. That is what we try to 

stifle in t.:mns of the entire Department; we speak as a department, not 

as seven separate divisions. 

A::iSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: The letter is dated August 19, 1982, and 

it is from Bernice Manshel, Director of the Division of Youth and 

Family Services. It reads as I indicated. I will give you a copy of 

it, and perhaps, as I said, you might want to rescind this because, I 

supp:>se, thLs is still the outstanding directive to the people. 

CCMMISSIONER ALBANESE: If we put out policy on behalf of the 

Department of Human Services it will be sent by rre to all divisions for 

canpliance, so I would say that is somewhat obsolete. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Hopefully, it is obsolete, but I think an 

affirmative rnerro-- Anybody working under that deparbnent would ne 

somewhat reluctant to say, "Commissioner Albanese didn't say it, but 

she pretty high up, so I better not go afoul of that." 

In The Trenton Times, yesterday, apparently some reporters 

did SOine investigative work, and I read the article. Michael Shields, 
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staff writer for The Trenton Times apparently interviewed caseworkers. 

It says "caseworkers interviewed declined to be im·ntified by their 

real names because they have been instructed by their superiors not to 

speak to reporters." Again, is that Departme,t policy, that 

caseworkers shouldn't talk to reporters except where names are not to 

be mentioned? I can understand that, but is that a Department policy? 
CCXVIMISSIONER ALBANESE: It is definitely not a Department 

policy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I also have a directive that specifically 

says "contacts with any segment of the news media, State or local 

politicians, seeking information concerning a case or our operations, 

is to only go through a supervisor." So this directive apparently 

confirms--

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: (interrupting) Is that a specific 

case that you are referring to? Are you referring to a reporter asking 

about a specific case? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: The reporter, Michael Shields -- I aon't 

know if he is here -- says, "caseworkers," plural, "interviewed 

declined to be identified." He is not necessarily talking about one 

case. He said, "In interviews last week caseworkers fran the Mercer 

County District Office said their dedication to their families was 

being severely tested by mounting pressure and increasing caseloads." 

He has apparently interviewed them as to the problems they see--

COMMISSIWER ALBANESE: ( interrupting) I see no reason why 

they wouldn't give their names if that is the way they feel. We are 

stressing that today in this testirrony. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Except that, here, we have a departmental 

memorandum that says that contacts with any segment of the news media 

or state or local politicians is not practiced unless it goes through a 

supervisor. So, maybe that should be rescinded, as well, in order that 

caseworkers can speak freely because, let's face it, the only way we 

ever get change is when we hear fran the people on the firing line as 

to what the problems are. Sometimes people at the top level are 

insulated fran this; they are afraid to talk to you, perhaps. I don't 
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know. 'Tuey may feel that if they complain to you that will hurt their 
chances for prarotion or advancement because they will sound like a 
canplainer. 

cc»1MISSIONER ALBANESE: I don't think that is true. I made 
an effort and went out to an Essex office and a Union County office and 

asked that management not be present. In fact, I sat down and talked 
for a lengthy period of time with DYFS workers on specific issues. And 
I b:?ll you, they didn't hold back in any area. As a matter of fact, 
rrost recently, I sat with sane of the CwA people and discussed issues. 
I think it is healthy to go down and talk to the line workers. I have 
made a ooncentrated effort to talk to workers about specific problems 
because it is helpful for me in coming up with overall policy to 
address the issues. So, that is on the reoord. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: And, there is no question about- I do 
like the fact that you are saying it is on the reoord. Apparently 
maybe this was before you got that closely involved with DYFS itself. 

CrnMISSIONER ALBANESE: .F'or 22,000 people--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) I knCM you can't be on 
top of everything--

C'OMMISSIONER ALBANESE: (interrupting) It is alrrost 
ridiculous to believe that someone would go out and say that you can't 
talk to reporters. What people are talking about--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) But, it says it right 
here in black and white. 

CC11MISSIONER ALBANESE: (continuing) Let me finish. We are 
concerned with the handling of a case, specifically. The public 
infonnation officer usually deals with the press to make sure that the 
facts are correct; we have all the information before something goes 
out. If it is a case, then I am ooncerned that we abide by the law and 
abide by the Department's procedure. But as far as caseworkers telling 
the Legislature about a need for improvement or how stressful they 
feel, I have no particular problem with that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do any members of the Committee want to 
ask any que:;tions? 
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ASSEMBLYWJMAN FORD: Yes. Could you elaborate upon your 

plans to hire the additional 500 caseworkers, where they would be 

allocated? 

COMMISSICT-JER ALBANESE: Okay. Let ire just give you the 

numbers -- 354 would be caseworkers, 69 would be supervisors, and 84 

would be clerical. Out of the $5 million, $1.6 million would be used 

for rentals, vehicles, furniture, etc. 

A8SEMBLY\,\IOMAN FORD: That is goin:3 to be in your budget 

request for next year? 

Ca-1MISSIONER ALBANESE: We are askin:3 for that right now. 

ASSEMBLY\\U>'JAN FORD: I also reviewed the testimony and there 

was a reference made to a request for 100 additional workers that was 

denied by the Joint Appropriations Coomi ttee. I honestly don't recall 

that. I asswre it happened. Can you elaborate, perhaps, on that? HCM 

was it presented to the Coomittee? 

COf.'vlMISSIONER ALBANESE: We made about five or six different 

requests for additional money, and one of those requests was a $3.6 

million appropriation for UYFS. 

ASSEMBLYvDMAN FORD: It wasn't struck fran your budget then? 

Is that correct? 

CCMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: No, it wasn't struck, but we did not 

get the additional funds. 

ASSEMBLYWJMAN r'ORD: It was a resolution that was suomitted? 

It just wasn't voted on at the--

C(lll)MlSSIONER ALBANESE: Resolution 286. 

ASSEMBLYvDMN F\Jl:-0.): Why didn't you just include it within 

your original budget request? 

COMMISSIONER ALBANESE: At the tirre we were puttin:3 together 

the budget, we didn't see that kind of increase. Budgets start-

Right naw we are working on the 1986 budget. As ~ moved through the 

DYFS reorganization, we saw the need and wanted to reach for higher 

levels. We then contacted the Governor's Office indicatin:3 that we 

would need those additional funds. We had several areas where we 

requested additional money, fran the tinl2 the budget was submittea to 

the time we actually went before the Joint Appropriations Committee. 
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May I respectfully request-- I know there are a lot of 
people here representing community agencies and I think it would be 
very beneficial for this bcxiy to provide some tune for these people wno 
have come -- at SOJre later date or for the rest of the day -- to 
actually provide testimony and answer questions. I believe that a gcxxi 
part of the answer to our troubled families and to our troubled 
children in this State lies with community agencies and community 
support. They are out there, they are dealing with the proolem. we 
are trying to develop a relationship of public/private partnership 
which I think it the only effective way of dealing with this problem. 
So, I respectfully request that this Committee give sane time to ask 
questions of those people ard hear their testimony. Tney are part and 
parcel now of our effort to fight this problem in the State of New 
Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: we definitely will, and for those who we 
can't accom:xiate today aoo tomorrow, I think there is enough fruitful 
information to be learned to warrant an additional session or 
sessions. 

CCMMISSIOOER ALBANESE: Thank you. I appreciate that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Next we have a representative fran the 

Corranunication Workers of America. For the record, will you state your 
name? 

STEVE KlSENTHAL: Yes, Steve Rosenthal. I am a national 
representative of the Communication \-\brkers of America. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: And, who is with you? 
JIM GALLAGHER: I am Jim Gallagher, President of the CWA, Local 1039. 

MH. ROSENTHAL: We'll be very brief today, Mr. Chairman. 
First, I just want to thank you, the members of the Committee, and 
Assemblywoman Ford for requesting these hearings. 

I think we heard something 
possibly rose-colored glasses today. 

along with the psychologist who did 

of a picture-painted DYFS through 
'I'onDrrow the union will testify, 

the stress study. We will produce 
a nwnber of caseworkers who are on the front line day in and day out, 
and wl10 have experienced serious, what we would call "harassment," for 
lack of a better term, on the part of DYFS management. 
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We heard about the irerros you produced concerning not speaking 

to legislators and the press - a very basic First Amendment right. We 

heard about steering committees established in the district offices 

throughout the State. We heard about a whole series of changes that 

are forthcoming at the Division of Youth and Family Services. 

Our concerns are twofold: nwnber one, clearly to protect the 

workers whan we represent there to ensure that they are not confronted 

with this type of stressful job; and nwnber two, that there be an 

adequate number of workers to do the job. I thin!< that in the 

testunony tomorrow, you will hear fran workers who are totally 

camnitted and dedicated to protecting the rights of the children of 

this State. A number of our members have met with legislators, and 

they have talked to the press, despite the rremos that have cane out of 

DYFS. What we have heard time ana tine again is, these people are 

totally committed. They want to do their jobs. we have had people 

stand up at meetings and say things like, "I would gladly skip the 

three-percent increase that was just given to State workers if I knew 

that 11:oney was going to be used to hire more workers to alleviate the 

problems, so that I could sleep at night and not have to worry about 

the kids." 

The caseload size throughout the State varies, but, for 

example, in Morunouth and Ocean Counties, the caseload is ':>8 or S~. We 

have caseworKers with as many as 100 to 120 cases. The Child Welfare 

League of America suggests a caseload size ot 20 to 2:i as being 

acceptable. There are a number of Federal court decisions that have 

come dawn which indicate that 20 to 25 is an acceptable level. 

Number one, we are ooncerned about our workers, and we want 

to be sure that the types of conditions they are exposed to day in and 

day out are healthy and safe. 

On equal basis, we are concerned about the kids of this 

State, and we want to ensure that the Division of Youth and Family 

Services is providing the type of service necessary to ensure that 

these kids are adequately protected. We don' t see that happening now. 

We don't feel that the workers or the union have the type of input at 

LJYFS to try to oorrect sane of the problems. As you indicated today, 
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Assemblyman Flynn, the workers on the front line probably know rrore 

about what is going on day in and day out than anybody. There is a 
total lack of communication between those workers, other than the 

steering corrmittees, and I thirik we' 11 address that in a little rrore 
length tomorrow. 

For lack of time, as I saici, I' 11 cut my statement short and 
hope that you' 11 have the time tomorrow to hear our witnesses. we 
support the Ccmnissioner's request for rrore Jobs, arrl we hope this 
Committee will recornnend that. We hope that the Assembly and Senate 
Revenue, Finance, and Appropriation Coouuittees will support that, but 
also where those resources are going to go -- not just say, "Yes, we 
need more workers," but, "where are they going to go? What types of 
support are they going to have·? Will there be rrore clerical workers to 

nelp them do their work? Will there be adequate nwnbers of 
supervisors? Will the whole system run properly?" 

The answer alone is not just to add more workers. I think we 
can de.nonstrate that tomorrow. 

A;-,SEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Hopefully, what we will hear tomorrow 
will not only be the problems, but the possible solutions. 

MR. ROSENTHAL: I hope so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Jim, do you want to add anything, or did 
Steve succinctly state what you wanted to say? 

MR. GALLAGHER: He has summed it up pretty well, but on 

behalf of being a IJYFS worker and on behalf of the IJYFS workers whom we 

represent, I would just like to thank the Cormnittee for giving us an 
opportunity to speak to you and to the public. Unfortunately, in the 
past, whether it be through misinformation or whatever, there has been 
an atnosphere in DtFS where tne workers have felt that not only 
couldn't they speak to the press, but they also couldn't speak to their 
electea officials. 

I want to thank you, Assemblyman, for clarifying that. I 
would also like to thank Coonnissioner Albanese for explaining his 
position, and I hope he will put that position out to the people in 

UYFS. 
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I think what you will hear tomorrow will be that besides 

having a group of deaicated people who are being emotionally and 

physically ground into the dirt for the jobs they are doing, you are 

going to hear of fear - fear in the lJYFS offices. Tt1e workers who are 

caning here tcm:>rrow are OJming forth to testify, even though rrost of 

them are fearful that they might have repercussions against them. I 

think the Comnittee should know that. 

Again, I thank you for allowing us the opportunity to address 

you today and again tomorrow. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'l'hank you. 'l'ne next witness we have is 

Betty Wilson, President of the Center for Non-Profit Corporations, who 

was fonnerly a member of this house am an esteemed colleague. Hav are 

you today, Betty? 

BE'l"lY WIISCH: Fine. Assemblyman, I have sane copies of my testirrony 

if you would like to have them. I won't read it word for word; you can 

read it yourselves. You have a lot of testinony to hear, so I will 

summarize what I have put in my statement. 

The Center for Non-Profit Corporations is a statewide 

advocacy organization for nonprofit groups in New 

appreciate this opportunity to speak today frcm 

perspective on the needs of DFYS. 

Jersey. We 

the ccmnunity 

You've heard a great deal fran the Camnissioner about the 

demand for services having gone up and the increased public awareness 

of child abuse. I don't think that is anything new, but I think it 

bears repeating. That has oontriouted to the caseworker overload and 

their sense of burnout. 

All of the reports that cane in have to be investigated. I 

think the reporting goes back, Assemblyman, to the early days when you 

and I were both freshmen legislators and when Pat Dodd introduced 

legislation. The repxting is not new, but the public awareness is 

certainly new, and the growing sense that there is sanething that can 

be done about it is also relatively new. 

We appreciate the increased support for caseworkers fran the 

Joint Approvriations Canmittee over tne years. Unfortunately, DYFS has 

not been able to keep up. We don't say this as a criticism; it is 
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quite the oontrary. Who oould have ever predicted that the number of 
reported abuses would yo up tran 200,000 to 400,0UO per year in Just d 

oouple of years? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That is nationwide? 
MS. WILSON: That is here in New Jersey. It is incredible; 

it is just incredible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: In New Jersey? 

MS. Wil.SON: They are reported abuse cases. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Oh, reported, all right. Not active 

cases. 

MS. WILSON: Of course, the Department people are better at 
doctunenting this than I am, but from what I understand, at least half 
of them are substantiated; therefore, there is casework follow-up that 
has to be taken. 

This is an unprecedented situation, and that is what is 
called for here sare unprecedented action on your part. In pursuing 
a solution, we urge you to keep at the forefront the historic 
partnership between the community and DYFS. This has been a symbiotic 
relationship that has developed over many, many years. The community 
nonprofit groups are the ones the DYFS worKers turn to, because without 
the community groups, there would be no resources. There would be no 
place to turn for child care, after-school care, abuse prevention, 
homemaker services, or whatever is needed for that pdrticular cnild and 
that particular tarnily. 

In closing, I want to say that in the 12 or so years that 
I've been either working directly with DJ:i'YS, as a local elected 
official, as Vice Chairperson of the Institutions, Health and Welfare 
Committee in the Assembly, and as the person who fonned the first 
day-care task force -- or, in my current position as an advocate for 
the Non-Profit Corporations -- I've never before seen such a rich blend 
of community services and groups serving as equal partners with the 
State. we are encouraged and heartened by that. 

I was particularly pleased to note that in the Commissioner's 
testinony, i.n seeking additional support to meet this problem, he asks 
for support of the partnership -- the community, as i,..rell as the 
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caseworkers. we welcane your reliance on the community, and we 

appreciate the trust and respect you have shown us. we also ask that 

our other partner -- in this case, DYFS -- receive sane help now too. 

Out of a strong partnership, the children aoo the families in New 

Jersey will be the winners. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I have one question. I'm confused about 

the numbers. In the C001T1issioner's report, he said that we are running 

now at a rate of 45,000 reports per year. You used a figure of 

400,000. 

MS. WII.SON: I may be wrong. I hope I'm wrong, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Maybe that is nationwide. Could that be 

nationwide? 

ASSEMBL~ FORD: Assemblyman, no, I think the 45,000, as 

I understand it, are the open cases that are under investigation and 

where referrals have been made to the prosecutor. That is the number I 

understand as being the accurate number. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: No, it says, "The number of rep)rted 

cases of child abuse has increased 42% in one year. We are now 

averaging 123 per day, or one new rep)rt of child abuse every 12 

minutes. That should total 45,000 reports by the year's end." I don't 

want the Conunittee leaving here with wrong numbers. If we are dealing 

with 45,000, then we need "x" number of caseworkers. If we are dealing 

with 400,000, then--

(Audience indicates that correct figure is 45,000) 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'LYNN: All right, let's accept--

MS. WILSON: ( interrupting) I am prepared to say that I am 

wrong. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay, somebody probably just typed an 

extra "O" in there. There is no problem. 

The problem has doubled in the last year. •rhat is the key, 

and you are looking for the community, DYFS, and the Legislature to 

work in harrrony. 

MS. WILSCN: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYt-W-J FLYNN: Thank you, Betty. Our next witness is 

Catherine DeCheser, Executive Director of the Cornnunity Planning & 
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Advocacy Council, Human Services Coalition of Canrlen County. If I 

mispronounced your name, please correct me. 

CATHERINE A. DeCBESER: My name is Catherine DeCheser. I am the 
Executive Director of the Canmunity Planning and Advocacy Council/The 
Human Services Coalition of Caroc1en County (CPAC/HSC). Our agency 
represents aver 250 public and private nonprofit agencies which provide 
services to thousands of Canrlen County citizens. We are recognizea by 

the Board of Chosen Freeholders and the Canrlen County United Way as 
their official planning and advisory txxiy for human services. 

I am also a rrember of the Governor's Task Force on Child 

Abuse '!'he Sub-Committee on Prevention. Of my 24 years in social 
v.ork, beginning as a DYFS caseworker in 1~60 - parenthetically, may I 
add, my caseload was 150 families -- half has been spent in the public 
government sector and half in the private nonprofit sector. I also 
participatE.>d as a canmuni ty member in the development of the lJYr"'S 

Mission Statement. 

I am here today representing our carmuni ty' s concern that 
this Committee's work result in the recognition that for the first time 
in more than two decades, the bureaucratic system called DY'FS is 
undergoing a massive institutional change which we welcane as long 

overdue and vitally necessary. We support these institutional changes, 
not just as a revitalization of our State's bureaucratic social service 

aelivery system, but as a rebirth of the origins of social work in this 
country. The Mission Statement embodies the philosophy fran those 

origins which date back to the old neighborhood settlement concept when 
we witnessed neighbors and cnmmunities caring about each other and each 
other's children. It is a philosophy which is rooted in our 
Judeo-Christian ethic that we are our brother's keeper, and that we 
have a moral, as well as spiritual, responsibility to share in the 
problems of our neighbors, their families, the environment, and the 
social conditions in eadl of our respective carrnunities. 

As times changed, government became IIK)re involved, and we 

turned less to eadl other arx:I our neighbors, arx:I rrore toward government 
for the supports and solutions to our social problems. The balance of 
caring and sharing on a personal level tipped in the airection of more 
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dependence on an impersonal goverrunent to provide the solution as the 

panacea for solving these problems. 

As legislators besieged by your constituents al:x>ut social 

concerns, you are in the unenviable position of having to tell your 

constituents that all of these concerns cannot be addressed by 

government. Some, such as child abuse, must be addressed by 

government, but even here, government cannot solve the problem alone. 

What is required - and I quote now fran the new UYFS Mission Statement 

-- "is a shared responi,ibility to \oK:>rk together in meeting the needs of 

individuals and families, placing client ana community conc..."'erns al:x>ve 

those of organizational and buceaucratic practices." 

We are deeply concerned about implementing the philosophy, 

the goals, and the objectives outlined in the IJYFS Mission Statement, 

whidl is a document representing a departure fran the institutionalized 

mind-set that goverrunent, through DYFS alone, is responsible for the 

proolerns of families and children in our canmunities. while this 

document recognizes the legal DYFS mandates to protect children, it is 

revolutionary, visionary, and challenging in its precept that the 

private community must join with DYFS to create social change. If we 

are to attack the causes of child abuse, neglect, and family violence, 

we must give new meaning, not lip service, to public/private 

partnership, with each ot our local canmunities joining our DYr'S 

colleagues in the super-human responsibilities they encounter in their 

work with families. These are not DYFS kids or DYFS families. 'l'hese 

are our kias and our families in our communities. They belong to us 

collectively, as do their dreams, their agonies, and their defeats. 

We, in the private sector, have a noral responsibility to share the 

ourdens of government workers in addressing these problems. 

This, in effect, is what the DYF'S Mission Statement 

cnallenges us to do. It calls for an increase in casework positions in 

accordance with the Child Welfare League of America standards, while 

simultaneously calling for the rebirth of eadl of our corrrnunity's 

canmitment to the sharing, caring, and involvement we once had. The 

Mission Statement is a test of our spirit and our willingness as 

citizens to join hands with our DYFS colleagues to close ran.ks as team 
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players in ridding our canmunities of social problems which create the 

stressful environment in which children are abused and families fall 

apart. It begins with a commitment to the strengthening of 

communities. In strengthening cornrnunities, there must be an expansion 

of community services, as well as a recommitment of existing resources 

to work with our most troubled families. 'I'he churches must becorre more 

involved; so must our schools, our synagogues, our police, our local 

governments, and our neighbors. We must promote the development of 

rrore prevention through pro-active policies and programs, not just 

reactive poli.cies, as we are na.v doing in response to the crisis of 

widespread child abuse. 

Much has been written about the failure of the "great 

society" programs, and government has been criticized tor throwing 

n10neyf, away in an attempt to eliminate fX)verty aoo social problems. 

Ha.vever, we, as a social work profession, must look critically to 

ourselves for the answer to why many of these programs failed. 'lbe 

"great society" turned us into the "great competitors" for the almighty 

govEirnment dollar. We learned how to build bigger empires out of our 

agencies in the private sector, and larger bureaucracies in the 

government sector. We failed because we ead1 thought we could ao it 

alone. We failed because we became so consumed with competing with 

each other over territoriality, over who could get the rnost bucks, that 

we lost sight of the need to sit down, plan, and reason with each other 

for- the common good. 

We cannot affor-d to allow ourselves the selfish luxury of 

continuing to be the "great competitors." Therefore, we, in the 

private sector, support the need for additional funds tor our

colleagues in DYFS to increase their ranks to enable them to perform 

the job they are legally mandated to do in the area of dlild abuse and 

neglect. However, we submit that DYFS cannot do the job alone; they 

cannot bring about the changes in the camnunity which will help them 

strengthen families. 'rhey can only manage case problems. We, in the 

community, can bring about those changes by sharing responsibilities 

with our DYFS colleagues. They can successfully assist a mother who 

has abused her children, only to see that family fall apart again 
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because there isn't adequate housing, employment, or day care to 

support the progress they helped that J[k)ther make. 

This administration and the DYFS Management Teains call for a 

balance and sharing between government anct the private sector to 

ameliorate the problems of child abuse, family dysfunction, and family 

violence. They have welcomed the participation of the cam1unity 

challenging us to be creative and pro-active, out have held us 

accountable in tKM we are using public tunas in servicing families and 

children. 

We respectfully urge the members of this Committee to ensure 

the continuation of that balance, the expansion of ccmmunity services, 

the support of existing resources, and the philosophy that a 

public/private partnership is a vital canponent for bringing about 

healthy institutional change. 

We urge you to consider funding DYFS at a level that enables 

the State to hire additional caseworkers, but also provides funding to 

support and expand existing and additional ccmmunity services which 

will enable us to provide our DYFS colleagues with the resources within 

our respective communities to facilitate the strengthening of families 

and children. 

We recognize that, as elected State officials, you have a 

difficult decision to make abOut the State surplus whidl exists today. 

We are cognizant of the fact that if you decide to recarmend giving 

more funds to social services, you are accountable to all of us who are 

tax-paying constituents. 

In closing, while what I am about to say does not 

specifically relate to the questions this committee has been convened 

to investigate, it is germane to the physical aoo mental well-being of 

the citizens of this State. We pray that in deliberating your decision 

to recommend more funding for DYFS as the agency charged with 

strengthening family life, you consider what the Reverend Jesse Jackson 

said in a recent speech, which must be taken out of the realm of 

partisan politics. Rather it should be taken as a rroral and spiritual 

test of this nation: "We are called to a perfect mission ••• to feed the 

hungry, to clothe the naked, to house the haneless, to teach the 
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illiterate, to provide jobs for the jobless, and to choose the human 

race over the nuclear race." 

Thank you -- end of stateinent. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What you have said, I don't tnink anybcx:iy 

oould disagree with. Certainly, the ideal sounds almost like sanething 

that Plato's New Republic would have. As legislators, what can we do 

to implement your suggestions? If that took you by surprise--

MS. DeCHESER: No, it didn It. I have reread the Mission 
Statement a couple of times; I've reredd the Impact Staternent. I was a 

DYFS casewor.K:er. I may not look the age, but 2S years ago, (laughter) 

nryr first job was at DYFS. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I won't toud1 that one. (laughter) 

MS. DeCHESER: I had 150 families. I started at 1100 Raymond 

Boulevard in Newark, and it was frustrating -- extremely frustrating. 

The rrost frustrating thing that I experienced in 1 %0 and I'm 

hearing this fran some of my caseworker colleagues toctay was the 

lack of resources in the cornmuni ty. They cannot do the job by 

themselves. 'I'hey can bearing manage the cases, even if the paperwork 
load is reduced. 'l'herefore, there needs to be oontinuing community 

services to whid1 the DYFS workers can refer. 

'l'he children and the families have to be seen in the context 

of a network, a system, a sharing, not with government over here, 

bureaucracy over here, and OJmmunity agencies over there. The bottan 

line of what I am sayil19 to you is, yes, 9ive us more casewor.K:ers, but 

also give us the additional funds the Commissioner asked for to 

provide, expand, and support those existing services in the conmunity 

to which our DYFS colleagues can refer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Of course, money alone--

M.S. DeCHESER: (interrupting) - will not solve the problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: As you pointed out, tne "great society" 
threw big lumps of noney out, but apparently you are not satisfied witl1 

the results of the "great society." 

MS. DeCHESER: Because--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) So, money alone doesn' t 

do it. 

49 



MS. DeCHESER: Assemblyman Flynn, money alone doesn't do it. 

The difference between then and nON, as we have learned fr-an the new 

federalism, is that we have been forced to sit down and begin to plan 

together and share resources. That did not happen back in the 19bU' s. 

We were all greedy; we all grabbed the bucks for- ourselves. 

Let ne give you an illustration of what happened. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is it happening nON? 

MS. DeCHt:SER: What is happening now in our own corrmunity-

For example, we had goverrunent funds become available, as well as 

foundation funds, to feed the hungry and l10use the poor and homeless. 

We had abOut 20 different agencies that all wanted to compete and go 

after those bucks. Our Human Services Coalition said, "We will suppxt 

none of you who acts as an individual. If all 20 of you will come to 

the table, and bring DYFS and the Welfare Board in, we can sit down and 

figure out hON we are going to take those bucks, and hON there will be 

one lead agenc.y in that coalition." Let's call it a feed consortium or 

a housing consortium. "Each of you -- one becomes the lead agency and 

shares the funds with the rest of the agencies." In this way, we are 

going to maximize the services to the people within the canmunity. we 

are going to feed more people, and we are goin<J to house more people. 

That is the thing that is going on right nON between 

ourselves and DYFS in the planning process in the corrmuni ty. That 

didn't happen before; tnis is revolutionary. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNl\J: Do you see that happening in other 

counties besides Camden? 

MS. JJeCHESER: Yes, I see it beginning to happen. Camden, if 

you've read-- Of course, you have seen 60 Minutes, which is S01netl1ing 

we are trying to live down. I'm originally from Newark in Essex 

County. I was born and raised there. You've seen the latest headlines 

which say that Camaen is the poorest City in the State of New Jersey. 

It needs a lot of resources. 

I think we had a very unique mechanism in place in which DYFS 

chose us as the demonstration to be able to :implement this -- grass 

roots community support, input fran our local freeholders fran our 

United Way. DYFS is in a partnership with us at the local level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'LYNN: And, you do see it working? 
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MS. DeCHESER: We ::;ee it >\Qrking, not without problems, but 
it is working. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Very good, thank you for caning. 
MS. DeCHESER: '!'hank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: We are going to go about another 10 

minutes today. I would ask that those who have prepared statements, 
when we're finished, if you will not be able to come back again, please 
leave those prepared statements with us and we will incorporate them in 
the transcript. 

'rhe next person on tne list, it' he is still nere, is f'ather 
Edward Walsh. (not present) Okay, we' 11 pass him up. Ciro Scalera? 
Mr. Scaler a is the Executive Director of the Association for Children 
of New Jersey. 

CIID OCALERA: Assemblyman, this is Cecilia Zalk ind of our staff. we 
have a statement that we IM)uld like to submit tarorr<:M. I do not plan 
to read it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: All right, don't read it, so that we will 
have tin1e for as 1nany people as we can today. 

MR. SCALERA: I am commenting as a representative of the 
Association for Children. We are a statewide child advocacy group. We 
trace our roots back almost 100 years in tenns of children's issues in 
this State. we were actively involved in the original drafting of the 
Dodd Law -- the child abuse and neglect law -- and, we have been active 
in the legislative arena on a number of bills and issues related to 
child abuse and neglect. 

Our purpose here today is really twofold: On the one hand, 
we want to support the Division's need for IIDre resources due to the 
increased de.mand upon the already overburdened staff and services. We 
must, h<:Mever, balance this support with the need for DYFS 
accountability. We cannot advocate for new Division resources without 
some accountability both to the new systems and to the systems that 
they already have in place. 

There are various dimensions as to how this accountability 

must be implemented, and one certainly concerns the DYFS central office 
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staff in their follow-through on sane of the new policy directives. 

we, too, participated in the process that lead to the development of 

the Mission Statement, and to the conmitment to change the document. 

We support those policies that are embodied there, as you, I'm sure, 

will hear from many other people. 

On the other hand, support for that doesn't necessarily mean 

that per se the system which is needed to make that work is 

autanatically going to occur, and that it is going to beCOJre a 

reality. There is going to be a need for a lot of hard worK, and sane 

planning and coordination to ensure that this new approach, which the 

community and DYFS have agreed to embark on, does result in sane 

positive kinds of changes for children and families. So, we are 

concerned. Yes, we support it, but we are concerned in terms of how it 

will be implemented. 

One thing we hope will happen, Assemblyman, as you hold your 

hearings, is that there will not be posturing in tenns of fault 

attribution between either the manag6nent of DYFS or the caseworkers. 

I know that tomorrow you will hear presentations. We hope that as 

people come before you, as you 1nentioned earlier, you will ask them for 

positive suggestions as to ways they can move this problem and this 

agenda forward, and that we not get bogged down in attributing fault, 

because we don't believe that will ultimately result in any benefits to 

children. We're concerned that if that is what happens, then, in fact, 

potential harm could result. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: well, certainly, that is the focus of our 

Conmittee. First, you have to identify problems, and then if we do 

identify them, focus on positive solutions to them. We are not going 

to try to say who 10 years age, five years ago, or two years ago- It 

is what is going to happen fran now on. 

MR. SCALERA: I'm pleased to hear that. 'l'he kinds of changes 

we would like to see irrplemented in terms of the new resources involve 

looking at the question of, "HON will the new workers be allocated?" 

Obviously, there are areas of greater need in terms of both where the 

abuse and neglect reports are coming fran and the active caseload 

sizes. Sane accountability, sane decision-making regarding hON these 

new resources will be utilized needs to be addressed. 
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Additionally, there is the question of the corrmuni ty 
services' specialist. When we submit our statement to you, you will 
see that as Kathy has mentioned, the lack of resources in the local 
ccmnunity has been a nagging ana ongoing problem in our State for 
years. we believe that the policy document sets the kind of direction 
towards getting these resources on board, but it is going to take a 
little rrore than just a contract here or a contract there. There is 
going to have to be a canprehensive look at this conmunity-contracting 
process, making sure that the workers and the contracting process are 
integrated. 

Additionally, we support and, we hope that a cornnunity 

services' specialist position will be designed in every district office 
so that this kind of effort in terms of providing assistance to 
the line worker can be provided. In the end, we feel this will do nore 
to help alleviate the burden of treinendous caseloads. 

There are other broader ongoing accountability mechanisms 
that, again, we touch on in our testimony. I just quickly want to 
review three of them. 

One is that when the new management team came into place, 

they established a quality assurance program. Those reports -- the 
quality assurance reports -- have not been released to the public, but 
we know that they haven't been glowing reports. 'l'hey haven't found 
great things happening. There have been problems, real probleins. We 

believe that the corrrnitnent, both in terms of pursuing the quality 
assurance program and implementing things like the Citizen Action Line, 
are accountability mechanisms that are important and need to be 
perceived. Even though, right now, the State is trying to respond to a 
very important crisis, you cannot ignore sare of these established 
ongoing accountability mechanisms. 

A second ongoing accountability mechanism is the child 
placement review system, a systen that our organization, as advocates 

and others around the State, felt was needed to protect children fran 
the drift of foster care. It is important that as we begin to look at 

sare of these questions that attention and cooperation between the 
Division and the review boards be dealt with. 
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Finally, the last kind of accountability mechanism deals with 

a trend that had taken place in the early 1~70's and continues to this 

day, which is the concept of permanency planning for our children. 

Permanency planning means that the State, the caseworkers, the 

management system, and all the people who are going to be involved in 

this process fran an early point in the child's life, begin to make 

sane decisions around, "What are the kinds of permanent needs that 

child will have?" If it is in the home, then they should apply, as 

diligently as they can, the services that the child needs to maintain 

in a natural family. If that is not going to be feasible, then in an 

aggressive way, they should take the other types of alternatives which 

will be designed to put that child in a permanent-type of home setting. 

Again, the tenptation when a system is faced with a crisis is 

to respond to that as they should, aoo perhaps not to continue its 

commitment in sane of these ongoing accountability areas. We feel 

there must be some balance both in terms of what the agency will do and 

in terms of what legislative scrutiny will do. This balance should be 

maintained in the interest of protecting our children. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank you. 

MR. SCALERA: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Does any member of the Committee want to 

ask any questions? (negative res!JOnse) All right, if not, then we 

will be looking forward to your full report. We thank you for taking 

the time to cor~ here. 

MR. SCALERA: Thank you, Assemblyman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Our next scheduled witness is Mary 

Wells. If you can, since we are short on time, please try to touch on 

new infonnation. 

MRY WELLS: All right. I nave written testimony. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: All right. We' 11 reproduce it and make 

it part of our appendix. 

MS. WELLS: Mr. Chairman, Dr. Colburn, Assemblyman Foy, and 

other Assembly people, I'll run through this quickly. 

First, the DYFS mandate is perhaps the rrost critical, rrost 

demanding, and rrost elusive in the State of New Jersey. we must 
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protect or children. '!bat is as basic, as fundamental, and as 
compelling as any other priority there could possible be under the 
stars. Yet, how difficult it is to do so, and how painful it is when 

we fail. Each tine we read in the paper about a child who has been 
abused in any way, I am sure we all touched and all 100ved to try 
harder, to lock further, to be ever vigilant, and to prevent such hurt. 

I am here today to speak in three capacities: first, as the 
Executive Director of Family Services of Burlington County; second, as 
the Convener of the Southern Regional Council of Human Services; and, 
third, as Chair of the National Association of Social Work •rask Force 
on Families and Children. 

The responsibility for our children lies with eadl of us in 
all of our communities. It certainly cannot be conveniently assigned, 
and then forgotten, to a State bureaucracy. 

Perhaps the best-written document we have had spelling out 
this philosophy comes fran the Mission Statement put out by DYF'S this 
past summer. In it we have a clear understanding of the importance of 

shared responsibilities with the State, the e<mnunity, families, and 
the individual, with no partner playing any heavier role than the 
other. This is a truly radical approach. 

We need to develop this sense of partnership and this sense 
of power, for ironically, out of this kind of power, we find one of the 
100st abiding answers to child abuse. 

Our Agency has provided intensive services to families with 
child abuse for the past 10 years, first funded under 'l'itle 20 and then 
through the State of New Jersey. We have come to be very familiar with 
the dynamics of child abuse. Perhaps the single largest comrron 
denominator ingredient is the sense of powerlessness the parent feels 
in a mass-media society -- powerless at work, powerless from being 
unemployed, and even powerless in makia.3 their own child behave. Fran 
this frustration, we have seen some of the rrost tragic cases of broken 
families and child abuse. 

Now, today, the issue that you must address as our 

legislators is to oversee how we are doing. Very frankly, the jury is 
out. On the one hand, we have a docwnent that represents the best of 
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all thinking; on the other hand, we have nurned-out, overworked DYFS 

workers. And yet, on another hand - if there is such a thing as three 

hands -- we have just touched the beginning of a full partnership of 

cornnuni ty services to unctergird and help families at risk, aoo even tc 

speak in terms of prevention. 

We are at a crossroads. we must be careful that we do not 

establish rivalry arong the various sectors involved in the solution t0 

the problem. We must nurture carmuni ty invol ve.ment at the sane tirne 

that we support the overworked DYFS caseworker. We must be sure that 

the workers we are sending out on the nost difficult, frustrating cases 

have solid training in human services -- for example, that they have a 

bachelor's in social work, or are supervised by a person with a 

master's in social work -- people who have background and insight into 

the helping process. 

Finally, we must support each other financially. I hope you 

don't say, "Well, let's pick up the $5 million." I nope you look at 

the entire package that has been put in front of you, because I think 

that kind of partnership is the key. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That is the '$7.8 million? 

MS. WELLS: Yes, the additional part that was for 

residential, as well as community back-up services. 

We must support each other rrorale-wise. Morale doesn't only 

come fran rroney; it comes fran a sense of power, commitment, and 

purpose, as well as fran a working relationship. Sometimes there is 

a gap between our words and our actions. Any of us who are parents car: 

relate to that. We must work cooperatively, and we must support each 

other. Each time a child is hurt, we are diminished, and because WE 

have committed ourselves to prevent child abuse, we face that 

possibility on a daily basis. You must understand how serious an issue 

that is. 

In -=,;:c~r :.o get beyond the risk, the dan3ers, and the 

disappointments; we must help families to break long-standing patterns 

of abuse -- liter-ally a life-and-death struggle. The stakes are hi9hr 

and it is our children who hang in the balance. We must support DYFS, 

the community sector, and families at risk. we must protect our 

... , . 
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ASS~LYMAN FLYNN: Thank you. We are going to conclude at 

this point for today. We are going to start in this roan again 

tanorrow at 10:30. Tonorrow we have witnesses already scheduled, 

including Or. Cahill, who has written a report on stress am:>ng DYFS 

workers. We have a number of DYI-'S workers who are caning in to give us 

the benefit of their thinking. 

When we have concluded with those witnesses, we will then 

pick up on the list we have today for those people who would like to 

cane back and testify tanorrow. For those who can't come back 

tomorrow, or who prefer not to care back, please leave your remarks, if 

you have them, with Mr. Frakt. If you prefer, you can mail your 

remarks to the oversight COfllilittee to the attention of Steven Frakt, 

and we will make those part of the record and part of our ultimate 

report. 

I want to thank everyone for being here today. I'm sorry we 

couldn't reacn you all, but, as you can see, it is a voluminous topic. 

A lot of multifaceted questions have been raised today. We are not 

going to get all of the answers, but if we get just a few of the 

answers, the children of the State will be benefited. Thank you. 
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AF.l'ER 8ECESS: (October 23, 1984) 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: we are the Assembly oversight Corrmittee. 

This is hearing number two on problems related to caseworkecs at DY!~'S. 

The first witness toctay is Dr. Janet Cahill fran the 

Department of Psychology at Glassboro State College. Gooa norning, 

Doctor. 

JANET CAHIU., Ph.D.: Good norning. Am I to use both of these mikes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes. For the benefit of those in the 

audience, there is a recording being made of the proceedings ana a 

transcript will be available, I guess, at a reasonable cost to those 

who need it, in about two weeks. 

Dr. Cahill, you have done some extensive research on the 

problems ot caseworkers and the stress concerning caseworkers. I 

v.Qnder if you would give us the benefit of some of this research. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. Let me surrunarize the project I did. Just 

briefly by way of introduction, I am an Associate Professor of 

Psychology at Glassboro ::;tate College. I have a Ph.D. in Clinical 

Psychology. For the past five years, I have maintained a research 

program examining the relationship between economic trends and mental 

health. I have presented this research in several scientific 

puolications, as well as forums such as the American Psycholoc3ical 

Association. so, I just wish to inform the Committee that I do bring 

some expertise in this area to my testim:my. 

Specifically, I would like to describe my most recent 

research project which addressed stress levels of DYFS social workers. 

I became interested in this topic because my prior research had 

suggested that the last deep economic recession would increase the 

amount of people who would be asking for services fran areas such as 

DYFS. Since there was a likelihood that resources and funding would 

decrease in these agencies, I was concerned that there v.ould be an 

increase in demand and a decrease in resources at about the saiue time. 

I was interested in now this would affect the health and ability of 

DYFS workers to function. 
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Let me emphasize that this research was done independently. 

It was financed by the College. I initiated this project myself. I 

approached CWA, the Communication workers Union, in order to gain 

access to the DYFS employees. But, I would like to emphasize that the 

CWA did not influence or finance this project. This was a study aone 

by the College. 

Now, let me briefly tell you what I did. I developed a 

survey of about 187 questions, which I administered to 143 DYFS social 

\\Orkers. The study was designed basically to measure their stress 

levels, how well they were functioning and, if I could, to examine what 

worKing oonditions might be contributing to high levels of stress if, 

in fact, I found that. Buried in the survey were two distinct scales 

which were designed to measure burnout and psychological health. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you define "burnout" for us? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. My major finding basically was that DYFS 

socia.l workers in New Jersey are experiencin:J levels of burnout that 

were higher than national norms, that is to say that when we canpared 

them to other human service workers, they were havin:J higher burnout 
levels than national statistics. 

The other interestin:J thin:] about that particular scale was, 

despite very high burnout levels, DYr'S workers seemed to be able to 

maintain a high level of personal COillilitment. So, they seemed to be 

concerned about their workplace and were working very hard but, also, 

they were havin:J high levels of burnout. 

The second major finding I found was that they were under 

considerable psychological strain. They scored significantly lower on 

a psychological scale than the population as a whole. This is not to 

say that this population is in any way crazy or deviant. It just means 

they are under a lot of psychological strain. 

ASSfilffiLYMAN F'LYNN: Before you go on, when you say "burnout," 

so we all know what you mean, what is burnout? 

DR. CAHILL: Okay. Burnout means they are emotionally 

exhausted. They are having trouble sleeping. They feel very 

demoralized by their work. They are havin:J some problems with their 

families because of euotional exhaustion and fatigue. They have a 
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sense of being overwhelmed. 'fhe reason that is important is, those 

kinds of experiences are highly related to later illnesses. In 

other ~rds, first you get burned out, and then you get seriously sick. 

ASSEMBLYMAN li'LYNN: So, it is not just quitting then. Many 

of them can stay on the job and be burned out? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes, and that is what is remarkable about these 

people. I was surprised to see this. They are very burned out, yet 

someho.,, they are trying to do a good job. I think they are paying a 

high price for that in terms of their o.,,n health. 

A particular concern, I tl1ou9ht, was that in addition to 

their o.,,n personal health, this seems to be spilling over into their 

families. Eighty-three percent reported more family argwnents when 

they were stressed at their jobs. In terms of physical health, I found 

similar results, very high levels of stcess symptoms, such as stomach 

problems, headaches, and sleep disturbances. Again, let Ilk:! emphasize 

that the literature is very clear that these kinds of early symptoms 

are related to more serious illnesses down the road, such as heart 

disease, ulcers, and hypertension. The finding of high physical 

problems is striking because this is a young sample. Of the people I 

surveyed, 6% of them were under the age of 45, and 41% were under the 

age of 35. so, they are showing physical signs of strain at a young 

age. This does not bode well for their later health. It is not, as I 

said, related to chronic disease. 

Also, I think these findings are somewhat conservative, 

because I did not survey the \'tQrst -- I should say what were repocted 

to me as sare of the worst -- offices, such as Newark. So, I think 

this is probably a conservative estunate of the symptoms. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Excuse rre foe a second. 

DR. CAHILL: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Geographically, if I recall, this was done 

in Central Jersey and South Jersey. 

DR. CAHILL: Central and South, yes. I can I t say this 

because I didn't do it, but my assumption is that if we went into sane 

of the North Jersey offices, this would even be worse and nnre 

striking. 

ASSEMBLY1"1AN fLYNN: Were Ui~sc! anonymous guest ionna i ct-:s? 
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OR. CAHILL: Yes. No one saw the results except myself, and 

I do not have the names of the individuals. so, they were totally 
anonymous. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Did the individuals know the purpose of 

the questionnaire? 

DR. CAHILL: They knew it was a general questionnaire about 

stress, but they didn't know what I was particularly looking for. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. 

DR. CAHILL: I then tried to figure out what in the workplace 

might be contributing. Let me just swnmarize again. There were high 

levels of burnout; surprisingly, however, they were able to maintain 

some personal commitment to their jobs. There were high physical 

stress syrnptans and high psychological stress symptans. I then tried 

to see what were reported as the roost significant aspects of the 

workplace which could be oontributing to these results. '!he single 

ITK}St important aspect, obviously, was that they reported extremely high 

caseloads. Less than 3% reported having a caseload they oould handle. 

Clearly, they are substantially above the Federal guidelines of 20 to 
25 children per worker. 

'l'he seoond biggest problem they reported, in addition to 

caseload, was not having enough managerial backup. They are feeling -

fran what I can gather fran the study -- that they have to make 

substantial decisions without good managerial backup. If they make a 

mistake, they feel as if they will be held accountable, even though 

they do not have enough resources to handle the job appropriately. If 

they are right, they do not get any positive feedback; if they are 

wrong, they are concerned about being harassed or perhaps scapegoated 

by managerrent. 

The third biggest problem was paperwork. 'Iwo-thirds of this 

sample informed me that they are Sf.lending 40% of their time on 

paperwork. This is of large concern. '!hat means they are not seeing 

clients or providing services. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Forty percent? 

OR. CAHILL: Forty percent of their time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: May I ask you a question at this point? 

DR. CAHILL: Sure. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Did they complain, or did your responses 

indicate that there was insufficient support in terms of secretarial 

staff, and things like that? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. They reported a baekl03 of paperworK. In 

fact, they don't seem to be able to close the cases they need to close, 

because they just literally do not have the time to get to the 

paperwork. '!hey spend that much time on paperwork partly because they 

are afraid of making a mistake, of having a child being injur-ed, and 

then not having the documentation there. I think that is a concern for 

the amount of services that are being provided, since they seem to be 

spending that much tline on repetitive paperwork. 

I have just a couple of more points on this. There were 

major concerns about training. Seventy-seven percent of the sample 

felt that they had been inadequately trained to handle the demands of 

the job. Certainly, fran a clinical perspective they are handling an 

extremely difficult population. There has been an increase of sexual 

abuse referrals to this agency, and many of these worker-s feel they 

need additional training to handle the job. 

There are two last rnints, I w:>uld say, just based on the 

survey. There are concerns about security. It seems as if they are 

concerned not just about security in their w:>rkplace, but they report 

incidents of being robbed, being threatened by clients, neecting to go 

into areas where they do not feel safe and do not have adequate backup, 

and then, generally a poor warking environment, basic things like 

needing to talk to clients about very private affairs and not having a 

private place to do it. You know, there is too much phone-ringing in 

the office, too many things to respond to, and they do not have time to 

sit and adequately discuss thinys with a client in privacy. 

Now, my conclusions fran this study in terms of the 

consequences- I must say, it seems to me that these worker-s are at 

risk in terms of their own personal health. There is a tremendous low 

level of morale, low job satisfaction, which is also correlated with 

health problems down the road. For example, only 7% of the sample saio 

they would reCOITim:!nd this job to a friend. Seventy-nine percent saia 

they would not take this Job over: again if they had the choice. I am 
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not clear about turnover rates. I sense that there v.0uld be a much 

higher turnover rate if they believed they had other options. Let me 

support that. Eighty-one percent believed they could not find 

cxxnparable work, with similar salary aoo fringe benefits. My sense is, 

then, that many more people v.0uld leave this job if they found 

comparable work. They stay, demoralized aoo feeling burned out, 

because they do not feel they have other options. 

I would say then, particularly since the State may have to 

pay for the health benefits of these individuals, that if they do get 

sick, they are at a high risk for later problems. 

The second conclusion I v.0uld say, in addition to cost to the 

workers- I think this is affecting the service to clients. In the 

Safli)le, 75% reported that they did not believe the clients were 

receiving adequate services fran DYFS, despite their best efforts. 

Again, I think this is a sample which is camnitted. I was again 

surprised at the level of camnitment, because many people when they are 

burned out just quit. These folks seem to be concerned about services, 

but they did not believe that clients were receiving adequate services 

from DYFS. 

In terms of recarurendations, I would say very quickly that 

there seems to me to be a need for an immediate reduction in caseload, 

certainly preferably to the Federal guidelines of 20 to 2!:> children. 

This sample is in need of training, both to perfonn their jobs 

adequately and, also, to help them reduce stress leveis on themselves. 

I think stress reduction training v.0uld be useful for this sample. 

Finally, I think there needs to be ongoing efforts by both 

labor and management to reduce the occupational sources of stress in 

this job. I think that in addition to caseload, there are other 

sources which are going, over the long haul, to affect both the health 

of the workers and the services to clients. 

'l'hat, very briefly, is what I found. I v.0uld be very happy 

to answer any questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I have one question. Did you find any 

differences in the workers' attitudes depending on the years of 

service? Were the younger ones different than the older ones? 
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DR. CAHILL: '!hat is a very good question; I am analyzing 

that now. I'm afraid I can't answer that at this point. I suspect 

yes, but I just can't answer that right now. 

ASS~YMAN !.<"'LYNN: If you have the analyzation of that, say, 

within the next rronth or so, we \\Duld like to have it. 

DR. CAHILL: I can certainly get that to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If we are going to embark upon a crash 

program to increase the number of caseworkers, aoo it turns out that 

the younger people are going to have greater levels of stress and 

frustration, we have to know it early so we can acccmrodate them and 

perhaps get stress management in early. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, that will be a very important 

finding. 

DR. CAHILL: That is a good question. I sense that many of 

them do not last very long, that sare of them just don't last more than 

a year because they burn out very quickly. But, in all honesty, I 

can't answer that at this fX)int. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You indicated that you are not so sure 

that people quit because of the stress factor, but because of other 

considerations, such as finances. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: We neard yesterday that there is a 

relatively high burnout rate annng this category of worker as opposed 

to other areas, so perhaps it does translate to quitting the job 

ultimately. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. It is bad enough that they are refX)rting 

feeling emotionally exhausted, but that is not actually the biggest 

concern, I \\Duld say, fran a psychological point of view. It is very 

clear in the literature that they are starting to feel exhausted, they 

are getting headaches, they are having stanach problems, they are 

having backaches, and then they start to develop a more serious 

illness. It may be at that point when they are hypertensive, wnen they 

have high blood pressure, when they are hyperventilating -- it may be 

at that point that they say, "I'm getting out of tnis job. It is not 

worth it to my health." 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there literature in other fields of 

endeavor whereby you can canpare and quantify sane of your findings? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. Again, at least on one scale that has been 

nonned, nationally that is. This scale canpares DYFS workers to other 

social service workers across the country. 'lhey scored higher. In 

other words, they are more burned out than other people like policemen, 

teachers, fire fighters, and other social service workers across the 

United States. so, it is not even as though we are canparing them to 

the population as a whole. I canpared them to what is called a "high 

risk population for stress," and they still carre out higher. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you have any figures of canparison 

available? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes, they are in the report I wrote. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: They are in the overall report? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. 'lhat is called the Maslach Burnout 

Inventory. That is tne scale. '!'hat has been nationally normed. That 

is the scale in which they came out higher than--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) I am looking at Table 3. 

Perhaps we can turn to that. 

Inventory." 

It says, "Results of Maslach Burnout 

DR. CAHILL: '!here you go, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Depersonalization frequency, 11 • 3. Now, 

tell us what that means. 

DR. CAHILL: Okay. What this means is that on tv.0 of these 

sub-scales, depersonalization and emotional exhaustion, which measure 

burnout- uon' t worry about what the numbers mean; they just mean ho,,, 

would they turn out in relation to other people. On those two scales, 

depersonalization and emotional exhaustion, the UYFS workers scored 

higher than what you v.0uld expect other people across the country to 

do. This was statistically significant. In other words, the results 

were not due to chance alone. Those two scales measure things like the 

sense of exhaustion, not feeling yourself, not being motivated to work, 

being detached fran your workplace -- those kinds of things. 

The personal accomplishment scale is also of interest. They 

S<X>red higher than you v.0uld expect. They did well on that. In other 
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words, they have still maintained some level of personal 

accomplishment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is that the nature of the job? 

DR. CAHILL: I would say it is the nature of the work force, 

because I would have expected, to be honest, that they would have 

scored low on that too. That is often what happens. People just give 

up on the job and say, "I am not going to try." '11hese people seem to 

still be trying, and I was sur~rised at that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'l'ake another stress field, like police 

work. What would be a statewide average or a nationwide average for 

fX)lice work? 

DR. CAHILL: I do not have the nonns with me; I can get them 

to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Could you get that, because it would be 

very relevant to us to be able to compare to see, you know, where we 

stand on a scale of one to ten, so to speak? 

DR. CAHILL: Okay. That is a good fX)int. What I can tell 

you, again, is that they are statistically higher - I hate to use a 

fancy term, but that is what it is -- than other fX)lice, let's say, 

fX)lice across the country. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If we are going to attempt to cure these 

problems, we have to be able to refX)rt to the Legislature that we have 

a problem that is significantly greater than other professions. 

DR. CAHILL: Okay. I can get that material to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you have a question, Assemblyman 

Hendrickson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: No, I would just like to add that 

if we are going to take the fX)lice as a criteria, we will need more 

than the cities, because throughout the State of New Jersey we are maae 

up more of small municipalities than we are of large municipalities. 

'lberefore, in the City of Newark, a fX)liceman would be under a lot more 

stress, we' 11 say, than he would be in Harruronton, or someplace like 

that. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes, but I don't think I can break it down for 

you that specifically. 

ASSEMBLYMA.i\l HENDRICKSON: No, T. don't expect that. 
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UR. CAHILL: I can give you some general ccmparisons with 

other occupations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I like teachers. You hear a lot about 

teacher burnout being very heavy arrl very high. I would like to see 

ho,, that ccmpares to social workers. Do you have a question, 

Assemblyman Foy? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have several. First, Dr. Cahill, I would 

like to offer my canpliments to you on this report. In my viewpoint, 

it is thorough, it is objective, it is very enlightening, anct also, 

very frightening. As I understaoo your report, there are really two 

factors at work with respect to this stress. One is a substantive 

stress issue in tenns of the subject matter the people have to deal 

with. They are dealing with some awful things in life in terms of 

child abuse, sexual abuse, and things like that, arxi substantively 

their jobs -- at the start -- are very difficult, as cpposed to other 

occupations. Is that a fair characterization? 

OR. CAHILL: Yes, I would say that is very accurate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'OY: Okay. Then, canpounding the built-in 

stress that exists from an occupation of this nature, there is an 

institution-type stress as a result of some structural factors that 

perhaps we may be able to address. I don' t .lcno,, that we will ever be 

able to substantively address the one problem. We can certainly try in 

a lot of ways to do that. But, where your conclusions come fran-- We 

really cannot change the nature of the job, in a sense, as legislators, 

but we can make their ability to do the job sanewhat better in terms of 

altering some of the structural arrl institutional issues they have to 

deal with. 

I am curious. In terms of your questionnaire, did you offer 

a response area on the questionnaire where the respondents could be 

free-flONing in tenns of things they think would improve their lot? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. I asked them to write the three things 

they thought were the worst about the job arrl three areas of change. 

Again, I am tabulating that no,,. I can tell you certainly that what 

came out- We are not finished with it, but the thing that they said 

uost frequently that they wanted changed was caseload. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FUY: Money was not really the biggest ccmplaint? 
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DR. CAHILL: No. I can only say this anecdotically, but 

several of the people I spoke with before I designed the survey, to try 

to get a sense of what questions would be relevant, said -- and this 

certainly surprised me - that they would be willi~ to take a cut in 

pay. Now, I am not reccmnending this, mind you, far from it. I may 

not get out of this roan alive if I recormrend that, and you would be 

foolish to even think that, but there is a sense that they are just so 

overwhelmed and frustrated, that they want more workers. It is not 

that they are-- I think they should be paid n:ore, but it is rrore a 

sense of caseload. They are just overwhelmed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: In terms of caseload, I want to kind of 

hone in on this factor of support. I see, fran my perspective in tenns 

of what I read in your report, that support really needs to come fran 

two directions. It needs to come fran the top in terms of the 

managerial direction and support they get. Is that kind of what 

emerged fran this study, that they need sorre guidance and perhaps same 

kind of alteration of attitudes on the part of their superiors? 

OR. CAHILL: Yes. They need more training supervision and, 

as you say, they need IIDre support. Here is the basic problem. They 

are being asked to make very delicate decisions. Do you remove a 

child? Do you leave him in the hane? We are not very good at 

predicting behavior. Unfortunately, any mental health professional is 

not very good at predicting behavior, but that is what they are asked 

to do. They are asked to predict which family is going to hurt their 

child. Sometimes in their best judgments they make a decision, and 

sometimes something happens. Their perception is that when sooiething 

goes wrong, they are out there alone slowly swaying in the breeze, 

and they are asked to bear the brunt of the responsibility if something 

goes wrong. That is where I think they feel they need rrore support. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That is fran the managerial level. Now, 

fran a clerical level, another thing I understood is that this seems to 

involve the paperwork. It's like the constant battle I have in my 

office. I want to be a lawyer and do my lawyering, but it seems like 

90% of the time I am an administrator and am administering. Is a focus 

of one of their COlllf)laints the fact that the job for which they were 
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trained, which is social work-- 'Are the hours involved in that 
diminished by virtue of the fact that they have a large number of 
clerical duties to perform which inhibits their ability to adequately 
perform their social work function? 

DR. CAHILL: I would say that that is very true. Also, 
again, the stress of paperwork, because that is what is looked at when 
sanething goes wrong. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I'm curious about- I wasn't here, 
unfortunately, for Commissioner Albanese's report yesterday. I wonder, 
did you receive any COIT11nents abOut additional canputerization or 
anything like that as either assisting or inhibiting their efforts? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. I put a question in about the new 
cornµuters. I don't know how new they are, so I should say about the 
computer system. The overwhelming response was that the computer 
system made things worse. 

ASSEMBLY.MAN F\JY: Made things worse? 
DR. CAHILL: Yes. I understand there are sane people here 

who work with the canputer system, but they are not happy with it. 
It seems to make things worse. 

The other thing about resources -- let ine just say a word -
is, DYFS workers also reported that there are not resources in the 
corrmunity, that is, they are supposed to network people to corrmunity 
resources. They feel there is not enough out there. so, if you are 
supposed to get housing for a family and there is no housing, that is 
another area where they feel there is not sufficient support for them, 
which I understand is a broader issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Was there any response in terms of the 
survey about their need to interact, or their ability to properly 
interact with other agencies of State government? 

DR. CAHILL: I don't think I specifically asked that, so I 
don't think I can comment on it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. Thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSCN: I have just one rrore question. 
DR. CAHILL: Sure. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: On their daily hours and weekly 

hours, the performance of work, is it 35 hours, 4U hours, 50 hours? 

What is the actual amount of time spent on the job? 

DR. CAHILL: How many hours are they actually working? I'm 

not sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: You're not sure. What I am trying 

to say is, if they are working an eight-hour day, perhaps a 

recanmendation could be to a six-and-a-half-hour day. Because of the 

stress time, it would be a good uental release, we' 11 say, if nothing 

else. 

DR. CAHILL: You know, that is an interesting point. My 

assumption is that they work a standard workweek; however, here is what 

happens, and I can carurent on this. 'l'hey are stretching the worKday. 

They tend to work through breaks; they tend to work through lunch. 

They come in a little early, and stay a little late. F..:ven if they 

are not working, they worry about stuff on weekends. So, they are 

stretching the workday. I think that is a very good point. They are 

not giving themselves tiIIE to recuperate and that is partly why we see 

high stress levels. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDHICKSON: Could you add sanething along those 

lines into your report, if they are doing things like that? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. Certainly, there are other good nroels to 

suggest that one way to help these stress limits is by working less. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Aosolutely, absolutely. It is all 

part of labor. Now, you IIEntioned supervision. Did you get into any 

of that at all? Is there a need for closer supervision? Are there two 

caseworkers to one supervisor? Do I take that right? Or five? Is 

that the ratio? 

DR. CAHILL: I did not ask them it they thought they needed 

more supervisors physically. That may be the case, but I didn't ask 

them that. What I was getting at was more a sense of when things went 

wrong - as I said earlier - they did not have enough support. They 

felt almost as if they were the scapegoats. They were the ones who 

were pointed to when something went wrong. Perhaps they could answer 

that. I don't know if they would actually like nore supervisors. It 
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seems that they need rrore supervision or rrore managerial support when 
they are working on a tough case and don't know what to do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Just one nore question. In sane 
stress jobs, there is a feeling within a person that there is no 
daylight at the end of the tunnel, there is no way for him to advance 
hin~elf, he is kioo of locked into this for the rest of his life, and 
what can he do. Have you gone into any part of just how people feel, 
for instance, "What's up there five years fran now?" or anything along 
those lines? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes. I asked t-y,o questions on career ladders. 
Well over 90% of the sample said they felt that the career ladder was 
inadequate and, therefore, there was no built-in incentive to get nnre 
training because there was no place to go. 'rhey felt they had 
ceilinged out. 11hat was of great concern to them. In terms of the 
career ladder, it was a major concern. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Thank you. Doctor, aoo Mr. 
Chairman, I would like to apologize to you. What little I have been 
able to participate in has been very interesting, but I do apologize to 
you for being late, for not physically being able to be here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Doctor, have you had any input since the 
report has been made available fran anyone in the Division in 
management or at the higher levels? 

DR. CAHILL: No, I have not been contacted by them, nor, I 
must say, have I initiated any contact with them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you kno.v if they have seen your 
report? 

DR. CAHILL: Yes, I believe they have, but I have not had any 
direct contact with them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you kno.v what length of time that 
report has been available to them? 

DR. CAHILL: Well, I first put this out in June. I would 
suspect they have had it at least for a few weeks. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Was a copy sent directly to them, or do 
you think maybe they just got it through the grapevine? 

DR. CAHILL: I think they probably got it through the 
grapevine. I am not sure, to be honest. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I would be curious as to whetner there is 

any input back and forth. Certainly, you have no,, made yourself 
sanewhat of an expert in this area, and perhaps follow-up worK should 

be done, or perhaps even comnissioned. I am curious about what your 
nntivation was in actually doing this particular topic. 

DR. CAHILL: As I said in the beginni03 part of my statement, 
I have been interested in the general area of ha,, econanics affect 

mental health. I predicted about two years ago, or at least I 
apotheosized about two years ago that I thought Human Services was 

going to have a particular problem because of the recession. The 
recession hit and I predicted there would be an increase in the demand 

for services because people were out of work, there was 100re of an 
econanic strain, and nnre abuse. I thought that would hit about last 

year -- that the effects of that would hit about last year. That is 
why I initiated this project last year, to see, in fact, if that was 

going on. It arose out of a theoretical interest I have had for saoe 
time. For example, prior to this I did research on the effects of 

unemployment on mental health. This, to me, was the next logical step 
in that research program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Have you ever done any researdl regarding 
the diminution of Federal funding in the mental health field? 

DR. CAHILL: Basically, that is part of this. See, I 
thought--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: ( interrupting) It is a combination of bad 
econanic times and the diminution of the Federal flow of dollars. 

DR. CAHILL: Yes, that is exactly what I thought would 
happen. That is why I was interested in it. Last year was when I 
thought it would come together, that the cutbacks would hit, and 
increased demand would hit because of the recession. I can just say 

for background that the prior research I did would suggest that, 
because I did research on unemployment, and there was S01I1e lag time. 

Unemployment goes up, then with sone lag time the amount of people who 
need human services goes up because they run out of unemployment 

insurance, they start drinking too much, etc. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: l.)Q you have any recommendations in terms 

of the problems you find between labor arrl management relations? uo 
you have any tangible reccmnendations that perhaps we should look into? 

DR. CAHILL: 1'hat was not the focus of the study, so I can 

only make a very general statement that it is important to rerognize 

that these are built-in structural problems to the job. It is not a 

passing phenomenon. Caseload will help; it will not solve the whole 

problem. I think there has to be really active, genuine input fran the 

DYFS workers, with management, around restructuring a number of things 

in these jobs, not just caseload. I understand there are some 

committees in there. To be honest, I don't knCM if the input is real. 

TheBe labor/management corrmi ttees do not work unless the workers 
actually have sane real influence. If it is pretend influence, it is 

not going to work. In a very general sense, that to rne is sanething 
that needs to be done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are there any other questions fran the 

Committee? (negative response) I certainly want to thank you for 

coming and offering a very ccmprehensive review of this problem. 

DR. CAHILL: Thank you for your time. I will make that other 

infonnation available to you as soon as I have it tabulated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: we appreciate that. Thank you. 

our next witness will be Jim Gallagher, President of Local 

1039, Communications Workers of America. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Assemblymen, with your permission, we would 

like to first have Lauren Anderson fran the ACLU Children's Rights 

Pro:ject testify. She cane over fran New York City to testify, arrl she 
will have to leave shortly. So, with your pennission, we v.0uld like to 

have her testify first. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. Lauren Anderson, will you please 

step forward and give us the spelling of your first name? 

LAUREN AND~: My first name is Lauren, L-a-u-r-e-n, and my last 

name is Anderson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 

again, please? 

Okay. Would you give us your title 

MS. ANDERSOO: I am a staff attorney with the American Civil 

Liberties Union Children's Rights Project. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. 

MS. ANDERSON: I have prepared remarks, which I will make 

available to the Corrmittee and your reporter. In the interest of time, 

I will just highlight sare of rey concerns. 

I am very grateful and extreinely encouraged that this 

Cormnittee is holding these hearings. I speak not only as a staff 

attorney of the Children's Rights Project, but as a resident of New 

Jersey. I live in Jersey City. It is heartening to see this attention 

being focused on a problem which has faced not only New Jersey, but 

almost every public social service agency in the country. 

I will not attempt to address this norning the specific 

problems that are facing DYFS or the social service workers in New 

Jersey. '!he perspective I would like to share with the Committee is a 

national perspective, in a sense to let you know that you are not alone 

in this problem, and to give you a sense as to how the courts have 

reacted to sare of these issues, and the fact that the process that you 

are engaged in is one that responsible elected officials and 

administrators are trying to COIie to grips with all over the country. 

The ACLU has a project in children's rights because we are 

concerned that there are many significant constitutional issues that 

are affected whenever the State is involved in the lives of children 

and families. we are concerned that the State, when it decides to 
intervene in the lives of a family, does so responsibly, does so only 

when necessary, and for as limited a tiire as is necessary. 

Interestingly, in the last several years, the courts, both 

state, and even nore significantly Federal courts, have care to share 

many of these ooncerns and for the first time in a long time, the 

Federal courts have begun to recognize that there are significant 

constitutional rights that are ~Heated when a state intervenes in 

the lives of children, specifically in the provision of foster care 

services and preventive services. '!he Federal oourts have taken the 

perspective that when a state intervenes it must do so in a responsiole 

manner and, to the extent that a state is negligent in that regard, the 

Federal oourts have bee<:>m= increasingly willing to hold that state 

liable for its failure to act in a responsible manner. I will give you 

a few examples. 
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In New Mexico, a Federal judge held that the state was liable 

for violating a child's statutory and constitutional rights by its 
failure to adopt and implement pennanency plans for children, and 

for allowing children to just languish needlessly in the foster care 
sys te.m for years. 'fhis case was ultimately resolved by a consent 

decree between our office and the State Department of Hwnan Services in 
New Mexico, a very detailed consent decree that specified specific 

fX)licies and practices that the state has agreed to implement to reduce 
the amount of time children remain in foster care to ensure that the 

children are either returned horre in an expeditious fashion, or are 
freed for adoption and are, in fact, adopted. 

In Kentucky, the family court, resfX)nding to a petition that 

was filed by guardians for children, found the Department of social 

Services to be a negligent guardian for its failure, again, to ensure 
tl1at children exit foster care in a timely fashion. Again, that case 

resulted in a consent decree wi tl1 very specific procedures to ensure 
that children did not remain in care any longer than necessary. 

In Kansas City, Missouri, a Federal judge refused to dismiss 
a complaint against the Division of Family Services in Jackson County, 

Missouri, which alleged that children were, in fact, hanned by tl1eir 

tenure in foster care and that children were, in fact, abused and 

neglected once they came into foster care at rates which almost equaled 

the abuse and neglect that was alleged against their parents. 

Again, this case resulted in a consent decree that mandated very clear 

and precise policies that the state agreed to adopt to ensure that 

children, once tl1ey came into care, were protected fran harm or were 
not harmed further by the state acting as guardian. 

In Minnesota, a Federal judge refusea to dismiss a complaint 
against parents who alleged that the state negligently intervened and 

failed to follow the guidelines that were set up to aetermine when 
children should actually be removed fran a natural family. 

In addition to these cases that have had basically injunctive 

relief or systemic reform, tl1ere have been many cases around the 

country in both state and Federal courts where courts have awarded 
damages to children who have been harmed as a result of their 

75 



experiences in foster case. One of the rrost striking of these cases is 

one that was affinned by the Second Circuit Court in New York City, 

which awarded $225,000 in damages to a former foster child who was 

repeatedly abused by her foster parents. 

There are many causes for the problems that resulted in this 

litigation. One of the fundamental problems that I have seen in 

litigating these cases and in working with others in other 

jurisdictions in these types of cases, is caseload size. A lawyer 

called me the other day in the process of attempting to negotiate a 

case in another state, and said, "We have lived with your consent 

decree in Missouri for about a year and a half. What advice would you 

give to us in negotiating a decree?" I said, "Resources are the bottan 

line." Caseload sizes that are adequate to allow the provision of 

services that you have put into the decree are essential. We have a 

decree that mandates many very good positive steps to protect d:lildren, 

but they can't be acccmplished if social service workers have caseloads 

that are unmanageable. 

The significance of caseload size, while it has been 

recognized by many of the professional organizations, such as tne Child 

welfare League of America and the American Public Welfare Association, 

has never been binding on states and too often has been neglected. 

But, given the essential nature of adequate caseload sizes, many of 

these Federal decrees which I have mentioned have in(X)rporated minimum 

caseload sizes as a part of the injunctive relief. In our case in 

Kansas City, Missouri, it was agreed that caseload sizes could never 

exceed 20 to 25 cases per worker, but in any event, might have to be 

lower than that if that was necessary to deliver the services that the 

state agreed were necessary to protect children. 

A Federal district oourt in Massachusetts, in a case by the 

nane of Lynd:l vs. King, made the following finding in issuing an 

injunction against the Massachusetts Department of Social Services: "A 

clear theme emerged fran the testirrony of these department employees. 

Because of pressures created by heavy caseloads, they are relegated to 

responding to crises in their cases. They do not have tine to engage 

in appropriate planning and review, nor to furnish the ongoing 
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supervision and services they feel are necessary to assure appropriate 

care for foster children and to improve conditions in the hanes fran 

which they were reiroved. 

"Most of these social workers testified, on the basis of 

their experience, that their failure to plan for and deliver 

appropriate services was causing harm to the children, including 

children in foster care under their supervision. Sane provided 

examples of cases in whidl harm befell foster children as a result of 

inappropriate attention or provision of appropriate services. 

Moreover, files of actual cases revealed several instances in which 

children in foster care suffered serious erootional and physical injury, 

and even death, that could have been prevented. Only less serious 

injury or none would have been sustained had the department taken 

reasonable steps to ensure the safety and welfare of these dlilctren." 

On the basis of his findings, the Federal judge ordered that 

the Massachusetts Depart:Jnent of Social Services keep its caseload size 

down to a size that was manageable and would allow them to meet the 

Federal mandates, and he set a caseload size of 20 to 25 with a 

presumptive bias, saying, "Anything above that, and I will consider 

that you are not living up to your mandates. You may again have to go 

well below that to provide the necessary services." As a sanction, in 

the event that they fail to abide by his order, he said that although 

he hated to have to do it, he would cut off further funding through the 

Social Security Act for the delivery of foster care service. As I am 

sure you are aware, a fairly large proportion of any state's funding 

for its foster care programs is derived fran the Social Security Act. 

'I'his case was upheld by the First Circuit Court on appeal. 

As I said, in our case in Kansas City, minimum caseload sizes 

were adopted, as was done in our case in New Mexico, which dealt with 

ensuring that the children did not remain in foster care for extended 

periods of time. Well, there can never be a precise number of cases. 

The decree set, as a standard, 20 to 25 cases, but said there had to be 

systeinic review of the nature of the cases that workers were handling, 

and a formula developed dependent upon the differing nature of cases. 

If you are an adoption worker and you are mainly finding prospective 
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adoptive hanes, you may be able to have a higher caseload than a worker 

who is doing preventive services, who has to go out to investigate and 

make difficult decisions as to whether a child should be renoved or 

not. 

Caseload sizes are oot a panacea for any agency's problems. 

I think, as the previous witness testified, that the nature of the work 
is inherently difficult, is inherently stressful. There are many other 

cxxnponents that are necessary to allow the agency to provide essential 
services in a meaningful fashion. But, caseload sizes are an essential 

canponent in that regard. 
I think training is another area which is essential. I am 

not sure what the situation is in New Jersey, but in the social service 
departments we have seen around the country, 100st social service 

workers are not necessarily trained in social work in college. They 
cane out of college with B.A. 's in art, history, or nusic and, while 

they are concerned and committed, they do not have the training 
necessary to adequately perform these jobs. The implications of 

caseloads that are too high are dramatic. I could give you horror 
stories of cases I have seen where children have been either severely 

physically or e100tionally abused, or died as a result of inadequate 
protection by social service workers. I am sure you will get stories 

or instances such as those caning fran other witnesses showing the real 
impact on children in the State of New Jersey. But, the broad impact, 

when you have social workers who are overworked, is that 
decision-making does not happen in the rational way that it needs to 

happen in this area. If the social worker is overworked and receives a 
canplaint of abuse or neglect, the reaction may be to pull that child 

fran the hone and place him or her in foster care, rather than spending 
the tune working with the parents to prevent that. That is a disaster, 

and has legal implications for both the child am the family. 
Another implication is that once the d1ild is in foster case, 

if you do not have social service worker supervision, the Child ends up 

being warehoused. We have seen cases in some of the work we have done 

arourrl the country where you have a child in foster care with foster 
parents for over a year or nore, who is never visited by the social 
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worker, or no attempts are made to work with the family. 'l'here is no 

visitation between the child and the family for over a year. The child 

just stays in foster care year after year, never has a permanent and 

stable hane, and ends up damaged de facto, just by being allowed to 

continue in this state of limbo for an excessive period of time. 

I have just one other canirent, and that is on paperwork. The 

concern about paperwork that has been expressed to the Committee is 

also a universal concern. I would recanmand to the Ccmnittee arrl to 

DYFS that a study be done to ensure that there is not duplicative 

paperwork, which is often the case. However, given the nature of 

children's lives and foster care, adequate record keeping is, in fact, 

essential, because if you have a child who ends up -- as is very often 

the case -- in several foster hanes over a period of a few years, with 

several different social service workers, the only continuity in that 
child's live is contained in the child's file. So, if you have a 

change in social service workers aoo a change in foster families arrl no 

adequate records, the new foster family or the new worker won' t know 

whether or not the child has had sanething as simple as his 

inoculations the year before, or how the child has done in school. So, 

paperwork is a necessary evil, but should not be exacerbated through 

duplicative efforts. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are there any questions fran the 

Committee? Assemblywcman Ford? 

ASSEMBLYv.Ulo\AN FORD: You talked about the training of social 

workers. I am curious as to the relationship of that to the request 

fran the Division for $5 million, much of which will go toward hiring 

an estimated 500 workers. Apparently you indicated they are hiring 

people who have less than the training necessary to deal with the 

important issues and problems they have to deal with. Are there people 

out there- Is this a universal problem, also, with regard to 

attracting the best talent fran the schools and colleges, to go 

into social work? Is there a way that other states perhaps are dealing 

with working with colleges and developing curriculurns to encourage 

people to seek this out as a career? 
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MS. ANDERSOO: Let me begin by saying that the comments I 

made with regard to workers frequently not having specific training in 

social work were not directed toward the State of New Jersey. I think 

the witnesses fran the union can probably tell you what kinds of 

credentials workers have when they cane into the jobs. But, 

universally, it is frequently a problem in many jurisdictions that 

workers are hired who are not fran social work schools. Therefore, 

when they start and get that first caseload, if they do not have 

specific training, you know, it would be like saneone putting you in 

the middle of a field and saying, "Go investigate these cases arrl make 

these very difficult decisions." There are many significant aspects to 

the social service worker's work whicl1 require very specific training 

with regard to making decisions as to whether or not to remove a child, 

with regard to working with the natural family, and with regard to 

ensuring that the children exit foster care in an expeditious fashion. 

There are curriculums which have been developed nationally that can 

provide that type of training. Also, it is very important that foster 

parents receive training. A person's initial reaction is, "Well, I 

have been a parent for 20 years and I have decided to becane a foster 

parent. Why do I need special training to do this?" But, foster 

children do bring a very unique set of problems to any parent, and it 

has been proven to be very helpful and successful in other 

jurisdictions for foster parents to receive specific training in coping 

with the kinds of problems that foster children bring, as well as 

working witn the natural parents and working with the agency. 

Frequently, the foster parents, with training, can significantly 

enhance the work the agency is doing by working with the child and with 

the family. 

I can't speak specifically with regard to DYFS recruitment 

efforts with schools of social work. I think: that given the realities 

of working for a public agency, and given what you have heard fran the 

previous witness about the stress factors, it may be mucl1 more 

difficult to attract workers to a public agency, as cornpared to sane of 

the private agencies where you have IIDre resources brought to bear. 

80 



ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have a question. Does the ACilJ 

contemplate taking any litigious action against the State of New 

Jersey? 

MS. ANDERSa~: No, it does not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I aon't think we are quite in the position 

sane of those other states are in yet, and I think one of the reasons 

we're here, the union is here, and the Conmissioner and his staff are 

here, is that we want to make sure that we don't ever get to that 

point. 

MS. ANDERSON: I ha:l intended to preface my remarks by saying 

that the union asked that we cane to speak. I am really heartened oy 

the fact that this Corrmittee has taken this initiative on its own. In 

that respect, New Jersey is really very much, as you said, a vanguard 

in recognizing that this is a very serious problem. You know, even a 

gcxx:l lawyer will say it is far better to resolve these kinds of issues 

short of litigation througn the cooperative efforts of the Legislature 

and the Executive Branch. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Three of us are lawyers here, and I can 

tell you the last thing I want to see is sane judge telling us how to 

run the human services aspect of our State government. They tell us 

enough already. 

MS. ANUERSON: But, I thought it would be helpful to the 

Committee to realize that the Federal courts, especially, have taken a 

very particular interest in this area in the last few years. This 

area, to a certain extent, may be likened to the areas of mental 

retardation and mentally ill prisoners, where the courts are saying, 

"Yes, we nust hold the agencies accountable." 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Apparently your project is a nationwide 

project. 

MS. ANDERSON: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Has your project oontemplated any action 

in New Jersey? 

MB. ANDERSOO: No, it has not. we do not have the resources, 

number one, and we have-- As I said, I am not even conversant on the 

specific problems facing workers in New Jersey. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: '!'here has been some thought that we need 

a child advocate in New Jersey, someone to l<:>dt out for the children, 

similar to what we have for our senior citizens, an anbudsman, so to 

speak. Do you have any carments on that? Are any other states 

involved in having things like mild advocates? 

MS. ANDERSON: I think that could be an extremely helpful 

posture. One of the things that is unique about foster children as a 

constituency, is that they are voiceless. Once a child canes into 

foster care by virtue of the fact that he or she is a minor, they do 

not have a voice that can really be heard before the Legislature. 

Inherent in the problems that result in a child being in foster care is 

the fact that too often the parents are not in a position to advocate 

for them. So, there have been few people to voice and raise the 

concerns of the impact of the system on foster mildren, as there have 

been for prisoners, for the rrentally retarded, etc. I believe there is 

considerable impact on the quality of life in the State. If you have 

children who are being damaged in the foster care system, they end up 

being less productive as adults. 'lb rre, it is an irony for the State 

to spend the anount of rroney that is spent, and then have it work at 

cross purposes. It is not gooa for the State, arrl it is not good for 

the mild to remain in foster care for rrore than a couple of years, but 

the average in many jurisdictions is four or five years. That can be 
prevented. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have another question. Are you aware of 

any states that have statutorily mandated caseload levels? You have 

done it by concept in a number of places. Is it done by statute 
anywhere? 

MS. ANDERSON: I am not aware of any states where it has been 

done legislatively. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Clearly, in order to statutorily mandate 

the caseload level, you would also have to statutorily mandate sane 

minimum level of funding in order to meet that. You couldn't ask them 

to keep a certain level unless you provided the funding. But, I was 

just curious to see if that approach had ever been taken, or if anyone 

had any data on that. Perhaps the Department could provide us with 

that. 
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Also, is there a problem -- from your experience nationwide 

in terms of the relationship between foster care arrl the biological 

family situation where there are just not enough foster hornes to go 

around and, as a result, there is kind of a pressure to keep the child 

in the frunily right on up to the breaking point? Sometimes, you know, 

one of those slips through the crack, in a sense, and a child is left 

in a horne, where he or she should have been taken out, but there was no 

place else to put the child and, as a consequence, there is an abuse 

situation. I have read about incidents like that, and I am curious as 

to what the nationwide situation is. 

MS. ANDERSOO: '!hat is frequently a problem. It has the 

impact that you irentioned, and it also has the impact, very frequently, 

of overloading foster hornes. Imagine a foster family that has four 

natural children, and then you add eight foster children. You are 

asking a set of parents to deal with twelve dlildren, many of whom, 

because they are foster children, have very significant problems. We 

did a statistical survey of the foster care population in Kansas City, 

Missouri, as part of a trial preparation. We found SOIIE very startling 

results. 

One of the positive correlations we found was with foster 

families which had too many dlildren in them being positively 

correlated to the risk of abuse and neglect of the foster children in 

the home. I heard about an instance sanewhere else in the country just 

a few days ago of an abuse and neglect complaint being filed against a 

parent, and the agency not following up on the canplaint because they 

found out that the family was also a foster family. To investigate the 

abuse and neglect, they would have also had to rennve the foster 

children. so, there are very serious consequences when you don't have 

foster families as a resource. There have not been, as far as I can 

tell, and we have spent a lot of tiire looking for expertise in this 

area, tried and true ways of recruiting foster families. But, what is 

known is, if you utilize the foster parents you presently have, and use 

them to develop word-of-mouth contacts, you help the foster parents 

develop a strong foster parent association, and if you provide the 

training that I mentioned, then you can significantly increase your 

pool of foster parents. 
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Equally important is increasing your pool of adoptive 
parents. New Jersey, as well as most states, is beginning to reexainine 
the kinds of people who should be foster parents and the kinds of 

children who would be adoptable. The children who are "special needs" 
kids -- a long time ago, most agencies felt that these children could 
not be adopted. These children are being successfully adopted these 
days. That is equally important as having foster parents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you have at your command today sane 
rrethodology by which you determine caseload size -- optimum caseload 
size? 

MS. ANDERSON: We are attempting to address that problem in 
sane of the cases we have around the country. I think you need to do 
a management study of what is happening in each of your offices, look 
at the division of cases, you knO'tl, look at preventive services cases, 
protective services cases, and adoptive cases, and rationally apportion 
those cases. There is a mixed professional opinion as to whether it is 
good to have a worker responsible fran the beginning of the system to 
the end of the system, or to have workers specifically responsible for 
all preventive services, or licensing of fe>ster hanes, or protective 

services. I don't think there is any quick fix to the problem. I 
think you really need to do a management study of the agency and, with 
the input of the workers, assess the ainount of time it takes to work on 
a case and the kind of mix of cases that works for one particular 
worker. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: In the courts which have made rulings -
Missouri, I believe, and several states where they came up with the 
figure of 25 -- did they have management studies in those states to 
make this determination? 

MS. ANDERSON: Well, as I indicated in my testimony, those 
were presumptive figures. They are saying that on the basis of the 
testimony. In my prepared remarks, I have given you the citations to 
the puolished opinions. On the basis of testimony aoo the evidence 
that was available, it appeared that these would be the maximum 
caseload sizes that would be permissible in order tor workers to carry 
out their functions. However, in the Massachusetts case, where there 
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was a oourt ordered maximum, it was stated very explicitly, "This is 

presumptive. If the workers cannot perform pursuant to the Federal 

mandates for the provision of services with a caseload size of 20, it 

has to be lower." You are looking at an area where people have just 

begun, in many respects, to look at these issues in a systeinic fashion, 

so there is not a large body of knowledge in terms of formulas, as 

there might be in other areas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Assemblyman Hendrickson'? 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSlN: You stated that perhaps two to 

thrne years is the maximum that a child should be in foster care. What 

is the reasoning behind that? Is the child so unstable that the child 

has nothing to look forward to? Is it in that area wt1ere the child 

feels he or she is not wanted? 

MS. ANDERSON: There are a lot of reasons for that, arrl there 

have been a lot of studies on that. Foster care, by its nature, is 

not intended to be a permanent solution to a problem. Children know 

that if they are with a foster parent that this is not a parenting 

figure who will keep them forever. They also know, aoo it is an 

unfortunate reality, that anytime there is a problem in that foster 

home, the foster parent can call up the agency arrl say, "Take Johnny 

hane. I don't want this kid any roc,re." 

so, kids live with a real sense of insecurity. There are 

also certain realities there, too. In the initial study we did in 

Kansas City, we only looked at children who had been in foster care for 

a period of five years, but the majority of those children had been in 

more than four homes in the past five years. These are children under 

the age of 10 or 12. You can imagine the impact on a child's 

psychological development to have that type of lack of continuity in 

their lives. At the same time, because of the kinds of pressures that 

social service workers face, you have a very high turnover of workers, 

so the child has no set of stable figures in his or her life over a 

period of time. Too often, when the system is breaking down in that 

way, you also do not have the workers working with the natural parents 

to ensure that the natural parents are visiting an:i maintaining contact 

with a child. So, the child is literally in limoo for the pericxi of 

85 



time that he or she is in foster care. I have seen children who have 

been irrevocably psychologically harmed by that lack of permanence in 
their lives. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Would you say that more of the 

problem should be put on the parents for not contacting the child, and 

should that perhaps be part of this - that is, that training should be 
on the parental side, to see that ti1e parent stays psychologically with 

the child. Or, on the other side, is there perhaps an alternative to 
the foster home, i.e., adoption after "X" m.nnber of years? 

MS. ANDER.S<:N: It is a mutual responsibility. However, once 
the State has made the initial step of intervening, there is a higher 

responsibility, I believe, on the State to make certain efforts. What 
should happen, ideally, if you have natural parents who are present, 

who haven't just abandoned a child and are missing- If the natural 
parent is present at the point at which the child comes into foster 

care, a contract should be entered into between the agency arrl the 
parent. Goals need to be set; for instance, "These are the problems 

which necessitated your child coming into foster care." It may be a 
drinking problem, or it may be marital problems. You should specify 

the problems. "These are the ways in which we, the agency, will work 
with you to rectify these problems. This is what we will do. Now, 

here is what you have to do." 

So, there is a bilateral contract that is binding on both 

parties. The natural parent, obviously, cannot do it alone. It is the 
agency's responsibility to work with the parent, and to w::>rk for ti1e 

child, to make determinations and to put forth their best effort to 
hopefully rectify the situation, or to determine after a sufficient 

period of time that the situation is irreparable, and ti1en say, "Okay, 

for whatever reasons, this family cannot be brought back together. 

Let's recognize this fact and nCM let's take expeditious steps to free 

the child for adoption," and have the child adopted before it becomes 

even more difficult for the child to become adopted because of his or 
her age. 

ASSE:MBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Would you recanmend -- because the 
longer I sit, the 1rore frightening this becomes, actually -- a better 

86 



or rt0ce in-depth screening foe foster- parents? Isn't it !IDre important 

to try to save the child, rather than just to try to get that child out 

there someplace? 

MS. ANDERSON: The screening of foster parents is really 

essential. It was amazing to us -- and I think one of the rrost 

depressing experiences I have ever had in my professional career - to 

see fran actual case records, you know, recordings by social service 

workers, the types of abuse and neglect that were inflicted on foster 

children by foster parents. There nust be screening of foster parents, 

and foster parents need a considerable arrount of support fran social 

service workers and the agency to cope with the problems that foster 

children bring to bear, and to cope with the natural parents. You 

knCM, there is a very natural tendency on the part of the foster parent 

to be very hostile to a natural parent. I mean, "The natural parent 

has been alleged to have abused this child that I am now taking care 

of." Foster parents need guidance in working through these problems, 

so that they can be part of a team effort in resolving the problems 

that necessitated the child coming into care. 

In this area, there are sane curricula and training programs 

that have been developed which are very effective, and actually 

increase your pool of foster parents, because foster parents, as with 

social service workers, do burn out and decide that they do not want to 

be foster parents anymore because it is too much of a hassle. Foster 

parents do not get rich fran this. They really do it out of a lot of 

love and carmitment to the children. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I have just one more question. In 

your experience in the State of New Jersey, do we have rrore foster 

parents now, or are we staying at the sane level? Is there any 

attraction for a oouple to become foster parents? 

MS. ANDERSON: I really regret that I can't answer that 

specifically for New Jersey because, as I said, I have not looked at 

exactly what is happening in this State. I think that as the whole 

area becomes rrore professionalized and standards and support systems 

are built in, the a9ency should be able to recruit and retain larger 

numbers of foster parents and adoptive parents, as well as workers. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSCl'J: Has there been any thought given -

and I cringe to even sey this - to the old style orphanage concept, or 

canmune concept, if we cannot get enough foster parents, versus perhaps 

the abuse out there? Perhaps the abuse could be more closely 

monitored? 

MS. ANDERSON: As in other areas sucfl as irental health, it is 

far more preferable to keep the child, to use the legal term, "in the 

least restricted environirent." But, in human terms in a family-like 

setting, I think there is a quality of life that is gained and a 

benefit that is gained by living in a family setting. Short of a 

family setting, group hanes can be very effective with cflilaren who 

have behavioral problems or other kinds of problems whicfl make it too 

difficult for them to live within a nuclear family structure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: What you are saying is that there 
might be a three-tiered system, adoption, foster care, and perhaps 

saneplace out there-

MS. ANDERSCN: ( interrupting) Yes, but again, foster care 

should never be looked at as a permanent goal for any child. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I have one last question. ~alking about 

caseload size again, whicfl basically is one of our biggest focuses -

we seem to have great difficulty in assessing relative values to the 

types of cases the workers are handling. Let's say we did a case 

management study and we assessed values that foster care follow-up is 

worth so many p:>ints, aoo the other various categories are worth so 

many p:>ints. Do you think we could then put this on a computer to 

arrive at a net caseload per worker and then be able to shift new cases 

to those workers not having the higher rates, so we could better manage 

the system, because apparently it seems to be out of kilter? Although 

we have heard an average of 46, I have heard that sane people have 90, 

sane people have 100, and other people have 30. we nave to fioo sane 

better way of managing that. Is it susceptible to canputerization 

based on sane of the readings of sane of the cases you have been 

involved with? 

MS. ANDERSON: I think that as canpared to almost all other 

aspects of our lives, computers can and do play a very important role 
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in the management of social service agencies. I think that one of the 

ways to get a handle on an appropriate caseload size is to do a survey 

of a sampling of \\Orkers. For example, \\Orkers in one jurisdiction 

said, "Well, if you want to do family visits, it takes at least t\\O 

hours to effectuate a family visit when you canpute travel time, time 

spent during the visit, etc." You can't quantify sore of those 

canponents of the delivery of services. You need to look at the 

differentiation between your urban and your rural offices, where you 

have to factor in, in sane of the more rural counties, considerably 

more travel time than you would, say, in possibly Essex County or 

Hudson County. 

I believe you can assign sane tine values to functions. You 

can assign a time value to the licensing of a foster hane, which is a 

very essential canponent of the delivery of services. You have to knc:M 

for licensing \\Orkers about how much time it should take to properly 

investigate the hane, to talk to involved individuals, and to make 

reference dlecks, and then say, "Okay, it takes this much time to do 

this, so a worker can handle this many foster family homes." I think 

it is probably most difficult to assess tune in the investigative area 

where you are making the determinations about the need for services, 

because there are many more intangibles in that area. If you look at 

- and I can provide the Canmittee copies of our consent decrees in New 

Mexico and Kansas City-- We are very detailed in talking about what a 

social service worker must accanplish in the provision of services. We 

say that a social service \\Orker must visit every dlild in a foster 

family home every other week. You have a sense as to hc:M lo~ it is 

going to take to effectuate that visit. The social service \\Orker must 

ensure that the child have a visit with the biological parents once a 

week. You can get a very clear sense when you start defining tasks hc:M 

long it will take to effectuate those tasks. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, it can be done, given the roodern 

techniques we have. we would appreciate receiving those cases. 

MS. ANDERSOO: Yes, they are citect in here, but I can also 

send copies to the Coomittee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank you very much for a most 

enlightening presentation. 
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MS. ANDERSOO: 'rhank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYWJMAN FORD: I just have one last question. In 

Missouri, Massachusetts, and New Mexico you have successfully lowered 

the caseload limits by consent decrees, is that correct? 

MS. ANDERSON: well, in Massachusetts, . it was court imposed. 

In New Mexico and Kansas City, it was consent decree. 

ASSEMBLm»1AN FORD: Is it too early to assess what the 

effect the lowering of those caseloads has been, either upon the 

caseworkers or upon the dlildren they are servicing? 

MS. ANDERSON: Earn of those consent decrees is just about a 

year old. We are very actively in the process right now of rronitoring 

the implementation of those decrees. We have sorre indications, not 

surprisingly, that caseload sizes have not reached the level that we 

agreed they would yet because, again, those states are dealing through 
the kind of legislative process that you are here. So, riyht na,, we 

are monitoring eadl of those decrees. We will have a mudl better sense 

within the next several 110nths as to the extent to which each of the 

provisions of those decrees is being fully imple1rented. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank you very much. 

MS. ANDERSON: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Before we call our next witness, I have 

one quick question that seems appropriate, and I don't want to wait 

until the next session to find out the answer. Mr. Lockhart is still 

here. Mr. Lockhart, yesterday a request was suggested by the 

Conmissioner of some $12.8 million for both additional caseworkers and 

additional comnuni ty resources. Do you knCM whether that is at the 

stage of a supplemental appropriation being actually put into the 

Legislature, or is it just a thought at this point? 

LARRY J. I.DCKHARr (fran audience): The issue, as it stands right now-

Approximately a rronth or so ago, the Comnissioner drafted a letter and 

sent it over to the Governor indicating what the situation was. He 

also had meetings with various r1e1nbers of the Legislature. As a result 

of tnat, in the course of carrnunity development, a nwnber of 

individuals in the Legislature indicated that they were interested in 

supporting a supple1rental appropriation for this particular problein. 
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At this point in time, as you know, there are a number of 

supplemental requests for the State surplus. We have not gotten final 
verification of where we stand in that particular process. (Remainder 

of Mr. Lockhart's response inaudible, since he was not standing near a 
microphone. ) 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: All right. So, we really don't have the 

Governor's oounsel' s approval for that supplemental yet. Is that 

oorrect? 

MR. LOCKHARI': Well, the Governor is reviewing a number of 

requests for supplemental appropriations at this time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Right, right. 

MR. UX::KHART: SO, we are waiting for the Governor to 

finalize his position on these requests. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Then, this Canmittee might want to cane 

out with an interim report even before our final report, if we feel it 

is necessary to urge the Governor to make his position known as 
expeditiously as possible, because you know the legislative process. 

If we decide to do it this week, it might take three rronths before it 
is actually in place. Thank you. 

Our next witness will be Mr. Jim Gallagher. 

MR. GALLAGHER: I am Jim Gallagher, President of the OJA, 

Local 1039. I will try to serve as the coordinator for the union 

position. In order to give you the breadth of the crisis in DYFS, as 

we see it, we have gathered together today a number of union staff 

people and a number of DYFS v.0rkers fran throughout the State. I know 

we have a time limit, so we will try to be as brief as possible. 
I 'NOuld just like to make a few points before we get into our 

presentation. 

we have heard fran Lauren Anderson that New Jersey is 

regarded as a vanguard state when it canes to child welfare. I think 
ther-e are two reasons for this: one, has been the actions taken by the 

Legislature in passing S01TE of the best child welfare laws in the 

country, and in addition to that, actions such as you are taking hEire 

toctay by keeping on top of those laws ard making sure they are properly 
carried out. 
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The seoond issue we \+.Quld like to bring forth in our 

testimony is the reason why New Jersey is looked at as a vanguard 

state. I think Dr. Cahill pointed it out this rnorning. Here in New 

Jersey, we have a group of dedicated workers. Many of these people 

have worked for the State five or ten years, and as you have heard, 

they are working under oonditions that are emotionally aoo physically 

wearing them down and opening the door for future serious illnesses. 

In spite of that, in spite of all the problems these people face, they 

are performing at a high level of oonmi tlnent aoo service to the 

children of New Jersey. I think that is something that you, as the 

Legislature, should try to preserve. 

Fran our experience as a union representing these workers, we 

feel that the existing management style in DYFS has been to treat its 

\+.Qrkers as dixie cups - that is, to use them and then throw than away, 

discard them. We can look at the problems in DYFS and the crisis that 

exists. Yesterday we heard about caselocd size. we will talk a little 

bit about that in just a minute. We don't think the problem in DYFS is 

strictly one of caseload size. We think it is also one of how the OYFS 

\+.Qrkers are treated. To be specific about that, we feel there is a 

lack of managerial support of the \+.Qrkers, arrl there is a lad<. of real 

worker input into the DYFS process. As Dr. Cahill pointed out this 

morning, I think this is also a major cause of job stress am burnout. 

So, we have oo disagreement that caseload size is a problem. 

In fact, we are the ones who brought it to the attention of the 

Legislature and the public. 'lhis brings me to the next point I would 

like to make. 

•rhe issues you are hearing today have been brought to DYFS 

and the departmental management for the past year, both through the 

union and through individual workers working through the steering 

corronittees. As a union, I can say that I feel totally frustrated in my 

dealings with t.he Department and the Division about these problems. In 

June, I presented to DYFS management that there was a problem with 

caseload size; there was a serious problem with rrorale in the offices. 

The response to rne was, "Why are you being so negative? Why don't you 

look at the good things we've done? Why don't you look at the 300 new 
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workers" -- now we find that it is 100 new workers -- "that have been 

added?" This is the attitude that the union is faced with. 

To get our point across, we went to the press, and we came to 

you, the Legislature. 

I can also say that individual workers have tried, through 

the steering committees, to bring these issues up. We will hear the 

response in a little bit. Yesterday we heard that the steering 

committees were great vehicles for worker input. We, as a union, look 

at them as sham committees. As one person on that committee said, "We 

meet, and we meet, and we meet, until we cane up with tne decision that 
DYFS management wants us to come up with." 

This is the reason why we, as a union, have taken this to the 

media and to you, the Legislature, and as I said yesterday, I would 

like to thank you for giving us the opportunity to cane to present our 
side of the story. 

The issue of caseload size: I was very heartened yesterday 

to hear the discussion that caseload size has risen. Again, this was 

something that was not agreed to by management six months ago. We, as 

a union, have had real difficulty in finding out exactly what caseload 

size is. I think we have even heard statements fran management that 

they, themselves, feel that some of their averages were based on 

incorrect factors. In determining caseload size, it appears that at 

one point, they were just adding up all of the 1r.0rkers whether or not 

they were handling caseloads, and then dividing that figure into all of 

the cases. That is how we got caseloads that were much lower than 

they really were in the district offices. 

In order to get a handle on what is going on out there, we 

have done actual body counts by talking to our shop stewards. We were 

trying to determine exactly many cases workers are handling in the 

offices. Ed Saool, who is a staff representative fran our local, has 
done some coordinating 1r.0rk on this, and he 1r.0uld like to talk a little 

bit about his findings. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Spell your last name, Ed. 

ID SAOOL: It is S-A-B-0-L. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What is your title, Ed? 
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MR. SABOL: I am a staff representative of Local 1039 of the 

CWA. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Before you get to that, I want to touch 

on one thing which the last witness, who really didn't know New Jersey, 

mentioned. Perhaps you know, Jim. What is the level of education for 

the vast majority of the social workers workin;J for DYFS? 

MR. GALLAGHER: Do you irean the degrees? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes. Like she said, sc.:xre may have music 

degrees, some may have art degrees. Are they basically social work 

degrees or are they liberal arts degrees? 

MR. GALLAGHER: In the beginning, there was a tendency for 

people cani03 into the agency and saying, "I am a social worker with a 

history B.A. 11 I think there have been rcore people caning to the agency 

with a bactground in social work. Yes, I would say that with regard to 

the training aspect that was addressed earlier, there have been 

improvements in that area - more focusing -- although, again, as a 

union, we feel there needs to be much greater improvements. There has 

been a general trend to get JIDre people into DYES with social work 

backgrounds and to pranote internal training. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I noticed that on the survey Ur. Cahill 

did, she breaks it down to some degree. She found that 14% had a 

master's in social work; another 12% had master's degrees; and, another 

63% were college graduates. So, the vast majority are four-year 

college graduates, with maybe one-fourth havi03 master's or better 

degrees. 

MR. GALLAGHER: We have people in DYI:-'S who have related 

degrees that are also useful to their experience, such as a master's in 

guidance and counseling, and a master's in psychology. Unfortunately, 

in the past, for career-ladder development, DYPS has not recognized 

those degrees. That was another area of contention. But, we do have 

people other than M.S.W.'s who have a background. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes, my point bein;J that we are dealing 

with well-qualified, true professional people. sometimes we talk about 

social workers, and you know, I don't know what the image is. But, I 

want to make sure that everyone realizes that this is a true 
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professional-type of person who has spent a lot of time getting to 

where he is. 

MR. GM.LAGHER: If I could just add to that, we do have a 

sizeable group of people who have been with the agency for quite 

awhile, and they have actual practical experience in dealing with child 

abuse. That, again, is also another very important factor. 

MR. SABOL: I will give you-- It is difficult for us to get 

the averages on the caseloads. I think I would be doing a disservice 

to the Camnittee if I gave you partial figures for offices. 

For county figures, on averages, I will only give those for 

counties where we were able to get an actual count of every single 

worker in the offices, and the number of children and cases they had. 

What we found was that in Ocean County, it averaged out to 58.89 cases 

per worker. The only adjustments we made were, we removed fran the 

figures those workers who carried no caseloads. We have a foster hane 

developer and an administrative assistant, I believe, in that office. 

We removed the principal aid -- there is a principal aid in that office 

and her cases, because under legal regulations, she should not be 

carrying a regular caseload. we made adjusbnents to the hours of 

part-tirre workers. In other words, if a person was working two and a 

half days a week, we figured that his caseload should be adjusted to 

reflect the fact that he is only there one-half the tirre. 

In the Middletown office in r-t:>rurouth County, with a similar 

methodology- This is also removing, let me add, the intake workers 

and the cases that intake workers have; intake workers should not be 

carrying caseloads. These are the people who get the initial call; 

they are the screening response unit. They are the people who get the 

calls and go out and do the initial investigations. In the Middletown 

office, we came up with an average of 57 .8 cases. In Asbury Park, we 

came up with an average of 44.7 cases. In Middlesex, New Brunsicx:, we 

carne up with an average of 45 cases, but in that office, there is not a 

separate screening and intake unit. So, that artificially deflates 

those figures. 

Every worker carries a regular workload, in addition to, on a 

rotating basis, serving time when they get the initial calls, have to 
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sit in the office, receive the calls, write up the complaints, and 

serve a rotational tiue when they go out to do the investigation. 

In Middlesex-South County, which shares the same off ice as 

New Brunswick, a IOOnth ago, it was 41 .8 cases. But, since that time, 

two workers have left, so their cases are now faulted over into the 

other, so it brings it up to a higher level/ 

I think if you look at the figures that management gave 

yesterday- If yoo l<X>k at the figure that has been bandied aroun::t for 

awhile now -- 45 cases per worker -- and, if you look at the total 

number of cases that JJYFS claims it has under its supervision, whidl 

is about 45,000-sane, and the total number of DYFS workers, which is 

about 1,100, I believe, you come up witn a figure of 45 cases. But, 

there are numerous workers who are carrying no cases, ana rightfully 

so. We need foster hare developers; we need resources developers. 

Their intake workers should not be included in that. So, I think that 

would change their figures. 

I also found it interesting-- I'm perhaps not as quick at 

numbers as you were yesterday; I had to go back to my calculator. They 

stated yesterday that in 1982, and for same time prior to that, there 

was an average of 20,000 cases on the DYFS records over a yearly 

period. In 1984, they said that figure had risen to sane 45,000. That 

shows a 125% increase over the period of those three years. At the 

same time, the figures were given in terms of an increase in workers -

anywhere fran the figure you used of 1 00 more workers from 1981 to 
today -- the t igure DYr'S management used-- If you use the total mnnber 

of figures - I don't know if it went down at sare point arrl then it 
was brought back up again -- and you look over the total anount of 

time, you come up with a figure of 164 new people. That reflects in 

either a 10~ increase or a 15% increase in staff fran 1981 to 1984. At 

one time, you had a 125% increase in caseload, but at the same time, 

you had a 10% increase or a 15% increase in staff. 

The other thing I found interesting that was presented 

yesterday was that now the figure of 46/47 cases per worker is being 

used. What does that mean when you l<X>k at the standards of Missouri 

or Massachusetts where the Federal courts are involved, or an even 
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later Massachusetts stay court decision, which talks about 20 to 25 

cases per worker? DYFS management is saying, "Our goal is 25 per 

worker." It means that, as you stated yesterday, it is nearly double. 

It works out to about 184% of what the national minimt.nn is. 

I think we, as a State, that consider ourselves to be in a 

vanguard and concerned about children and avoiding litigation, etc., 

should not be looking at a minimum standard when a year fran now, if 

cases don't change arrl we hire these 500 new people, we may attain 
85%. I think we have to look at a minimum standard as being the 

bottom-line figure arrl something where we should be at all times, not a 
year away fran. 

In terms of the variation in cases, I would just like to give 

some examples of caseloads that workers reJ?Orted to us. In New 

Brunswick - 63, 60, 84, 57. In Ocean County - 76, 88, 92, Y6. In 
Asbury Park -- 90, 64, 63. In Middletown -- this is a part of Monmouth 

County; there are several offices in Monmouth County -- 84, 102, 97. 

This is to show you that it is a statewide problem. In Gloucester 

County -- 72, 56, 63. One worker carries 60 sexually abused children 
on her caseload. In Long Branch -- 54, 64. Some of the northern urban 

areas: Paterson 00 - 78, 77, 76, 80, 80. Intake workers in Paterson 

these are the workers who go out on the initial res.f?Onse; the case 

is supJ.X>sed to be seen within 24 hours or 48 hours and then turned over 
to a worker -- 62, 52, 41. In Newark 00 -- 116, 83, 70, 68, 89, 78. 

In suburban Essex - 93, 89, 93, 95. These are actual cases that 
w::>rkers are carrying right now. I think sane of these workers, or some 

workers fran these offices, will be coming up here and can further 
share what it ireans to carry a caseload of that size. 

In the Massachusetts decision, the judge stated that in 
instances where caseloads were too high, children literally got lost in 

the system. They were just forgotten; they were wandering about in the 

system with no one taking any resJ?Onsibility for them. 

I think that when you are dealing with caseloads of this 
size, you just realistically look at saneone who has 35 hours a week to 

do a job. Maybe for only three days a week they are able to have a car 
to do that job. Maybe 40% of the ti.me that week, they are doing 
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paperwork. So, if you are left with two or three days a week to visit 

102 kids as reCOim1ended cy the attorney who was here before us- On a 

weekly basis, you should take the children to rreet with their 

biological parents? Bi-weekly you should be rreeting with them in the 

foster hane? It is obviously physically impossible, let alone taking 

into consideration things like travel time, if you happen to be sick, 
vacation, mandatory training, mandatory attendance at steering 

committees, and things like that. 

They are just sane of the things I wanted to bring out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Coula you put together your findings 

maybe type it up or write it out -- so we can make that part of our 

appendix? 

MR. SABOL: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank you. Are there any questions? 
(negative response) Who is going to address the issue of the steering 

C'Oflllilittees? Do you have another witness who is going to address that 
issue? 

MR. GALLAGHER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me ask one question. I would like 

either you, or one of your caseworkers who is going to testify, just to 

give us an example of what a typical day is like. (laughter) I would 
like to know what you do from start to finish. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Okay. Well, with the permission of the 

Committee, we have, I believe, seven v.0rkers at last count -- who 

are prepared to testify. I was wondering if it would be possible to 
have them cane up as a group. Each v.0rker is prepared to give short 

testimony on a specific issue, but I think if the Committee has sane 

questions, it might be good to have all of the workers up here. '!hey 

do represent the entire State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay, that is a good idea. Bring them 

up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 

worker? (laughter) 

Is there anybody here who is not a DYl?S 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ,Jim, do you have an order that you are 

going to follow? 
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MR. GALIAGHER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I want to give the audience tne benefit 

of the schedule. We are going to go until about 1 : 30, and then we are 

going to break for the day. We are going to continue to hold hearings 

on another day that will be announced, probably not before the 

election, because it is difficult to get the Canmittee together before 

the election. We have seven witnesses here, who will probably take the 

better part of the next hour. So, if anyone has any other engagements 

or appointments to keep, you can leave now. We may have time for one 

or two people, but we have an awful lot of questions to ask these 

people, because they have their own presentations. I don't even tl1ink 

we will finish with these seven people. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Mr. Chairman, I have a couple of comments 

I would like to offer. One, maybe we ought to set another date or 

dates, because each time we say another day, we recognize that we may 

not get to everybody. Occasionally, I know that is a problem. 

•rhe other thing is, I don't want anyone to think -- either 

the Department, the union, or any other interested parties -- that 

because we are not able to get to you with respect to testunony that we 

are not going to take some action. 

It is my opinion to offer some recommendations to the chair 

about sane interim action, as you suggested, we should take to involve 

ourselves immediately in the funding process. There is a $500 

million-plus surplus, but there is a billion dollars worth of claims on 

it. I am not so certain that I have any higher priority than to 

address the needs of these children, the needs of these workers, and 

the needs of the departments and the managers. I think it has to be 

turned around into a cooperative effort before we finish with our job 

here. 

Larry is back there. We're not going to let the Governor 

make any mistakes by shifting the funds that are needed here to 

someplace else. We are on your side as far as that goes, at least as 

far as this member of the Camnittee is concerned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Well, I would certainly concur. I think 

we have already heard enough. The $12 million recommendation probably 
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isn't even enough, but at least it is a start and a step in the right 

direction. I would certainly want an interim report fran the Comnittee 

on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Once we get George the money, with the help 

of the union, we are going to show him how to spend it, Larry. 

(laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: 'Ille Comnittee is also considering sane 

hearings around the State. Perhaps we can go down to South Jersey and 

perhaps to North Jersey to get some input fran those areas that can't 

come to the Trenton hearings. We are going to explore this thoroughly. 
For those of you who have prepared remarks and cton' t get 

reached today, if you want to leave your prepared remarks with us, we 

will be happy to take them and correlate them into the record. 

Okay, Jim? 

MR. Gru:.LAGHER: Our first witness is Andrea Shorter. She is 

a family service specialist fran the suburban Essex office. 

ANDREA Sll'.>Rl'ER: Hello. I am Andrea Shorter -- S-H-0-R-T-E-R. I am 

from suburban Essex, and I have been working in that particular office 

since 1979. To reiterate the problem in the suburban Essex office, we 

do have extremely high caseloads. I have some statistics here which 

show that the number of children who each worker is caring for ranges 

from 40 up to 128. 

Because of the high caseloads, we are unable to monitor the 

cases as adequately and sufficiently as we should. Some families, 

because of their severe problems, ard under court order, we are just 

unable to do it. 'Ihat is because of the number of cases we have to 

handle, and also because of the overwhelming paperwork that we are 

required to do. It takes a long time to get reports together. '!here 

are 10 pages to some reports; there is duplication of paperwork. The 

canputers don' t make the paperworJc any less; they make it worse. we 
constantly have to fill out turnarounds and SIS forms. It takes a lot 

of time. You find yourself overwhelmed and not getting anywhere. You 

are not helping your clients, and you are not helping yourself. It is 

just a total mess. 
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'rhere is some fear in our office. There is a lot of stress 

and burnout. People don't want to come to worK, but they have to come 

because of survival and also because of their dedication. There 1s low 

morale because of the general lack: of support tran management aoo also 

a fear of being written up in disciplinary action for sanething you may 

not have done because you were unable to do, or something you forgot to 

do. You stand alone somewhat as a worker. 

There is no pat on the back for some of the good things you 

may do, but there is always a pat for what you do wrong. In other 

words, there is no team work. 

As far as I can see, since I've oeen with DYFS since 1979, 

the turnover has been high. I've seen a lot of people come and a lot 

of people go. We have same workers who have been there for years, but 

the majority of the new workers who come in are young, and they say, 

"No way." They leave. It takes a long time to fill the slots 

we have uni ts that disappear, aoo then when that happens, 

those workers who remain on staff have to take over the caseloads. At 

one point, we tried having specialized caseloads for instance, 

people who dealt specifically with sex abuse cases or with residential 

services, etc. What happened was, when these worKers who worked in 

this particular unit resignea, they gave the cases to the other workers 

who had no proper training to handle them. You go out and you are in a 

world of trouble, because you are trying your best, but you really 

don't know what you are doing. 

To wrap it up, I would just like to share a bit of personal 

history. I have personally experienced both sides of the coin. At one 

time, I was a client myself. I was a foster dlild for seven years. 

Someone spoke a little earlier and said how the children could very 

easily get lost in the cracks. I remember one time when I hadn't seen 

a social worker for two years. It was an unfortunate situation, 

because the foster parent was an alcoholic. During that two-year 

period, I didn't even get to have visits with my natural family. 

My present situation -- the fact that I am older -- is that I 

have alienated a member of my family. There is just no way we can get 

back together. It is all because the social workers weren't available, 
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for whatever the reasons were. But OCM, I am a social worker. I am an 

M.s.w. I am a social worker, and I find myself in a position where I 
am unable to respond to sane of iey clients. I have a gut feeling that 

I should be there, but I am unable to respona because of all the 
problems -- the caseload size and the paperwork. 

As a representative fran iey office, I think that the worKers 
are asking for additional workers, less paperwork, and co11munity 

resources. We don't have the resources; we don't have the foster 
parents; we don't have housing; we don't have enough food. We need the 
conmunity resources, and something should be done soon. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: How many people are there in your 
specific office? 

MS. SHORI'ER: How many people? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes, workers -- caseload workers --
approximately -- 10, 20? 

MS. SHORI'ER: No, about 50. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is the lack of nnrale in the management 
area based on management at the local level, the central regional 
level, or the State level? 

MS. SHORI'ER: All. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Can you be rrore specific in terms of this 
management problem that you see. 

MS. SHORI'ER: For instance, if there is a problem with a 

case, you tum to the office. Everybody is "hyper" because-- I think 
it starts fran the top administration. My imrrediate supervisor may be 
fearful of her supervisor because of what went wrong. You are goir¥J to 
be reprimanded for accountability, responsibility. Something went 

wrong. The child was hurt, or you made a wror¥J decision. You put a 
kid in foster care who should not have been put there; he should have 

gone to a relative, aoo so forth. Then, when it trickles on down, my 
imrrediate supervisor may request certain things of me as the worker. I 

am the direct-line worker. I go out, and I COire back and tell her what 
is going on. 

The depression is all put on the worker; the worker feels 
left alone. We are standing alone. There is no one to back us up. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: oo you have to make decisions as to 

whether to place a child with a family member rather than in a foster 

hane? Is that your decision to make as a worker? 

MS. SHORI'ER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: And, you can't pass the oock to saneone 

else then? 

MS. SHORI'ER: No. Usually what happens is -- depending upon 

the case - original cases cane through the intake section, but then 

they are passed on to the direct-line \\Orkers. we carry the case until 

the tiine of termination. While you are carrying a case, sanethill:J may 

happen. The family may have a problem. It doesn't go back to intake. 

You are the one who is responsible for going out, investigating the 

situation, and making an assessment -- whether or not to keep the child 

at hane, to take him out to foster care, or to a relative. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you have any ideas as to what could 

improve this relationship between the person on the firing line and 

management? 

MS. SHORI'ER: Less caseloads. You are under a lot of 

stress. Nol::xxfy wants to be accountable. Do you kno,, what I'm saying? 

Lower the caseloads, have training available to new workers, as well as 

to ongoing staff, and have stress-management groups within the offices 

themselves. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you have any local steering corrunittees 

at the local offices? 

MS. SHORI'ER: I believe so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is somebody else going to talk about the 

steerinq corruni ttees? 

Ml{. GALLAGHER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. uoes anyone else have questions of 

this witness? 

ASSEMBL~ FORD: You spoke about disciplinary action 

being taken against workers. Can you elaborate on that? 

MS. SHORI'ER: Okay. My personal experience is, for example, 

I had a family who moved fran one area to another, whidl was out of our 

catchment area. The woman had rroved a month before a scheduled court 
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date. It wasn't until maybe 13 days prior to the actual date that I 
found out what her new address was. But, due to the fact that I only 
had-- It was 13 days -- calendar days -- but, I only had five field 

days between the actual time I got the information arx:I the court date. 
The five field days went like this: one day was foster care placement, 

which takes an entire day a lot of times. You are sitting in a 
hospital, you are sitting in a doctor's office, you have to get the 

child, arx:I so forth. The first ctay was foster care. The secorrl day I 
had to go to court; that is another day that takes a lot of ti.me. 

Maybe the third day was foster care. The fourth day I had to go to a 
mandatory meeting, and the next thing I knew, it was time for oourt. 

What happened when I was trying to explain my situation was, 
first of all, it wasn't a crisis situation. The woman just rroved. 

When I explained that to one of the court people, she became very 
sarcastic and demeaning. That wasn't enough. The next thing I knew, a 

few days letter, I got a meno written up on me, questioning my 
canpetency as a worker. Then I became very angry and frustrated, and I 

responded back. At the same time, you become so angry at minor things 
that you say to yourself, "Well, maybe I should quit this job." You 

don't neect antagonism. You are supposed to work together as a unit. I 
say what could have happened instead was, she should have taken the 
information I gave her and also considered the fact of the pressure I 

was under. If it was a crisis situation, I would have readily worked 
until late at night or something to have gone in arx:i investigated the 
woman's new address. She didn't understand that, and she wrote rre up. 

It has happened to other workers. I am not going to naire any 
particular people, but we have workers who are dreadfully afraid of 
their inunediate supervisors. We have supervisors who are afraid of 
their supervisors because they are afraid they are going to write them 

up. After awhile, you get so many things written up on you that the 00 
management has to look at it and say, "Well, maybe you are not the 
right person for the job. Maybe you should resign." 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Are the immediate supervisors former 
caseworkers in roost instances? 

MS. SHORI'ER: In rmst cases, I would say yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Would they be nore or less sympathetic 

towards your situation if they were in that sane situation maybe a year 

ago, two years ago, or three years ago? 

MS. SHORI'ER: That is on an individual basis. I personally, 

right rKM, have a very supportive immediate supervisor, but that is not 

the case for all of my coworkers in the office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Sane people forget they were fiela 

people. 

MS. SHORI'ER: 'I'hey forget, or maybe--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) It is like sane judges 

who forget they were lawyers. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Isn't that the truth. (laughter) I have a 

question. How long have you been with DYFS as an einployee? 

MS. SHORTER: I've been with DYFS since 1979. I resigned in 

1980 to get my master's, and then I returned to DYFS. As I said, I was 

with DYFS when it was BCS as a foster child all the way up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FUY: So, you experienced similar problems even 

back then. 

MS. SHORI'ER: Back--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: (interrupting) Back when you were a foster 

child. 

MS. SHORI'ER: Since I was just a kid, I really didn't know 

what was going on, but I do know for a fact that I didn't see a social 

worker very much, I didn't get to have hane visits, and what has 

happened to me as a person because of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Since you've been there most recently as an 

employee, have you felt the effect basically of the diminution of the 

funding -- the fact that the caseloads increase and you don't have 

enough workers? You have a larger caseload now, right? 

MS. SHORTER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: And, it is pretty characteristic that rrost 

of the caseworkers have a load that far exceeds what the national norm 

is. Hasn't it been that way for awhile row though? 

MS. SHORl'ER: Yes, I guess for the past six or nine months. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: All right. Have you noticed, since the CWA 

has cone in, that you have a more aggressive union in terms of pursuing 
your activities? 

MS. SHORI'ER: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Were you in the old State employees union? 

Do you remember the old SCA? Maybe it would have been the CSA if you 
were in the county group. 

MS. SHORTER: Maybe at the tail end; I'm really not sure. I 
think we have a very assertive--

ASSF..MBLYMAN FOY: ( interrupting} This union is nore 
vigorous. Did you serve in the Department under Governor Byrne's 

administration? Do you recall? I guess it would have been 1979. 
MS. SHORI'ER: At the tail end, I believe. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let's see. When did he leave office? I 
forget; 1981, I guess. You were in there. Do you perceive a 

difference in the managerial style in terms of directives, or ao you 
really think that is a result also of the fact that there is an 

enormous caseload, and it is so burdensome to deal with that it has a 
negative impact on your managers too? Or, do you think it is a 

combination of both? That there is a new style of management -- a 
businesslike approach -- or, do you feel that it really is a result of 
the fact that there are limited resources arrl just so mucil of a job to 
do in such a difficult area? 

MS. SHORTER: I th ink both. It's not really clear. For one 
thing, I burned out a little bit myself. It is difficult for me to 
remember what happened yesterday. (laughter} I am being honest with 
you. So, for me to compare the two management teams, I think, would be 
unfair. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You see, my perception is, it may be a 
combination of a lot of things coming together at the same time 
limited resources, large caseloads, a nore aggressive union that is 

trying to do their job perhaps when in the past -- and, I don't want to 
criticize past leadership of the State Employees Union, but in the 

past, maybe they weren't as aggressive as this union is, plus a 
different managerial style where you have, in a sense, an approach. We 
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have had the Governor's Management Improvement Plan involved in trying 

to make government more businesslike. This is an area where it is 

awfully difficult to make government nnre businesslike because it is 

not a manufacturing facility. There is not a product that you can turn 

out in a certain amount of time. Your goal is not to make a profit; it 

is to serve people. I think there has to be a coming together of 

understanding about all of those issues, both on the union's part and 

on management's part. I think that is what you are asking for. 

The first way to start is to reduce that caseload. I think 

that is the initial building block: of it all. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Assemblyman Foy, our next witness is going to 

more specifically address management style. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Good, okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: Can I ask a question? Fran your 

professional background, what is your opinion on the actual training 

that you have seen in the past? In other words, when the individual is 

first hired, under the job description that they are hired for, what 

type of training has there been for each worker up until now? Is there 

in-house training, or does :30mebody just nore or less come in off the 

street to apply for a Job as a caseworker with Youth and Family 

Services? Is there a job description? After they are there, what 

training do they get? 

MS. SHORI'ER: Okay, there is a job description. We are Civil 

Service employees, and we do have in-house training. But, as an 

earlier witness stated, DYFS was, at one time, recruiting people who 

had B.A. 's in math and history, etc. Now, the trend is more to getting 

the social worker students -- the B.A. level and the M.S.W. level. 

Since I am an M.S.W. myself- The year I graduated from Colwnbia, I 

saw that people were not applying for social work school because, first 

of all, of the salaries, and maybe even because of administration -

their legislators. It wasn't human oriented. 

What is happening now is that I am under the impression that 

people still are not going into social v.0rk. It oothers me because I'm 

saying to myself, "With the figure of 507, I know that 300 and 

some are supposed to be social ¼Orkers." I am very concerned about who 
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the social workers are. Can we ensure that, along with the training 
they get when they cane into DYFS, they had sare social work 
background? Social work is a skill, and it is a profession. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: When you say "now, II ho,., long ago 
did it start being, what I would call, professionalized by choosing 
people, or at least applicants who have had sorre background in social 
work? I believe that is what you've just told 100? You said "now." It 
is different. Is no,., in the last year and a half? Do you believe it 
is rrore professional now in the last year and a half than it was in 
prior years? 

MR. GALLAGHER: I would say that that trend has been for the 
last three years or so. DYFS has instituted a new training program for 
new workers, which is fairly (X)fflprehensive. As a union, the complaints 
we get fran ongoing workers is that there isn't enough of a training 
period, and that there isn't enough training directed towards their 
needs. Those are the main complaints we are hearing fran the field. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICK~: I sympathize with the union because 
I have an honorary withdrawal card fran the International Association 
of Macninists, Local 434, so I am kind of familiar with what you are 
talking about. At the same time, the rrost important thing I would say 
is, I would like to see as much as I can of your approach to the 
training, even though you admit it is better now. I think there is a 
lot rrore that can be done for children between management and 
training. I don't think we should have that ongoing problem if we are 
going to take care of the product we are talking about, which are the 
kids of the State of New Jersey. 

What are your recxmnendations? I know there is always going 
to be a proolem between labor management arxl supervisors, but what 
recxmnendations are you making? I know rroney is going to be the-
We' re talking about $12.5 million, and I know the Governor is 
supportive of that. I believe you will see as much of that as possible 
out of all the demands on the State of New Jersey. 

MR. GALLAGHER: One of the things that we feel has to improve 
is worker input. This not only deals with training, but it deals with 
all aspects of the agency. 
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The existing structure of the steering conmittees, and we 

will have a witness talk about this, we feel, has failed. It has not 

provided worker input. In fact, it has led to an increase of 

demoralization of the staff. A number of people went to these 

cx:mnittees with suggestions, but they saw nothing happen. 1.hat just 

furthered their demoralization. 

we feel that in training there needs to be nore worker input, 

and that would better direct the training as to what the real needs are 

in the field. our main proposal is for nore worker input. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you want to bring up your next 

witness, Jim? 

MR. GALLAGHER: Yes. Thank you, Andrea. Our next witness-

A point was just brought up to rre that I think the Coouni ttee should 

think about. In talking about high caseloads, there is also a 

legitimate feeling of ¼Orkers that training time takes away fran their 

time to service their clients. We see that training people is being 

pitted against servicing people, which should not exist in a healthy 

social service agency. Again, caseloads do have an impact on people 

taking training. 

Our next witness is Paul Schiff. Paul is fran the Middlesex 

office; he is also a Family Service Specialist. He is going to talk 

about two areas: one, the managerial style as it is perceived by the 

workers in the office; and two, paperwork. We have heard a lot about 

paperwork. We have a little sanething to illustrate the plight of the 

workers. What we have done is, we have stapled together all the forms 

that it takes to put a child through the system. It comes out to 23 

feet of paper. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Jim, explain what you mean by "through the 

system." Is it fran the minute of the first phone call? 

MR. GAf..LAGHER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Until when? 

MR. GALLAGHER: Getting all the services neected until the 

end. That is just for one child. Now, if you have a family-

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: ( interrupting) The end being adoption or 

placement into foster care, whatever that end result is? 

MR. GALLAGHER: Whatever the result is, PROPERTY OF 
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(Caseworkers illustrate paperwork involved (23 feet) in 
putting a child through the system.) 

MR. GALLAGHER: That kind of dramatizes the plight of these 
workers. When you have a caseload of 50 or 60 children, you can see 
what kind of paperwork we are talking about. 'rhere are a lot of 
"forests" going into DYFS. 

This is Paul Schiff. 

PAUL SCHIFF: My name is Paul Schiff -- S-C-H-I -F-F. I am a Family 
Service Specialist in the i'1iddlesex office. I have been working for 
DYFS for approximately eight years in that capacity. 

In looking at the physical evidence, those of us who wade 
through all or most of the forms-- I don't knav exactly what there is 
right now, but I can tell you that hours and hours and hours are 
required to fill those out, sorre of which involve looking up codes in 
code books, and filling out forms for our computer system. Qlr 
computer system is a very time-consuming system for the worker. Other 
things require qualitative assessment, extensive writing, and some 
peace and quiet to be able to sit down and do these things, which is 
not the condition in our office. We have very, very crowded conditions 
where people are virtually trying to work on tcp of each other. 

Recently a number of workers in Middlesex, who I am familiar 
with, during the last six months or more, have had to resort to wcmdng 
beyond five o'clock on a very routine basis in order to try to cope 
with the paperwork. Many workers are staying in the office naw until 
5:30, 6:00, or 7:00 at night, or are taking this paperwork hane with 
them in order to cope with the demands. 

Other workers are falling further and further behind because 
of personal and family reasons, and also becasue of a feeling that they 
are paid to do one job, not one and a half or two jobs. 

There is no escape. You are either sacrificing your personal 
life in order to try to do your job, or you are getting more and more 
burned out in the process. A lot of this involves paperwork. It also 
involves field work, and if you are not doing it, you may be more 
subject to having this held over your head. 
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The question of managerial style, I think, has to be put in 

perspective with the fact that one, we are getting a dramatic increase 

increase in the number of cases reported. 'fhat is primary. Two, 

adininistration has told us to reach out m::>re than was the case 

formerly. Not only are we dealing strictly with children who are 

reported to be abused and neglected, but basically we are being told, 

at least at the local level, that if anyone calls up and says, "I want 

you to investigate this situation because I don't think saneone is 

taking care of his chiloren too well," -- without being very specific 

-- we might respond to this. This generates a tremendous am::>unt of 

driving time, field time, telephone calls, collateral calls to 

investigate within the conmunity, and then the whole range of paperwork 

on cases where we don't even really have specific allegations that 

children are at risk. F'or example, sometimes these calls come from 

estranged parents who are not living with the children and who are 

sometimes utilizing our agency for m::>tives other than legitimate child 

protection. 

workload. 

Anyhow, this is an aspect that is also increasing our 

Another aspect of it is, fran all appearances -- from 

everything I have seen over the last at least six to eight months -

there is a tremendous am::>unt of pressure caning fran the top ctown 

through middle-level management, and then eventually caning down to the 

worker, which is essentially a "cover your ass philosophy," to put it 

most bluntly. This is resulting in a lot of fearful decisions beintJ 

made by people. There is the fear of closing cases because if, God 

forbid, a child should get hurt, it is not the parents' fault or the 

fault of the person who has ccxmni tted the crime, but rather, the DYFS 

worker for closing the case, or the DYFS supervisor, or the 00 manager 

who has approved the closing of this case. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: When do you close a case? 

MR. SCHIFF: 'I'hat is a good question. Very often, I count my 

cases, and I put down a number. It is with the supposition that I ' ve 

closed the case, but three, four, or five weeks later, I may get that 

case back and find that it hasn't actually been closed because somebody 

feels that maybe I should write a letter here or make a phone call 
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there. This is increasingly camon. I used to close nost of my cases, 
and they would stay closed. Today, many of them are coming back, and I 
am finding workers having a problem closing many cases -- when they get 
time to even do them -- because they are fearful. I think the fear of 
repercussions fran above at the level that I see in my office are then 
passed on down to the workers, and the result is that instead of 
workers being directed mainly tawards protecting children as their 
priority, and using their professional skills, knawledge, and 
experience in making priorities in consultation wherever p:>ssible with 
management, we are being given directives, which are often misdirecting 
our focus. This can happen, with all due respect to the Committee 
members, the Assembly, and other political lx>dies, when we get requests 
fran fX)litical persons, like yourselves, who may become involvea in a 
situation and may call Mr. Blatner or somebody else on high. we may 
then get an absolute panic situation of v.0rkers being told, "You must 
ao this; you must do that. Work Saturdays, whatever it takes. We must 
do this." The case is not a priority; it is not the kind of situation 
where- If we were saying what we should be doing at any time, given 
all these conflicting demands that we have right naw, we shouldn't be 
operating that way. That is just an example; it is not the primary 
problem. 1ha.t is an isolated-type thing. But, this kind of situation 
is going on fran upper management and on down through lower management, 
where a many of the directives that a.re being given to v.0rkers are not 
that the priority is child protection. This is interfering with our 
ability to do our jobs properly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What is the priority naw as opposed to 
child protection? 

MR. SCHIFF: That is a good question. We had an audit 
recently. In June, our office, along with many other offices, directed 
a letter to Mr. Blatner, explaining that the caseloads had gone up so 
rruch that v.0rkers really did not feel they could do their jobs. They 
were becoming increasingly concerned about protecting the children who 
were under their supervision, and properly investigating the new cases 
that were coming to their attention. we did not receive a formal reply 
to that letter for about three IrOnths. Really, as far as any remedy is 
concerned, nothing was done. 
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During that period of time, a worker in the New Brunswick 

office was suspended for five days. He was a relatively new worker 

with little and inconsistent supervision for the year he had been in 

the office, and he also had the highest caseload, fran what I could 

see, of the entire office. He had over 60 families and over 90 

children as his responsibility. He was charged with being inefficient, 

anong other things. He went out on a case, the child was not seriously 

injured, he was unable to get back to that case because of all the 

other demands on his time, and that child subsequently became rrore 

seriously injured and required placement. At the time, there was no 

indication that was true, and no placement of the child was called for, 

except after the second incident. Since the worker was unable to 

follow-up, he was subsequently disciplined and suspended for five days 

without pay. 

This kind of situation creates an atmosphere in our office of 

fear and a feeling that management is not giving us support. They 

should certainly understand that nobody can fX)Ssibly do a job-- I'm 

not talking about 90 children; it is very hard to do a joo with half 

that am:.>unt and really be resfX)nsible. 

In our office, we have a rotating system of intake. We are 

constantly on screening and resfX)nse, meaning we must resfX)nd to the 

new cases that care in, as well as service the cases that we have 

already opened. In that kind of situation, with that added burden, the 

number of cases we can care for is much, much lower. 

I would estimate that the suspended worker was operating on 

a minimum of four times the anount of cases he could possioly handle in 

any kind of reasonable way. Yet, he was suspended for five days. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Mr. Chairman, if I may excuse myself and 

interrupt, those judges we were talking about have required me to leave 

here. I have to be somewhere at one o'clock regarding a settlement 

conference. I want to afX)logize to the group and indicate that I will 

certainly read the transcript to familiarize myself with the rest of 

today's testimony, as well as what I missed yesterday. I hope to be in 

attendance at the future meetings that are going to be held arourx:l the 

State. 
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I don't, hc,..rever, want to lose the opportunity to get started 
with addressing the issues about which you and the Department are 
concerned. That clearly should involve our response as quickly as 
possible. I would like to ask the chair if he would entertain 1notions: 
one, to direct staff to prepare an interim report as a result of these 
two days of hearings, so we don't have to wait for subsequent hearings; 
and two, to make, as part of that report with the indulgence and 
approval of my colleagues on the Carmittee -- a request to Legislative 
Services to draft a supplemental appropriation bill for the $12.8 
million, and have you be the sponsor of it, with the Corrmittee as 
co-sponsors. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is that a formal notion? 
AS8EMBLYMAN FOY: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there a second? 
ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I'll second it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN f:t""'LYNN: All in favor? (affirmative response from 
Canmittee members present) 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I would just like to add that, witn 
the interim report -- and, I agree with 1ey- colleague that we need it as 
soon as possible -- I believe we ought to hear fran the other side of 
the coin so we can make sane kind of differential. 

If I may ask a {1uestion. With your union contract, wnen 
there is a five-day suspension, you can appeal. Did you go through the 
appeal }?rocess? 

MR. SCHIPF: Yes. In the case of this particular individual, 
it is still in the--

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: (interrupting) In other words, 
there may still be tin~ to--

MR. SCHIF'F: (continuing) It was upheld by management on the 
first level. 

ASSEM8LYMAN HENDRICKSON: I'm not saying management. I am 
saying that your union represents you. You have the opportunity to 
have the union cnme in and represent the side of the worker. Where 
does that stand now? 

MH. SCHIFF: But, the first-level hearing is oefore 
management, and that was upheld. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: I understand that, but you still 
have the opportunity to have the union cone in and really finalize and 
protect the worker because that is the oontractual--

MR. GALLAGHER: ( interrupting) We have Civil Service 
procedures. we have sane ability to deal with discipline that is 
imposed, but there are sate gaps in Civil Service law, especially on 
written reprimands where people have very little protection. we are 

dealing with that as a union in trying to reform Civil Service. That 
is a whole other issue. 

I think the point we would like to bring out here-- We don't 
want to get caught in specific cases because we have people here who 
have been disciplined. I'm sure that each person here could give you a 
list of 10 or 15 people in the office Oller the last oouple of years who 
have suffered some form of discipline. 

The result of that has been, we think, a dem::>ralization, and 

in part and parcel with high caseloads, the cause of the norale problen 
in DYFS. Every time one person is disciplined, it sends out a level of 
fear through the office. Now, in a lot of these offices, as Paul has 
indicated, decisions are not made as to what is best for the child. 
Decisions are made on how to protect yourself. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: I'm a little oonfused. I haven't 
been able to participate. I know you are Civil Service, but it was 
brought up that the Communications Workers Union is also what you are 
representing. That still does not have the effect of going in. Tnat 
is what you are telling ne. That tells ne that we should be getting 
together as quickly as possible. I agree with you that Civil Service 
has to be reformed, like yesterday. That is what you said here. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: Hopefully we can get that done and 
resolve it somewhat. 

MR. GM.LAGHER: I would hope that we will have your support 
on that. We would appreciate it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: You have support on Civil Service 
reform, and I have been involved with it in many, many areas. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Maybe we can talk about that later. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Mr. Gallagher, would you categorize the 
relationship of what I'm hearing between the workers and 
administration? Is it an embattled one? 

ASSF.MBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: -~t sounds like it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is there an embattled relationship here? 
tiR. GALIAGHER: Yes, I would sey that as far as the situation 

in the office is concerned, 'WOrkers feel -- I think you've heard this 
several times - alone. They feel that management is out to get them. 

As far as the relationsnip between the union and management 
is concerned, as a union, we have tried over the last two years to 
establish an ongoing labor/management relationship with the DYFS 
management team, based on problem solving. We feel we have been 
stymied in that effort. 

Using the grievance procedure whidl exists, our approadl is 
to solve problems. we have addressed a number of problems through the 
grievance procedure. Mr. Schiff's office filed a grievance about State 
cars. We have had other grievances about job stress, and these 
grievances were dealt with in a strictly legal sense. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That is not the way to handle good labor 
relations. 

MR. GALLAGHER: Right. 
ASSBMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yoo solve the proolem before it gets to 

the grievance level. 
MR. GALLAGHER: Right. They would pick out little points and 

say, "You don't have a case here." It doesn't mean that the problem 
doesn't exist. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: '!be steering coomi ttee has the potential 
of being what you need, if the steering ccmnittee is done properly. 

I don't know if oor interim report should get into anything 
beyond what appears to be the urgent need. The urgent need is the 
additional rroney for the caseworkers. I think we should limit our 
interim report to that aspect. 

Regarding the other aspects -- like you said, you. want to 
hear all sides of the coin - I think we' 11 await the full statewide 
hearings we are going to have in order to have all sides of the coin. 
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Then we can make a full re~ndation on the other aspects. I think 
the rroney is desperately needea nCM, and it can't really wait. So, I 
would like to limit the interim report to the noney. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: There is no question that that is 
needed, but in order to have the noney spent correctly and to help the 
labor side, the caseload side, managenent is still sitting in there 
sanewhere. 

I asked the question before. Perhaps our problem is that one 
supervisor should be over three to five caseworkers, so there is a 
closer working relationship between labor and management. Managenent 
may be so far away that their problem is the same thing. They are 
handling 30 or 40; I have no idea. If we don't approaeh it that way-

I don't believe just thrCMing noney out is the answer. We'll 
go whatever way is expeditious to do the job. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: The thing is, I don It knCM if we can get 
those answers that quickly. I would like to get the noney, but you 
knCM hCM long it takes to get 11oney. The bill can't be put in until 
November 19. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: We can hold it on the side and say, 
"Okay, you have $12.5; nCM let's spend it wisely." 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: NCM, we' 11 spend it wisely, right? But, 
I want to get the 1r:oney in the pipeline and get it rolling. 

ASSEMBLY~1AN FORD: Assemblyman, I would suggest that that 
type of analysis might be more appropriate within the Appropriations 
Ccmnittee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Spending the noney? I don It think the 
Appropriations Conmittee has the time to do an analysis. We are 
going into som: minute portions of their overall budget in-depth. I 
don't think they could possibly spend the arr:ount of time that we're 
going to spend on this. We can make recamnenaations to them. 

ASSEMBL~ FORD: No, I mean as far as the concerns about 
placing restrictions on the noney. There are ways of doing that within 
either legislation or the Appropriations Cormtittee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Okay. You are on that Carmittee, of 
course, so you will be able to express the total Carmi ttee' s view on 
that. 
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ASSEMBL~ FORD: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN F'LYNN: Okay, fine. Continue, please. 
ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSCN: Excuse rre, I have to get back to 

southern Ocean County. I really apologize. My agent is here, and I've 
told him--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: (interrupting) we are going to have one 
of our hearings down in the Morurouth/Ocean region. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSON: I would like to see it in Toms 
River. we have plenty of roan now. We' 11 get you a big area so we can 
have plenty of people. I believe we are on the tq? of the list, and we 
have a large caseload. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: We are going to try to have one down 
there at perhaps two of the DYFS facilities. we're going to do it 
right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN HENDRICKSOO: Absolutely, and then maybe we can 
have one in Atlantic/Cape May. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: I have one last question for Mr. Schiff. 
We have been told that the paperwork, by and large, is mandated, and 
that there isn't too much that can be done to cut it down. Are there 
any canrni ttees within your organization that are working on reducing 
the paperwork and maybe making suggestions as to what can be 
eliminated? 

MR. SCHIFF: It seems as if there are always paperwork 
canrnittees within DYFS, and in the years-

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: ( interrupting) Are they union oriented, 
worker oriented, or are they managem:!nt oriented? 

MR. SCHIFF: In the years I have been with the agency, I have 
witnessed a number of turnovers in forms, including the entrance of the 
SIS system, which is a major part of our paperwork. we have stated 
that a lot of that work could be nore efficiently and better done by 
clerical staff, if there was clerical staff available to do it. '!hat 
would free us. We constantly have to look up codes in code books, and 
decide which number to put on a form. If we make a mistake, we nave 
clerks running back to us in the middle of our conversations on the 
phone saying, "why did you put a 2 here and not a 3?" 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: vilat is the SIS? Is that your a:xnputer 
system? 

MR. SCHIFF: That is our a:xnputer system, and we have a 
nwnber of different forms we have to utilize. The actual dictation 
forms we use have changed at least four times, and we are in the 
process of another one. Each time we get one or two days of training 
to learn hcrw to use the new fonn, when many of us are having trouble 
even writing up our dictations, we are getting new forms on which we 
have to learn hcrw to properly write up the casework plans and 
assessments. Sorre of us get a little bit like, "Here we go again," 
because we have seen this happen a number of times. Everybody has a 
better way of doing it. 

It turns out to be disruptive and time-consuming, and in 
another year or two, people will be saying, "Well, there must be a 
better way of doing it." 

What seems to have happened is that the paperwork burden 
increased--

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: (interrupting) My point is that everyone 
has said there is too much paperwork, but no one seems to have any 
ideas or solutions as to what can be eliminated. 

MR. GALIAGHER: I would say fran our end, there is a 
paperwork committee that was set up by the management team. There are 
workers on that committee; sane of them could be union people. But, 
there has been do direct labor/management discussion about paperwork. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Why not have, for example, your 
membership sit dcrwn with your crwn carmittee and cooe up with what the 
people on the firing line think is the necessary paperwork, and then 
submit it to management, rather than just thrcrwing your hands up and 
saying, "We've got too nuch paperwork?" 

MR. GALLAGHER: We knCM we are getting close to the end of 
our time. we would like to try to bring forth at least one nore 
witness, who will be Joe Walsh. Joe is a Family Service Specialist 
from the Mercer District Office, and he is going to address the 
steering carmittees and corrmunity resources. 
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JC6EPB W1\LSH: I remember watching the Reagan debate the other 
night,and realized our attention span is twenty minutes, at rrost, so I 
guess all of us are beyorrl paying attention to one another. 

I want to thank you for being invited here today. My name is 
Joe Walsh and I work in the Mercer District Office. Many of my clients 
live within about four blocks of this building, so I am familiar with 
the downtown area. 

My preparation for my work in the Mercer District Office is, 
I have a cachelor's d~ree fran the University of Massachusetts, School 
of Education; I have a master's degree in social work fran Temple 
University, School of Social Administration, with a focus on social 
policy and planning; I have certification fran the Academy of Certified 
Social Workers; and, I am a Certified School Social worker in New 
Jersey. But, the real thing that qualifies me to be here today is that 
I t,,Qrk in the Mercer District Office doing investigations of physical 
and sexual abuse cases. 

There are three points, really, that I wanted to bring to 
your attention, and they are: How the steering conrnittee has t,,Qrked in 
our local district office; ho,.i the new overtures in the punlic/private 
partnership towards the resolution of child neglect and child abuse in 
New Jersey is working; arrl what some of those problems are. 

However, the main point I would like to start with is to say 
there is a certain kind of theme whidl overshadows mudl of what we do. 
I can't say strongly enough ho,.i important it is for those of us who 
t,,Qrk in this field to realize that we work with the poor, racial and 
ethnic minorities, -women, and children. Now, in our society that is 
the bottom, and I think that until people realize that is the bottom we 
are not going to really understand the nature and the gravity of the 
problem. 

I used to be a school teacher. Middle class parents wouldn't 
put up with 65 children in a classroan. They simply wouldn't have it. 
But, there is really not the same kind of concern with 65 children on a 
protective service case load, because those people don't have the 
political clout; they aon't have the econanic clout; and, they are at 
the oottan. The majority of people I see are 16 to 18 to 22 year-old 
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mothers with two or three children and no male support in the hane. 
There is no economic support, no education, and few resources in the 
cannunity to deal with the overwhelming problems of being a young 
rrother. 

It is oot fashionable any longer to talk about race and sex 
and class as issues whidl affect people's lives, because we are in a 
different era now. That was the '60's and this is the '80's. But, 
that hasn't changed the reality of what poor people deal with in this 
society, and in this State in particular. I just think it is important 
to realize that impacts not just our clients, but those of us who work 
with them, because the closer you work with the poor, the minorities, 
and the neglected the rrore you are like them and the rrore you are 
treated like them in society, because of your connection there. 

If you work with poor people, you are like poor people. So, 
as I said, the public perception of what we do is, we don't do mueh and 
we are not qualified because we work with people who really can't be 
helped. 

Regarding the steering carmittees, our office, at the tirrE of 
the DYFS reorganization, was told that we had an over-staffing and we 
had to 1rove from-- When I started, full time, with Mercer we had about 
60 workers; we now have 35 workers. We are considered to be 
over-staffed. Consequently, there was a need in our office - having 
been told that we had to reduce our staff to figure out how this 
could be done in the least disruptive way to our clients and to our 
work system. So, we are in a situation different than sane, where 
during this recent hiring, offices were expanding, and we were 
constantly contracting. That has affected the norale. 

So, a group of workers got together with the managernent in 
our office, as well as with saneone fran our central region and from 
Central Office, to try and deal with this. Now, these dlanges were 
imposed -- the things we thought ought to be done. Many people dealt 
in gCXXJ faith, and I include people fran the Central Office am people 
from our local management area. The b::>ttan line is, the issues the 
workers needed to address were issues of caseload size, worker norale, 
and quality services to clients. Those are issues which the steering 
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carmittee never could address, and still cannot address, because those 
things had to do with the funding and with management assessment of 
resource allocation. Those things have not worked in our office. 

People, in addition to incteasing their caseloads, have had 
to take time out of their day sanetimes a whole day a week - for 
ccmnittee work. They then hcd to take hooe and write up the documents 
and bring them back for proper discussion in carmittee, this on top of 
their increasing caseloads. So, we were working double tine doing 
management and doing casework, and the end result was that people 
couldn't take it anyroc>re. 

In our particular office, as a result of the ongoing 
frustration with the inability to effect real changes and to have real 
input into decision-making, our steering carmittee has resigned. We 
have no steering carmittee in our office, and we will not have one. I 
am here with the full support of every social worker in my office. We 
are not interested in participating in any kind of management, steering 
ccmnittee scheine which doesn't give people real input and real 
aecision-making ability. In all honesty, sooe of the issues which they 
address, they can't really solve either. That is one of the reasons 
why we are here to support the increased funding for the agency. I 
would fully support that. 

The other issue I would like to aadress is the one of 
public/private partnership. Currently our county, Mercer County, has 
the luxury, in som: regards, of having nore services available than 
many other counties have. -we are not a resource poor county, per se, 
in canparison with other counties. we have aone a lot of recent 
contracting of services with private agencies, to do the kinds of 
things we used to do ourselves. This has created certain Kinds of 
problems. 

For one, the clientele that DYFS has worked with are 
traditionally involuntary multi-problem families. Most of the 
traditional middle class treatrient programs in our area don't kno.v ho.v 
to deal with involuntary clients who don't want help; they are based on 
a nore middle-class m:x:iel: "If I have a problem, I will go to you and 
get help." So, tnere is a question about how the treatment is handled 
t7j those agencies. 
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This has created some oonflict between the DYFS workers and 
the private agency workers, and in sane ways we admire workers in the 
private sector. They say, "I take ten cases," and when they get ten 
cases, that is all they take. Meanwhile the DYFS worker is handling 45 
and 50 cases. So, the DYFS worker has to finally say, "How can DYFS 
say to the private agency, 'we think you can only do quality servic-es 
with ten families; we are only going to give you ten; you don't have 
near the paperwork because you are not the State agency; but, we will 
give the DYFS counterpart 45 cases and say, "You will take as many as 
you get. II I II 

The private agencies have the right to say, "We will only 
contract with you for ten families per worker, and that is the limit." 
When you work in our agency, as many calls as cane in in a week, that's 
how many cases you get. This creates real tension between the private 
agencies and the p..iblic agencies which is unnec-essary. 

Also, there is the issue of accountability. Acoountability 
by DYF~ is-- And, you can' t be assumed to have anything done 
correctly; therefore, there is an elaborate accounting mechanism. When 
it goes to a private agency, it is assumed that because they are 
private, even though the sane employees are working back and forth 
between the system, they know how to do the job canpetently, so they 
don't spend as much time being accountable. so, I have a problem with 
the different standards of accountability in that regard. 

The other issue is - as long as we are dealing with the 
issue of accountability, which has not been spoken about here -- my 
feeling about accountability is the management team and the Department 
are accountable to me and to the clients I serve. This has been turned 
around and sanehow says that I am accountable to the Department for the 
client and his behavior. I think the workers in the field have to 
begin to say, "This is not the case. This Department, this society, 
and tne citizens of this State have sane responsibility to us as 
workers in protective servic-es, and to the families that we serve." 
That's real accountability. 

The accountability of how many forms were filled out, and 
when "ti1is" was done, and when "that" was done, is one kind of 

123 



accountability which ensures the flo.v of Federal dollars. But, where 
is the accountability to me? The issue people brought up earlier was 
about support. There really is a problem here. People do feel alone. 
If sanething goes wrong, you will be the sacrificial goat. In the 
private system, if a oornpany is not performing properly the 
stockholders vote the management out. When sanething is not 
functioning properly in DYFS, they put out the worker. we have to 
start saying that this whole scope of accountability and the whole way 
in which it is looked at is backwards, and tum it around. This is not 
to cast stones, but to tell you that it is very hard to say to sometx:xfy 
that you have no oontrol CNer the arrount of work you are given to do in 
a day, and, yet, yoo are held accountable for everything that happens 
to you in that day, and for everyone assigned to you, regardless of its 
appropriateness. I think it is time that this be the focus: Ho.v is 
the State going to provide for adequate protective services, and not 
ho.vis a DYFS social worker going to provide for it? 

You )mo.v, many of us are professionals in our jobs, and we 
have really done an outstanding job, but there are limits to what 
people can effectively do and still expect to stay with the Agency. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Joe, right no.v yoo don't have a steering 
canmittee at all? 

MR. WALSH: No, we do not. I understand there is an 
appointed time for them to meet, but no one is ueeting. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What would it take to get your steering 
canmittee going? 

MR. WALSH: In our office, we are in a position where there 
are certain major problems that can' t be resolved by a steering 
carmittee until a management team arri the people who affect funding and 
planning deal with us seriously. So, there has to be sane gesture, 
sucn as an increase in staffing - whicn has been our constant cry -
and some sensitivity to rrorale issues -- whether it be appropriate 
training for workers, or whatever. 

I was involved with the carmittee that helped foster the new 
twenty-day worker training program. It was an excellent program and we 
had nothing before that. That is essential. 
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We need to see-- I guess I will back up a little bit. 
Symbolic coomunication is so important, and I think that is sanething 
we do not understand enough. When a management team took aver, a cloud 
was created about the credibility and the canpetency of DYFS workers. 
Many of us were well trained before we came here. 'Ihat said to us that 
they did not think we could do our job. That image, which is basically 
iredia image, was fostered and fed for the last two years: "DYFS 
workers can't do their jobs. They make mistakes. They are not 
properly trained. They are incanpetent." 

You know, it is very hard, when you are going out knocking on 
a very hostile door in a vicious neighborhood, to have a client say to 
you, "I recd the paper, and I know you don't know what you are doing." 
To get no support whatsoever fran the management about that, so that 
even your own supervisors are uncanfortable about how to handle 
situations because they have to watch out for the constant winds of 
change, creates an atmosphere where trust has simply broken down. 

So, you are asking ire what can be done to get that started 
again, we need sare clear-cut, symbolic, and real ccmnunication, which 
makes clear that a mange has cane in the way workers are dealt with. 

To give you can example in terms of a coomunication mix-up, 
on the one hand we get a set of memos saying, "These are the new 
guidelines for services. These are the kinds of things that need to be 
done in every case to ensure that every child is safe." These are 
elaborate procedures. They are very professional and appropriate 
procedures. 'I'hey are outrageous, given the number of pages we have, to 
even expect people to do this, but this will be the standard against 
which we are held. It ~uld require the ~rkers to do about 15 to 20 
hours of overtiire per week, per worker, to do cases in that fashion. 

Within a period of two weeks canes a interim policy Ireit10 on 
overtime usage: "It has appeared that too many workers are 
accumulating too much avertirne. This rrust be reduced to a maximum of 
60 hours. Those who don't reduce them within the next t~ rronths will 
lose their overtime." So, it is this constant kind of harassment-
And, I am not even stating that as a judgJTEnt; it is a fact. That is 
the way it is (X)f11ing down. People are saying, "Well, fine. You have 
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to use up the crvertime" -- which means taking off time -- "and you have 
to work harder." 

in rconey? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Is the crvertime in oonpensation time or 

MR. WALSH: It is in cx:xnpensation time. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: And, you never get the time off anyway? 
MR. WALSH: well, you have to fight to take off. The problem 

is, you tend to need the overtime after you have worked a lof¥3 stretch 
of crvertime. You need to take time off. But, the situation in our 
office is, over the last year it has gotten so that we are constantly 
in crisis. Asking to take crvertime off requires supervisory approval. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: If you take tne canp time off, then what 
happens to your caseload? 

MR. WALSH: You can't take the time off without approval, you 
see. And, since you are oonstantly getting new cases, it is very hard 
to schedule overtime. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You also said one thing that I was 
concerned about, and that is that some of these steerir¥3 committees 
only want to do tnis if it is done on actual work time. 

MR. WALSH: I'm sorry? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: When people serve on steering ccmnittees, 

or paper work production ccmnittees, or whatever, do they want to be 
carpensated for that? 

MR. WAI.SH: Well, in our office people were doing it on their 
work time. You kna,.,, obviously management works the same hours as 
workers do, so they would come during the workday. That is part of 
their responsibility to do that. It is not part of our outlined 
responsibilities, so we were actually winding up trying to do five days 
of casework in four days so we would have the extra day for the 
ccmnittee. People might be interested in staying later, but the point 
is, that people are working so many long hours rKM, to ask them to do 
one rcore thing in the hope that things will change - I don't krKM hCM 
people will feel about that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: we are tal.1dng about professionalism and 
the fact that you are professionals. Most professional organizations, 
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when they work on committees -- whether it be a medical society or 

accounting -- they are doing it on their own time. They are doing it 
on Saturdays or nights, or whatever. So, I think that is part of 

being a professional, as opposed to be a straight hourly worker. 

MR. WAL.SH: Of oourse. Well, many of us are already working, 

through the SPRIJ system, on emergency response through the night. I 
work on our child abuse hot line at least one day a week, sanetimes 

longer. I also have involvement with professional organizations. I am 
a member of NASW, and that takes a certain amount of my time. And, 

there are other kinds of canmi tments that all of us have. So, I don' t 
think it is an issue where workers aren't interested in their 

professional ccmnitments outside of the nine-to-five area. Sanetimes 
it is just hard to work Ol/ertime for long stretches, and then not see 

that work out. I think that is the issue. People are willing to give 
the time. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN FLYNN: Well, if it doesn't work, I can see that; 
you feel you are wasting your time because the steering o::mni ttee has 

no power. I think maybe if you had a steering cornmi ttee that had sane 
paver, you might be willing to work on it. 

Okay, tnank you. Jim, do you have any other witnesses? 

MR. GM.IAGHER: We have one rrore witness. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: One that is left, that hasn't testified 
so far? 

MR. GALLAGHER: We have one witness that I think we would 
like to have address the Corranittee. She would like to respond to a few 

of the things Canmissioner Albanese brought up yesterday, which I think 
needs response. She is Delores McDyer, fran the Ocean District Office. 

DELCH?.S Mc:DYER: My name is Delores McDyer. I am a Field Service 

Specialist 3 with the Ocean County District Office. I have been with 
the Division since June, 1973. 

I just lost my train of tnought imnediately. It is very 

difficult for me to speak loud, so I will have to rrove close to the 
microphone. Does that help? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: That is just for recording; it is not an 
amplifier, so do the best you can. 
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MS. McDYER: I heard Dr. Cahill speak about the stress level 
and the harassment of the workers in the Division, and the fear that is 
generated by the harassment. I have told you that I have been with the 
Division since June of 1973. In tha'f-· blocx of time, I have seen many 
changes in the Division. 

For two years I worked as a screening and response unit 
worker. 'Ibis is a highly-specialized focus of the social worker's 
role. What we do is, we accept the inmediate referral, screen out what 
is inappropriate for the Division to look into, and respond to the 
situation, either on an energency basis or within a certain time frame. 

In July of 1983, I went into a generic caseload and left the 
screening unit.· At that same ,time, we lost the sense of screening in 
the Division. We were told that we nust basically respond to every 
call that was focused at the Division. 

If I may be very specific, I will describe certain calls, two 
of which I was personally involved with. There was a call regarding a 
child of three or four, who was seen in a car without being in a car 
seat, and the license plate number was given to the Division; two 
adolescents climbing a ladder to the loft Oller the family garage, we 
had to respond to that; and, a child, 11 years old, playing at nine 
o'clock at night, in front of his house, in the s~rtime, with a 
group of his friends. 

Now, the reason given for those responses was, "We have to be 
sure. We have to make sure the child was all right." 

The situation with the two children climbing the ladder to 
the loft over the family garage - the police were first asked to go 
out. They found no problem, but the worker was still told to go out, 
because, "we have to be absolutely sure there is no problem with those 
two children." 

If I may ask your indulgence, I would like to explain a 
premise. Historically, parents, as they raise their children, are met 
with certain aecisions, and these decisions are based upon the joogment 
of the parent: '!be decision as to wnen a child can go outside the 
house alone; the decision as to when a child can walk to a local 
grocery store to do an errand for his parent; the decision as to when a 
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daughter is old enough to go out on her first date. Basically, parents 
use good judgment in their decisions, and this is the responsibility 
and the right of the parents. 

When the parent uses poor judgment, that is when the family 
canes under the realm, or under the jurisdiction of the Division of 
Youth and Family Services. We cannot prevent evecy situation fran 
happening. We cannot ensure the safety of evecy child within the State 
of New Jersey. There are certain parental rights. There are certain 
rights and responsibilities of caretakers that preclude our 
involvenent. I presently have 79 children under supervision. I have 
children in tneir natural hane. I have children in foster care. And, 
I have children in institutions. A few of those cases are in the 
process of being terminated, and those cases that are in the process of 
being terminated, I feel, do not require in-depth services. 

adoption? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What v.0uld terminate those cases? 
MS. McDYEk: Pardon me? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What v.0uld terminate those cases, 

MS. McDYER: No, sir, not at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What would terminate them? 

MS. McDYER: The fact that the family is stable enough to 
secure solutions to their own problems, and that the child is not in 
any danger, or at any risk. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: It is a judgment 'aj you or someone higher 
than you, is that the way it is? 

MS. McDYER: Primarily by the worker, by myself -- by every 
worker. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, in your judgment, when you decide it 
is a stable situation, you then close that case, is that it? 

MS. McDYER: Yes, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Then, God forbid, sanething happens, you 
are called on the carpet because you made a mistake in judgment, is 
that the way it is? 

MS. McDYER: Yes, sir. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Maybe this would be a gCXXl time for you 
to give us - since somebody asked about it earlier - a typical day in 
your life on the job. 

MS. McDYER: If I can remember every event in a typical day 
- I'll try. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN FLYNN: Take, for example, yesterday. 
MS. McDYER: Yesterday was very typical. The first scheduled 

appointment was to visit with the natural 100ther of a child in a foster 
horne. I had to pick the child up at the foster hane. I had to solicit 
the aid of another worker to go with me in order to do so. The Child 
is only five 100nths old. 

I had to sit with the nother and the child duri!'B the visit 
because tnere is concern for the welfare of the child even during that 
time frame. I also hcrl to discuss with the 100ther her considering the 
possibility of adoption for that child. The 100ther became very upset 
with_ that option, or that possibility. I, therefore, hao to call the 
foster nother and ask her if she could pick up the child. Oh, there is 
another step I left out. I haa to solicit the aid of another worker to 
care for the dlild prior to calli!'B up the foster nother. I drove the 
natural nother to her mother's home. 

I came back to the office, and returned about three telephone 
calls. Messages were left for me duri!'B that interim. 

I think I took 15 minutes, at the very most, for lunch 
yesterday. 

I attempted to find another foster home for two boys, aged 5 
and 9, because I wanted to develop a relationship between the foster 
parents and the natural family so that the natural family could visit 
the children in the foster home. I am getti!'B trenendous resistance by 
the present foster family. 

In the afternoon - a co-worker just handed me a note, 
because we share the telephone -- there were at least eight telephone 
calls that I had to address. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Were they ongoing cases? 
MS. McDYER: They were ongoing cases. A difficult issue was 

a 17-and-8-month-old girl who was living independently. That is a 
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program that the Division of Youth and Family Service si;x:,nsors for nore 
mature 16 and 17 year olds. The school is refusing to allow her to 
enter the school district unless we have a letter fran an 
administrative law judge, or fran a lawyer, citing the statute under 
which she is being placed in the independent-living program. So, I had 
to direct that issue to my supervisor. 

I had a very upset teenager on the phone yesterday, who calls 
me twice a week. I am probably the most stable adult figure that she 
has, so she will cane to me iITmediately, and I had to listen to her to 
find out her needs and try and assist her. 

I also had another contact with a prospective foster hane for 
the two boys that I previously defined. 

I had about a 20 minute oonference with my supervisor, and I 
requested the day off today. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: The other 65, or so, cases -- you 
couldn't toucn them at all yesterday. So, it could be as much as a 
nonth or so before you actually get to sane of those cases? 

MS. McDYER: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: So, really, you have at least double the 

caseload you can really handle? 
MS. McDYER: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you think there is any mechanism we 

can devise in the Legislature, or are there any guidelines that you 
yourselves, or your administration, can devise that woula be able to 
better screen some of these cases? The three you mentioned are 
certainly borderline investigation type cases. Is there any way we 
can--

MS. Mc:DYER: (interrupting) Those investigations, sir, are 
generated primarily out of fear -- the nwhat if?n principle. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: "CYA," that's what sanebody said. 
Suppose you had 100 of those cases. In just one of those 100, sanebody 
could get hurt. That justifies the other ~9, I suppose. 

McDYER: If I were in the middle of all I had to do 
yesterday, and there were an overflow fran the screening and response 
unit, a supervisor would cane to me and say, "You have to do this 
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referral inmediately." It might be one of those situations where, when 
you look at it there are no allegations: there are no real causes for 
concern. But, you have to take that block of time out of your day to 
resporxi to that situation. 

We can have a tightening up of the screening unit again, sir: 
we really can. 

Historically, problematic families are not directed to us on 
only one occasion. Neither I nor any other member of my profession 
suggest that a dlild should suffer. But, what I am saying is, 
realistically if there is a problem within the family other agencies 
beccme aware of it and they ~dress the issue to us. 

ASSE:MBLYMAN FLYNN: Do you firxi you get a lot of clients 
saying they have difficulty in getting hold of you because you don't 
have the t~ to respond to phone calls? 

MS. McDYER: Occasionally - just occasionally. 
ASSE'.MBLYMAN FLYNN: You have been here nost of the day ana 

you have heard many of your co-workers express certain opinions. Do 

you concur that these problems are wiaespread, in terms of 
labor/management relations not being what they should be, and that the 
stress proolerns are as wiaespread as we heard today? 

MS. McDYER: Yes, sir. If I may give you another exarrple of 
the lack of support, this is a crucial and a very serious issue. We 
have all recently read, unfortunately, of sexually abused dlildren in 
institutions in this State and in other states. Two workers in the 
Ocean County District Office have addressed, in neno, their ex>ncerns to 
the District Office Manager. we deal with the segment of society that 
may be pathological: that may make accusations that are not necessarily 
true. The meroos were answered. The response was very short. 
Basically, the response was that the camrlssioner was looking to the 
cc:mnunity for answers. 

Recently, unfortunately, a worker in my office was accused by 

a teenager on his easel~ of sexual improprieties. Not only was that 
worker accused, but two workers in an institution were canparably 
accused, as was a male caretaker. Before any investigation, any 
informal investigation, was made, before the child was even 
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interviewed, the worker was relieved of his duties on that case, which 
was the appropriate thing to ao. But, over and above that, he was 
suspended fran all field work, and he was suspended fran all client 
contact. This is a worker who has worked for the Division for a number 
of years, saneone who has certain stability and certain 
professionalism. He felt he was tremandously undermined, and he was 
given no support by the administration whatsoever. 

When he was asked if there would be legal representation, he 
was told that may or may not be the case, but the process takes a long 
time and it was suggested to nim that he get his own lawyer. 
Fortunately, as soon as a irember of the prosecutor's office did 
interview the child, the allegations were totally unfounded. But, we 
as workers jec.pardize ourselves every day of the week. we go into 
hanes alone without any knc~iledge of the total violence in that hane. 
We approach people without any kno.,dedge of their total pathology. 
And, we put ourselves in situations of irrminent danger to protect the 
children in the State of New Jersey. 

In return we want, not necessarily protection fran our 
supervisors and our administration, but we want recognition and suPf:X)rt 
for the work we do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: were you aware of the menos that had 
apparently circulated, that social workers were not supposed to be 
talking to the press or to legislators? 

MS. McDYER: Yes, I was, and I feel that was in--
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: (interrupting) How did you react to that 

meno? 

MS. McDYER: I felt it was in violation of my civil rights, a 
right guaranteed to me under the Constitution of the United States. As 
long as I am not disclosing confidential information about a client 
that I am obligated to, I have every right to do so, as does every 
citizen in this country. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Did you find out whether legal 
representation will be afforded to saneone who is ace.used due to a job 
related activity? 

MS. McDYER: Tnat issue has still not been defined. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN:. I think that would certainly be sanething 
that would go a long way toward makiB;1 the workers feel they hoo sane 
support, because legal representation in cases such as the one you 
mentioned can cost a lot of m:>ney. · ...,_. 

MS. McDYER: Yes, sir. 

MR. GALIAGliER: we have several other workers that haven't 
testified, and I would just like to thank them publicly for caning 
down. As I said yesterday - and I think you got a sense of it t0c:1ay 
- there is a great deal of fear that exists in DYFS, and it t<X>k 
courage for workers to cooe down here and testify today. I want to 
thank those who came down and did not get a dlance to testify. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN FLYNN: We certainly appreciate their input. As 
I said, we are going to have nore hearings, and perhaps even go to 
their areas so that they can testify in their own areas. 

Yes, sir? 

~VID J. MRRIS: Before you close, I have a procedural question. Can 
you adopt a m:>tion today to let people get in line for funding for sane 
additional workers? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Yes. 

MR. HARRIS: I wonder, just in terni.s of the standing of the 
clients that the workers are turning down, what does that say about the 
condition of the citizens of the population, and I wonder ho.v that 
issue wi 11 be addressed by DYr'S as to the number of cases they can 
serve? Certainly, they need m:>re workers. But, it seems to me that 
this situation is now caught up in what appears to be a political 
structure, at the expense of the people in the carmunity who vitally 
need very exxtpetent and effective workers and managers. 

We have a struggle between labor and management here, aoo it 
seems to me that your obligation - the Ccmnittee's d:>ligation - and 
the obligation of the distinguished members of the Legislature- You 
have a responsibility which goes to the issue of the oonditions. If 
the workers are afraid to go into the houses, it would seem to me to be 
logical that the members of the Legislature would say, "well, what 
about the people who live in that house?" What about those 
conditions? And, can we have sane hearings, or an adjunct set of 
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proceedings, to look at the condition of the poor in the State who are 
facea with this situation? People always say, "well, that would throw 
m::>ney at the problem, shall we than simply throw in m::>re caseworkers 
and get our piece of the action, in terllB of the surplus?" 

When will we face this issue in a m::>re cxxtprehensive sense? 
We have had constant turnoil in terms of this agency. It is a slow 
m::>ving, easy target, and we can all get back by beating up on DYFS and 
the agencies that work with the poor and downtrodden. When will we 
face the essential issue of the gross inequities in our State, in terms 
of the poor and the affluent? We need, and we require, and we suggest, 
respectfully, sir today that our Legislature and the 
representatives attached thereto face this higher question of the gross 
inequities in our State, the conditions that people live under 24-hours 
a day - not 35-hours a week. This is not an attempt to diminish their 
livelihoods, nor to demean what the Department stands for, it is simply 
to ask you, and to remind the distinguished gentlerren of this Canmittee 
and the other legislators that we need to face the larger issues. 

After we throw some casewor.Kers at them, what shall we do in 
tenns of the canprehensive nature of the conditions that people find 
themselves in in our beloved State of New Jersey? 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You have certainly raised some serious 
philosophical questions that have to~ addressed after we address this 
smaller point, of course. 

Harris. 

For the record, may we have your name, sir? 
MR. HARRIS: My name is the last name on the list, David J. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: You are fran New Brunswick, right? 
MR. HARRIS: Yes, sir. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: What you have suggested, of course, would 

be a canprehensive analysis of poverty in general. Certainly, we can 
make some inroads on that, but I am not going to sit here and say I can 
cane up with a panacea for that. We are_ going to try and make some 
inroads. Hopefully, 'What we have accxxtplished today -- and will 
accanplish with these hearings -- is to get the system functioning 
better so that the clients will at least have a better chance. Sane 
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people make it through the system. How, I don't know, because it is 
certainly a tough system. 

We had one witness here today who was in the system, and 

sanehow, through struggle, she got ahead of the system; she has 
bettered herself through oollege. We are proud that she has been able 
to do it. Maybe she did it in spite of the system, I don't know; I'm 
going to have to ask her that sane day. But, if we can accooplish 
sanethi1'¥J with additional caseworkers, if we can get their morale 
better so tnat they can do a better job, the clients will be benefited, 
and then we can tackle sooe of the more canprehensi ve issues you are 
talking about. 

We will have statewide hearings, and I welcane you to cane. 
'.l'HEXJXl{E B. PREl!.:MAN: Mr. Chairman, if I may, my name is Ted Freeman. 
I am the President of the State Council of Urban Leagues. 

Yesterday you made the statement that today you wanted to 
start looking for solutions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FLYNN: Right. 
MR. FREEMAN: We have had a lot of problems enunciated, anct 

the last thing I want to do is to do sane focusing. There are a lot of 
angry people in this roan, and they have a right to be angry. '!hey are 
in a system that is very ctemanding, trying, troublesane, and always 
having trouble, historically. 

Because of those particular problems, it becomes harder to 
focus on what sane major ooncerns are. One of the biggest problems we 
have ooncerning these individuals worki1'¥J in the field is the fact that 
their caseloads are too large, and there is a blockage in the flow of 
services to the clients. 

One of the things that has been happening over the last year 
and a half is - and I think we have to continue to question tnis 
whether you give them additional caseloads or not, they are still going 
to have this problem - the utilization of cannunity services. 

Now, to give you a quick example, I am fran Hudson County. I 
am the President of the Urban League of Hudsoo County. We have 
oontracted with DYFS to the tune of $139,000 over the last year, to 
assist them in carryi1'¥J out their mandate. TwO hundred am thirty-nine 
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of their clients have been serviced my my agency. That means there 
will still be an individual, sudl as this young lady right here, who 
has a problem with trying to figure out ha,,, to get to an individual. A 
phone call can be made, ref err al can be made, aoo services can be 
utilized. What has happened is, the DYFS workers have become caught 
with this problem of feeling that they have to do this all by 
thanselves without availing thanselves of resources that are there. 

I think the other thing that has cane up is that when yoo are 
caught in that type of frustrating position, it becanes very difficult 
to detennine where to focus your anger. And, what I have been hearing 
yesterday and today is that they are frustrated. Their daily work is 
twenty-three feet long. Six years ago it was forty-six feet long, and 
we still have to nove in that particular area. 

Ha,,, do yoo reduce caseloads? Yes, the first thing with 
additional case work is, "We will assist," but you have to begin to 
better utilize the services in the ccmnunity, and that trend has 
begun. So, I think we have to begin to look at the entire problem. 
I am going to testify at the next opportunity available, since I am in 
this too. I didn't want to leave here with us being in a state of 
confusion, a state of confusion that has staff looking at managenent, 
and management looking at the Legislature. 

The Legislature has a responsibility. It has the 
responsibility of allocating the necessary dollars to make sure the 
mandate can be carried out. The mandate of DYFS is to protect children 
and families, and there are no if's, and's, or but's about that. They 
have a charge in this State. 

Organizations such as Urban League, and other agencies, have 
a supportive role, and recently they have begun to be utilized. Up to 
a year and one-half ago, we had no contact with DYFS. There was 
nothing going on in tenns of DYFS' relationship with the carmuni ty in 
any substantial proportion. I think that you are going to have this 
burnout factor increase unless we do sare focusing. Thank you. 

ASSF.MBLYMAN FLYNN: Thank you. We will notify everybody on 
the list as to the next hearing, so everybody who did not get reached 
today will have an opportunity to be reached. 

This concluaes the hearing. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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Testimony of Betty Wilson, President 
Center for Non-Profit Corporations 

Before the 
Assembly Oversight Committee 

October 22, 1984 

The Center for Non-Profit Corporations is a statewide advocacy 
organization for non-profit groups in New Jersey. We are here today 
to speak from the community perspective on the needs of the Division 
of Youth and Family Services (DYFS}. 

Demand for services and increased public awareness of child abuse 
have combined to create caseworker overload and burnout. Just note 
that reports of child abuse alone have doubled in the last several 
years. All of these reports must be investigated and where substantiated, 
casework begins. According to information we've seen, at least half 
of the reported cases are borne out and require caseworker followup. 

The legislature has increased support for caseworkers but, unfortu
nately despite your support, DYFS has not been able to keep up. 

We don't say this as a criticism. Quite the contrary. Who could 
predict that reports of child abuse would skyrocket from 200,000 to 
over 400,000 in a few short years? 

This unprecedented increase in casework is why we're here seeking 
your support for a supplemental appropriation for DYFS. This current 
and immediate need could not be foreseen. But now that it's known, 
it requires our attention and action. 

In pursuing this solution we urge you also to keep at the forefront 
the historic partnership between DYFS and the community based organiza
tions. These community organizations are the essential resource for 
the DYFS caseworker. It is the community non-profit groups that the 
caseworker turns to in working with children and families. Without the 
community groups, such as child care centers, after school programs, 
specialized programs for batt~ring parents,and group homes for example, 
our caseworkers would be overwhelmed with problems and needs with no 
place to get help. 

It's a symbiotic relationship and both partners must be strong 
and vital to serve our families and children. 

To close I want to say that in the 12 years I've worked with and 
followed DYFS and its predecessor, the Bureau of Children's Services, 
I've not before seen such a rich blend of community groups serving 
as equal partners with the state to deliver needed services to the 
people of our state. 
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We welcome vour reliance on the community and the trust and respect you've placed in us. We need your continued support to stay strong. 
Right now, the other partner, the state,~eds some shoring up and we ask your help. Out of a strong partnership, New Jersey's children and families will be the winners. 



~CNJ 
ASSOCIATION FOR CHILDREN OF NEW JERSEY 

October 22, 1984 

TO: Assemblyman William E. Flynn, Chairman 

201 /643-3876 

17 Academy Street, Suite 709 
Newark, New Jersey 07102 

Members, Assembly Legislative Oversight Committee 

FROM: Ciro A. Scalera, Executive Director 
Cecilia Zalkind, Staff Associate 
Association for Children of New Jersey 

We are here today on behalf of the Association for Children of ~e~ Jersey (ACNJ) to present testimony on the issue of the operatic~, management and needs of the Division of Youth and Family Services (DYFS). ACNJ is a statewide citizen-based advocacy organization whose goal is to ensure that those systems which affect the lives of New Jersey's children are both effective and responsive. 

Child welfare in general, and child abuse and neglect, in specific, have long been concerns of ACKJ. Our 1981 research re~ort, Beneatt: t~~ Labels, ex::ur.ined children who had had,prior extensive contacts witri ti,e DYFS systeJT, and made severa 1 concrete recommendations concern in;_; ·. i,-:-need to develop and implement a system of comprehensive services i~: -::i:·' community to provide assistance to maintain and strengthen families at the point wnen serjous problems are first identified. 

ACNJ has also long advocated and supported the need for imm~ai~t~ intervention and response to reported incidents of child abuse~~= neglect. ~e were very involved in the passage of the Dodd law sever~, years ago and have remained active in this area. We are thus most concerned with the staggering increase in the number of child abus2 2~r1 neglect cases reported, projected to reach 45,000 referrals by the ~n~ of 1984. 

Our purpose here today is thus two-fold. We support the Division's need for more resources due to the increased demand upon their already ov~~burdened staff and services. We must, however, balance this support with the need for DYFS accountability. We cannot advocate for new Division resources without some accountability for both these new and already existing resources. 

rhere are many dimensions to this question of accountability. One :ertainly concerns DYFS central office staff and involves their follow through on new policy directions they have proposed which aredesigned ~o increase the availability of concrete services in local communities : or chi 1 dren and f ami 1 ies in their care. Another certain 1 y in vo 1 ves :heir maintaining adequate outreach and dialogue with their case worker ind supervisory staff to insure that not only are needed resources 
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developed and utilized but also that internal worker needs and working 
condition issues are addressed. Yet still another dimension of account
ability rests with the case workers to give, as they presently are, 
their utmost effort to meet the present crisis and, with the 
caseworker's union, to give to the administration the opportunity to 
address these existing problems. 

What is not needed now,is posturing and attribution of fault by either 
the administration or the case worker union. This will benefit no one 
and can ultimately be harmful to children. I would hope that in these 
hearings in addition to highlighting problems and complaints, that 
ind iv idua 1 s make positive recommendations to dea 1 with the prob 1 ems 
they present. In our view, one of the real problems at work here is the 
fact that at precisely the same time that new initiatives are being 
implemented in the system, the increase of reports of abuse and neglect 
and the concomintant pressure this causes on the system are a 1 so being 
felt. This situation is definitely one that with some timely additional 
resources, dialogue, and clear policy direction, can be addressed. 

We would like to cite a case in point. The controversy surrounding the 
Commitment to Chanoe policy document can show how al 1 "sides", if you 
will, are inbasic agreement on some of the fundamental steps that are 
needed to improve our child welfare system. 

THE NEED FOR CHANGE IN THE POLICY DIRECTION OF DYFS 

In January, 1984, the Division's Commitment to Chanoe policy report set 
forth a comprehensive set of recommendations to change the approach 
and actual delivery of services it provides to the children, families 
and communities of New Jersey. The objectives and goals of this 
initiative were to increase prevention services, to develop co~prehen
s i v e a n d u n i f i e d comm u n i t y s e r v i c e s u i::, p o r t s , t o i :r. c r e a s e t h c 
Division's responsiveness to families in need of services, and too 
enhance community involvement of the Division at the local level. ACKJ, 
along with many other community agencies and groups, participated in 
this process and endorsed these goals and objectives as sound policy. 
Because of the nature of this commitment in part, ACNJ can now SU?port 
the additional resources requested by the Division. 

One of the most basic underlying problems that has been documented by 
most people that have looked at our child welfare system is the lack cf 
resources or concrete services in the community to help troubled 
families. There simply are not enough of the kinds of programs and 
services that families need. 

One of the more recent reports in this area which addressed this issue 
is the Barriers to Permanency Planning Report released in September, 
1983, by the New Jersey State Child Placement Advisory Council. I 
understand you will hear from a representative of this Council later. 
I commend this report and its recommendations to you. It covers from 
all perspectives issues related to staffing, working conditions, paper 
work, and needed policies. On this lack of resources problem it states: 

"Caseworkers in 11 offices mentioned the lack of community 
resources as a major factor limiting their capacity to 
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effectively serve children who are placed and their families. 
The lack of housing was the most pressing problem, mentioned 
by caseworkers in six offices. Workers observed that 
sometimes the sole reason for placement is a horrendous 
housing situation; in some cases, children are not able to 
return to their families because of the inability to find 
adequate housing. Other resources mentioned as lacking or 
insufficient were homemaker services (three offices), 
adequate counseling services (two offices), legal aid (one 
office), financial assistance (one office), services for 
adolescents (one office, and volunteers to provide companion
ship to clients (one office). Caseworkers in five offices 
mentioned a severe gap in community resources generally, but 
were not specific." 

Another significant problem in this area and again I quote: 

"A very prominent concern of workers is the negative view of 
DYFS held by the general public and other agencies and 
community groups with whom DYFS works. Workers felt that this 
negative image seriously hampered their efforts to function 
effectively. Not only is it destructive to caseworker morale; 
it also blocks the collaboration between DYFS and various 
community organizations which is necessary in working with 
chi 1 d re n and their f am i 1 i es." 

It is with at least these two fundamental problems in mind that ACNJ 
andother organizations promoted and endorsed a community partnership 
model for DYFS in our state. In our view it is this approach that will 
ultimatly lead to the development of resources that families and case
workers need and it is this approach that w i l 1 improve the image and 
climate in which DYFS operates. 

ACNJ SUPPORT FOR DIVISION REQUESTS 

The Division is requesting an additional 354 caseworks and 150 super
visory and clerical support positions, increased state aid, and a S7.6 
million child care package that includes an increase in the number of 
state-sponsored day care s 1 ots, transportation incentives, addi tiona 1 
licensing staff and a statewide information and referral system. ACKJ 
strongly supports these Division requests. More staff is essential to 
respond to the tremendous increase in child abuse reports. Increased 
state aid, earmarked for residential services, foster parents, home
maker services, etc., is necessary to meet the increased demands for 
services to families under Division supervision. In addition child care 
has become a necessity for a large percentage of families in New Jersey 
which meritsastrongStateroleand responsibility. 

ONGOING DIVISION ACCOUNTABILITY NEEDED TO MAINTAIN EFFECTIVENESS OF NEW ---RESOURCES 

We believe, however, that these increased resources must be utilized 
appropriately. Additional staff positions must be deployed to those 
areas of greatest need. Statewide statistics indicate that certain 
areas of the state, such as Newark and Camden, have a disproportionate 
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percentage of child abuse referrals. We also believe that physical 
support issues such as office space and availability of cars must be 
addressed to insure maximum utilization of caseworkers in the field . 

. Management of community support and services is also essential. 
Statistics indicate that too large a large percentage of children are 
p 1 aced in out-of-home care because their parents have a 1 coho 1 , drug 
abuse and housing problems. At leas~·one position in each District 
Office should be utilized as a community resource specialist to 
identify, organize and develop community support services in areas such 
as housing and, housing treatment programs. More direct services to 
families are essential to prevent placement and to reduce the need for 
Division intervention. 

The Division has already begun to move in this direction, but it is 
difficult to implement changes at a time when protective service 
demands are rising. Although it might be natural to forego a community 
specialist position at the present time, it is important to maintain 
this position despite the immediate problems. Ultimately, the 
identification of community resources and a system to utilize them will 
take the pressure off the individual DYFS workers. 

It wil 1 also help to address what may be a serious issue in the future. 
The Division has begun to make efforts to develop intensive, supportive 
services to families through purchase of service contracts with 
community agencies and district off ice directives, but there has been 
no assessment of how such services have been utilized and coordinated 
to increase their accessibility to those children and families in need. 
This issue must be addressed now. 

DYFS ACCOUNTABILITY NEEDED TO IMPROVE ONGOING OPERATIONS 

Although we are supporting the Division requests with certain 
accountability recommendations, there is stil 1 a need for further 
accountabi 1 i ty in other ongoing areas. When the new Management 'l·eaIP 
came into place in the Division, one of the programs it announced was a 

·quality assurance program designed to periodically measure the quality 
and quantity of services. ACNJ supported this initiative since one of 
the major recommendations of Beneath the Labels was that the Division 
undertake a review of its caseload to identify the needs of its 
children in relation to its existing services and placement resources. 
To our knowledge, this has not yet been accomplished. We understand 
that an initial internal quality assurance review was conducted which 
uncovered many problems. This report, as well as other studies recently 
completed, have not been reported to the public. This program, 
including recent additions such as a Citizen Action Line, must be main
tained and reports must be made available to the public on their 
findings. 

Another ongoing accountability system has been the Child Placement 
Review Boards. ACNJ originally supported the Child Placement Review 
Act to ensure that those children in foster care receive goal-oriented 
permanency planning casework services. A similar system is presently 
in place in most other states. The Division must maintain a 
strong cooperative effort with the Child Placement Review Boards to 
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ensure that plans for and services to children in placement are monitored and implemented. 

One other broad accountability system is permanency planning services to children in out-of-home placement. We are concerned that without a renewed commit tment to permanency services, the increased demands of the child abuse and neglect caseloads will engulf those services to children in placement. 

The Division must re-emphasize goal-oriented permanency planning through caseworker training, the maintenance of separate and discrete permanency caseloads, and increased support for permanency services. More attention should also be given to beginning permanency services when a chi 1 d first comes into care and not when he or she has been in placement for a year or more. 

Although the focus on protective services is essential, we must also look at what is happening in other areas. Over six months ago, new initiatives were announced to recruit and retain foster homes. Ke are concered whether or not these goals are being accomplished in light of the present demands upon the Division. It is our understanding that in certain district offices this is not happening and that the automated statewide foster home information file has not been utilized in a way to improve the accessibility of foster care. 

ACNJ is certainly sensitive to the tremendous pressure and demands put upon line workers. We are aware of their needs and fully support the Division requests for increased staff and support. Our emphasis upon DYFS accountability, however, reflects our strong concern that positive policies and plans are no more than that until they are actively implemented. 

The child welfare system is complex and presently under much pressure to meet the demands of child abuse. But it is not a system where one may focus on one area to the detriment of another. Cltimately, the demand for accountability will result not only in a benefit to our children and families but will also inure to the benefit of the caseworker by insuring that needed resources are developed. 
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Testimony Before the New Jersey State Legislature 

October 22, 1984 

The DYFS mandate is perhaps the most critical, most 

demanding, and most elusive in the State of New Jersey. We 

must protect our children. That is as basic, as fundamental, 

as compelling as any other priority there could possibly be 

under the stars. Yet how difficult it is to do so, and how 

painful it is when we fail. Each time any of us reads in the 

paper about a child who has been abused in any way, I am sure 

we are all touched and all moved to try harder, to look 

further, to be ever vigilant, and to prevent such hurt • 

I am here today to speak in three capacities, first, as 

the Executive Director of Family Service of Burlington 

County; second, as the Convener of the Southern Regional 

Council of Human Services; and third as Chair of the NASW 

Task Force on Families and Children. 

The responsibility for our children lies with each of us 

in all of our communities. It certaintly can not be 

conveniently assigned, and then forgotten, to a state 

bureaucracy. 

Perhaps the best written document we have had spelling 

out this philosophy comes from the Mission Statement put out 

by DYFS this past summer. In it we have a clear under

standing of the importance of shared responsibilities with 

the state, the community, families, and the individual, with 

no partner paying any heavier a role than the other. We need 
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to develop this sense of partnership and this sense of power, 

for ironically out of this kind of power we find one of the 

most abiding answers to child abuse. 

Our Agency has provided intensive services to families 

with child abuse, for the past 10 years) .funded first by the 

Federal government and now by the State of New Jersey. We 

have come to be very familiar with the dynamics of child 

abuse. Perhaps the single largest common denominator 

ingredient is a sense of powerlessness the parent feels in a 

mass media society - powerlessness at work, powerlessness 

from being unemployed and even powerlessness in making my 

child behave. From this frustration we have seen some of the 

most tragic cases of broken families and child abuse. 

Now, today, the issue that you must address as our 

legislators is to oversee how we are doing. Very frankly the 

jury is out. On the one hand we have a document that 

represents the best of all thinking; on an other hand we have 

'burned-out, over-worked, DYFS workers. And, we have just 

touched the beginning of full partnership of community 

services to undergird and help families at risk and even to 

speak in terms of prevention. 

We are at a crossroads. We must be careful that we 

do not establish rivalry among the various sectors involved 

in the solution to the problem. We must nurture community 

involvement at the same time that we support the over-worked 

DYFS case worker. We must be sure that the workers we are 

sending out on the most difficult, frustrating cases have 



solid training in human services, for example, that they have 

a B.S.W. or are supervised by an M.S.W., people who have 

background and insight into the helping process. 

Finally we must support each other financially, morale

wise and in every other way. Good morale comes from a sense 

of power, committment, and purpose as well as from a working 

partnership. Sometimes there is a gap between our words and 

our actions. Any of us who is a parent can relate to that. 

We must work cooperatively. We must support each other. 

Each time a child is hurt we are diminished and because we 

have committed ourselves to prevent child abuse, we face that 

possibility on a daily basis. In order to get beyond the 

risk, the dangers, and the disappointments we must help 

families to break long standing patterns of abuse, literally 

a life and death struggle. The stakes are high and it is our 

children that hang in the balance. We must support DYFS, the 

community sector, and families at risk. We must protect our 

children. 

Thank you. 

Inv 

Mary s, A.C.S.W. 
Execu~iv Director of Family Service 
of B ington County 

Convener of the Southern Regional 
Council of Human Services 

Chair of the N.A.S.W. Task Force on 
Families and Children 



State of New Jersey 
Assembly Oversight Committee 

I am pleased to have this opportunity to address this 

Committee on an issue which I believe to be of crucial importance 

to the delivery of child welfare services by this state. The 

Committee should be commended for affording an opportunity for 

professionals in the field to address the issue of caseload sizes 

of social service workers in this forum. 

As a staff attorney tor the American Civil Liberties Union's 

Children's Rights Project I approach this issue from a slightly 

different perspective than others who will address you. I 

approach it as one who has litigated issues concerning foster 

care in several jurisdictions around the country. I would like 

to share with you the increasing willingness of both state and 

federal courts to intervene on behalf of children to ensure that 

they receive necessary and appropriate services. 

It has long been recognized that the State, as parens 

patriae, has an overriding right and responsibility to protect 

the welfare of children. But the state may only intervene in the 

life of a family for compelling reasons -- to ensure the physical 

or psychological well being of a child where a clear danger is 

present. Once it does so, it is legally required to act in a 

responsible manner. 

In recent years the federal courts have become increasingly 

willing to enforce this responsibility and to ensure that 

children receive necessary and appropriate services and are 

protected from harm while in state custody. For example: 
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In New Mexico a federal judge held that 
the state could be found liable for violating 
children's statutory and constitutional rights 
by its failure to adopt and implement 
permanency pans for foster children. The case 
was resolved by a far reaching consent decree 
mandating specific polic~·changes to ensure 
that children exit the foster-care system 
within reasonable periods of time. 

In Kentucky, the Department of Social 
Services was found· to be a negligent guardian 
for its failure to make permanent meaningful 
plans for children in its custody or to 
achieve those plans by any reasonable means. 
After the court refused to dismiss the case, a 
consent decree was entered providing 
timetables and other guidelines to ensure that 
children did not languish in foster care. 

In Kansas City, Missouri, a federal judge 
ruled that the Division of Family Services 
could be found liable for violating foster 
children's constitutional right to be 
protected from harm while in foster care. 
That case also resulted in a consent decree~ 
The decree mandates changes in the Division's 
practices in virtually every aspect of foster 
home care, including the licensing of foster 
homes, caseload size, training of foster 
parents and social service workers and 
provision of medical or other essential 
services to foster children. 

In Minnesota, a federal judge has refused 
to dismiss a lawsuit brought by parents 
alleging a failure by the Community Services 
Department, Child Protection Division to 
follow child abuse regulations requiring 
immediate investigation of complaints, and 
offer of social services and an attempt to 
preserve family life whenever possible. 

Several state and federal courts have 
awarded damages to foster children who were 
physically or psychologically harmed while in 
state custody; including a case in federal 
court in New York City where a former foster 
child who was sexually abused by her foster 
parent received a jury award of $225,000 based 
upon the agency's failure to properly 
supervise her care. 
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These dymanic legal developments will undoubtedly result in 

better lives for many children. The state, as it has been in the 

areas of mental health, mental retardation and prisons, is now 

being held accountable by the judiciary to protect children from 

harm and ensure that they receive necessary and appropriate 

services. 

An essential component of such services are caseload sizes 

that are low enough to permit the social service worker to spend 

the necessary time investigating allegations of abuse and 

neglect, providing services to the family to prevent removal of 

the children, or to supervise the child's placement in foster 

care to ensure that the problems which necessitated placement are 

rectified as quickly as possible and the child may be returned 

home or adopted. 

Although the necessity of manageable caseloads has long been 

recognized by social work professionals, both the Child Welfare 

League of America and the American Public Welfare Association 

include this as part of their standards for the delivery of child 

welfare services, historically almost every public agency has 

suffered from the effects of unmanageable caseload sizes. The 

cons•quences, all too often, result in children being physically 

or emotionally harmed, sometimes fatally; as well as a 

demoralized staff and high staff turnover. 

Therefore several recent court orders have mandated maximun 

caselaod sizes. The federal district court of Massachusetts, in 

Lynch v. King 1/ found: 

A clear theme emerged from the testimony 
of these Department employees. Because of 
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pressures created by heavy caseloads, they are 
relegated to responding to crises in their 
cases. They do not have time to engage in 
appropriate planning and review, or to furnish 
the ongoing supervision and services they feel 
are necessary to assure appropriate care for 
foster children and to improve the conditions 
in the homes from which they were removed. 

* * * 

Most of these social workers testified, 
on the basis of their experience, that their 
failure to plan for and deliver appropriate 
services was causing harm to the children -
including children in foster care -- ~nder 
their supervision. Some provided examples of 
cases in which harm befell foster children. 
as a result of lack of proper attention and 
provision of appropriate services •••• 
Moreover, files of actual cases revealed 
several instances in which children in foster 
care sufferd serious emotional and physical 
injury -- and even death -- that could have 
been prevented. Only less serious injury or 
none would have been sustained had the 
Department taken reasonable steps to ensu~7 
the safety and welfare of these children.-_ 

On the basis of this testimony the federal court mandated 

that the Department may not assign to its social workers a number 

of cases that is greater than they are able to carry and fulfill 

their obligations under Title IV-A of the Social Security Act. 

He further ordered that if the Department failed to abide by that 

or other aspects of his order, he would prohibit further federal 

funding to the Department through the Social Security Act. 

Maximum caseload sizes have similarly been mandated by 

federal court orders in Kansas City, Missourill and for the 

l/ 550 F.Supp. 325 (D. Mass. 1982), aff'd sub nom Lynch v. 
Dukakis, 709 F.2d 504 (1st Cir. 1983).. --

1./ 550 F.Supp. at 336. 

1f G.L. v. Zumwalt, 564 F.Supp. 1030 (W.D.Mo. 1983). 

- 4 -

,,1-.., 



entire foster care system in New Mexico.ii 

In the Kansas City case the Division of Family Services 

agreed to the following provisions in a consent decree designed 

to protect children from harm while they are in foster care. 

IX. Caseload Size 

A. Defendants shall prohibit excessive 
caseloads which prevent social service workers 
from providing adequate services to children 
and natural parents and from providing 
appropriate supervision and support of foster 
parents. To that end defendants shall adopt 
and implement the following caseload limits: 

B. Caseload Size of Social Service 
Workers 

1. DFS social service workers should 
never have caseloads that exceed twenty (20) 
to twenty-five (25) children per social 
service worker. Any exception to the 
provisions of this section shall only be on a 
temporary and emergency basis. 

2. If a social service worker leaves 
DFS, that caseload will be assigned to other 
social service workers within. a maximum of two 
(2) weeks. 

3. A supervisor shall only be resonsible 
for a caseload during the time that it takes 
to reassign cases as provided in ~B.2, supra. 

C. Ratio of Social Service Workers to 
Supervisors 

The ratio of immediate supervisors to 
social service workers should be seven to one 
to ensure adequate supervision. Supervisors 
should meet with social service workers at 
least twice a month. 

The New Mexico Human Services Department, in acknowledging 

that children in its custody have "rights to fair, reasonable and 

.ii Joseph A. v. New Mexico Department of Human Services, 575 
F.Supp. 346 (D.N.Mex. 1983). 
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timely decision-making with regard to access to adoption, and to 

fair, reasonable and adequate procedures and practices necessary 

to insure access to permanent adoptive homes" agreed to the 

following provisions: 

II. Supervision and Case Loads 

A. Absent documented exigent circum
stances, social service caseworkers with 
responsibility for any foster care cases for 
whom the permanent plan is return home or 
adoption or for whom there is no permanent 
plan shall have a case load of no more than 
twenty families, with a maximum of thirty-five 
children in foster care. The Department shall 
develop and provide to Plaintiffs for comment 
a reasonable formula for weighing different 
types of social services cases and shall use 
such formula to determine the maximum caseload 
size for mixed caseloads equivalent to the 
maximum set herein. Any ·changes in the 
formula shall be provided to Plaintiffs for 
comment prior to implementation. All children 
who enter HSD custody shall be assigned a 
social services caseworker. 

B. Supervisors shall be responsible for 
supervising the work of no more than six (6) 
children's services caseworkers •••• In the 
event that a caseworker leaves, his/her case
load must be reassigned as soon as possible, 
but no later than two months after the case
worker leaves. During the interim, the case
load shall not be uncovered. 

I do not want to suggest to this committee that maximum 

caseloads are a panacea, for many other elements such as training 

of workers and clear policy guidelines, are also necessary to 

ensure the provision of quality services and to protect 

children.2./ But realistic, maximum caseloads, determined on the 

basis of the nature of the caseload, e.g. protective services, 

2./ For example, see G.L. v. Zumwalt, Joseph A. v. New Mexico and 
Lynch v. King. 
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preventive services, etc. are absolutely necessary to enable 

social service workers to adequately perform the difficult tasks 

which are required of them. 

I thank you for this opportunity to share these concerns 

with this Committee. I hope that this perspective will be of 

assistance in your deliberations. 

--

Lauren Anderson 
Staff Counsel 
Children's Rights Project 
American Civil Liberties Union 
132 w. 43rd Street 
New York, New York 10036 

October 23, 1984 
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Honorable members of the "Oversight Committee, I want to thank 

you for allowing me to appear before you today to address the issue 

of the caseworker load of DYFS and related management policies. 

My name is Marina A. Padovani, I am the Executive Director of the 

Puerto Rican Congress of New Jersey, Inc. (PRC), located at 

515 South Broad Street, Trenton. 

As you are aware, the convergence of several trends in this 

region, as well as the recent, highly publicized cases of child 

abuse, have prompted heightened interest in prevention services and 

foster care placement, and have also contributed to an increase in 

reporting of child abuse and neglect cases (20,000 in 1982, 26,000 

in 1983). The PRC is sensitive to the fact that this increase in 

reported cases, coupled with a reduction of resources available 

for responding to them, is causing severe strains on investigative 

units and treatment services. Also, the Adoption Assistance and 

Child Welfare Act of 1980 requires public child welfare agencies to 

provide preventive services in order to limit the use of foster care. 

The PRC is concerned that this increased ~orkload may create 

other problems which may be reflected not only on individual 

workers' burn-out, but also in reducing or hampering the quality 

of delivery of services to those in need. 

The recently issued Department of Human Services Mission State

ment and Service Principles states that: "the mission of the social 

services system, including private non-profit providers, county 

welfare and other local government agencies and state agencies, 

is to: (1) protect vulnerable children and adults from abuse, 

neglect or exploitation; (2) support family preservation and com

munity living; and (3) prevent family violence and disruption". 

One of the Human Services Department Service Principles is also 
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stated as "an individual, family and community approach to ser

vices, which contributes to the growth of individuals and emphasizes 

the maintenance of individuals within their communities ... " 

The Commissioner of Human Services, Honorable.George J. Albanese, 

before the Joint Appropriations Committee of the New Jersey Legisla

ture on May 10, 1984, stated that: "Our new focus will emcompass a 

new approach to old problems. It will no longer respond to social 

problems, but will attack the causes and address the symptoms. Our 

new focus will be prevention. We will need the private sector, 

the public sector, and other state departments ... " 

We are glad to see that the Commissioner's new approach will 

involve the community and will place an emphasis in prevention, 

since in the past, most of the efforts of the State Human Services 

Department have been directed toward the general population in under

standing how to identify and treat, rather than prevent/child abuse. 

There has been little attention focused on child abuse prevention 

and treatment among minority groups, especially Hispanics. Identi

fication of child abuse and neglect is difficult enough within a 

community sharing a basic definition of abuse; the problem is in

creased when different cultures come in contact and differ in their 

beliefs about child-rearing practices, including concepts of child 

abuse. Previous efforts in New Jersey to address Hispanic issues as 

they relate to child abuse and neglect have been mostly geared to 

sensitize non-Hispanic professional to Hispanic cultural differences 

through in-service training. To our knowiedge, there has never 

been an attempt made to involve Hispanics in child abuse and neglect 

primary prevention programs. Looking at the rate in which the His

panic population is growing in New Jersey, we can assume that the 

effort in addressing child abuse and neglect from a Hispanic per-

;lOx 
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spective is still in an embryonic stage. 

The 1980 Census reported 491,833 Hispanics in New Jersey 

compared with 288,488 in 1970. Individuals- of Spanish Speaking 

origin or parentage are the second largest minority group in 

New Jersey. The single largest Hispanic group in the State are 

Puerto Ricans, who represent 49.5% of the Hispanic population, 

followed by Cubans, who are 16.4%, Mexican Americans 2.7% and other 

Hispanics 31.4%. The data on New Jersey Hispanics affirms the 

notion that Hispanics are among our poorest citizens. While one 

out of every 15 New Jersey families lives in poverty, one out of 

every three Hispanic families is either poor or working poor. 

Of all Hispanic families, 31.2% have children under the age 

of 14 years and 66.2% have children under the age of 18 years. 

Female headed households represent 25.6% of Hispanic families. 

Of these Hispanic female headed households, 81.9% have children 

under 18 years of age. While the rest of the state is growing 

older, Hispanics in New Jersey are still a very young population. 

They are in need of adequate prevention services more than ever 

before. 

It is common knowledge that abuse and neglect of children 

can occur in any type of family composition regardless of race, 

ethnic background, socio-economic status, education and other 

factors; and is not the sole misfortune of any group or class. 

However, even though any one can be abusive or neglectful, the 

literature suggests that given certain co~ditions or situations. 

the likelihood of such behavior ocurring is increased. Among 

the most notable factors identified which can make a family at 

risk are: isolation, lack of parenting skills, lack of economic 

resources, alcohol and/or drug abuse, special needs children, 
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and having been abused or neglected as a child. Anyone of these 

factors or the combination of them, have proven to increase the 

stresses placed on family members and their inability to cope 

effectively with the responsibility of child rearing. 

The U.S. Commission on Civil Rights report "Puerto Ricans in 

the Continental United States: An Uncertain Future" clearly places 

Puerto Ricans, the largest Hispanic group in the state, beneath ,, 

the bottom of the socio-economic ladder based on quality of life 

indices. We can infer from the data related to causal factors 

of child abuse and neglect that Hispanics are particularly made 

vulnerable to incur in child abuse and neglect situations because 

they are involved in crisis, life transitions and chronic privations. 

The potential for child abuse and neglect is real. 

Besides the lack of human resources needed in the public system, 

there are also no models available for providing child abuse and 

neglect prevention programs to the Hispanic community;programs are 

in English and are not applicable to the Hispanic culture and norms. 

Popular mainstram programs, such as Positive Parenting and Parent 

Effectiveness Training, hold values and practices that are incongruent 

with the Hispanic culture. 

Currently, the services to Hispanic children and their families 

is inadequate. The human services system was designed to serve other 

groups long before the Hispanic population was large enough to 

warrant special consideration. In order to develop relevant and 

functional services to this unique client group, service providers 

must understand that services and programs must generally be avail

able in Spanish and that public servants must also take in con

sideration cultural attitudes and norms. Even though the Department 

of Human Services is making an effort to recruit Hispanic workers, 
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there is still an insufficient number of .professionals in the system 

who can speak Spanish and work with Hispanic families in a culturally 

responsive manner. 

Like Commissioner Albanese, we also believe that in an era of 

declining resources, activities promoting private and voluntary 

efforts are critically important. 

Therefore, the Puerto Rican Congress calls on this Committee 

to support a budget appropriation that will enable the DYFS-DHS to: 

- hire the necessary personnel to provide support and to reduce 

the workers' caseload to an "acceptable" level that will 

allow clients to receive the services they so desperately 

need, 

- provide necessary resources to develop and implement community

sponsored purchse of services contracts, since community organi

zations have an existing natural network, a built-in trust, 
in the community, and because the Hispanic organizations also 

have the bilingual capacity, which facilitates the development 

of the "partnership'' refered to above. 

Furthermore, we recommend to DYFS-DHS officials to make a 

sincere effort to hire Hispanic (bilingual-bicultural) personnel 

as part of those newly hired, so that we can further ijure that 

Hispanics will receive the quality of services we are entitled to. 

The result should be a partnership in improving the functioning 

of the public and private system in better serving Hispanic children 

and families in the state of New Jersey. 

Thank you. 
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Allow me to admit that as an advocate of equity and quality 
service for Hispanics, I really had sincere reservations about the 
DYFS Management Team 1 s intentions and purpose for the reorganization 
and its ability to implement same. 

In following its planning process and concrete actions, I 
encountered honesty in the philosophy and purpose, as well as a 
highly qualified group of individuals attempting to bring change 
not through the traditional vertical approach, which always affords 
to lea¥e behind a segment of the human service delivery network, 
but through a compr~hensive horizontal one, seeking to utilize the 
totality of the network to its fullest potential. 

The recognition of local community based organizations and other 
elements in the private sector, as "partners 11 in the service delivery 
system is a major achievement. 

Even though previous administrations attempted to incorporate 
community based organizations within the Human Services Department 1 s 
network, they fail to recognize these as an equal, and moreover, 
as genuine resources capable of assisting its clientele become 
self-reliant and self-sufficient. 

The current increase in the DYFS-D0 1 s caseload is a result of 
a wide variety of factors, of which not all have been within the 
control of the Management Team. (For example, the media coverage 
of chi l d abuse and neg 1 e ct cases has re - awakened p e op l e1s i n t ere st 
in the issue.) 

I concede that the new approach ( 11 Family and Community Services 11 ) 

is partly responsible. Yet 1 I have to pinpoint that there are now 
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more readily available community resources, and it is the caseworker's 

responsibility to reach into the community for them, rather than 

perceiving themselves as the only agent capable to bring positive 

change. I also have to underline that we are just beginning to feel 

the effects of the transition to a family and community approach to 

services. It is our responsibility to facilitate it, in a way such, 

that our misgivings do not destroy or stagnate what we have already 

achieved. 

We have to be supportive not because "government" is attempting 

to "govern", but because in our hearts we know that the changes 

were needed and they are being channeled in the right direction. 

Support should not only mean funding, which in this case is 

necessary, but also patience and cooperation as well as an under

standing of purpose. 

As a Hispanic, I still have questions concerning service 

definitions, county planning processes and affirmative action, 

but I am in support of a system that is sincerely attempting to 

best meet the needs of individuals and families within their own 

communities. 



Honorable Com."li ttee l-~"'lbers: 

My name is Hugh Kilmer; I speak here as an individual• 
°'1er the past several years, I have been involved with three stat~ide 

-organisations which have received especially effective help as a result of 
the aaoagement tea• headed qy Mr. Bl.atner at the Divi.aion of Iouth and 
lallily S9"1ce•• • la.ch of these orpnis.atione, aa ot this month, is reaohin& 
a tarnini point in its activit7; the DIFS role has been crucial, in each case• 

API-N.J U.ccountanta tor the Public Interest) worked earlier on several 
accounting-related problems which concerned DYFS alone. Atter the management 
team took charge, we ~ere introduced to representatives of other divisi~ns, 
and to representatives of the Depa!tl'llent'~ Contracting and Auditing offices 
so that we could provide some suggestions both tor contracting and for auditing. 
We expect to work with the Department, now, on implementation problems \·Jhich 
J11aY arise !or provider agencies• 

Since DYFS was first apprised of the existence of the Ne;w Jersey Network 
for F,tpd] y Life Education, Yi.s. Pamela Wentworth bas been the division~s 
representative to the group. Her contributions have been consistently 
valuable• We were also especially glad to have Mr. Ray Cmielski offer us 
the training office's new material on child seXUal abuse at the Conference 
we held in conjunction with the State Department of Education on October 3 and 4. 

%he third organization 1a the St.ptevido .Prot,ectiye Seryicu Coalition 
with which ~-:c Bl.atner hiluelt has worked airectly arer the put two years• 
Be ha• fhovn er•~ interest in our ettort.e to·eoordinate intontation about 
abuse arn 11e&l-ec~, and about preventive and treat.meat pracra• v hich are 

\.· t . •..,',, 

available -- or which need to be developed -- on a county by county, or on 
a statewide basis• He has taken part in our conferences (serving twice 
as princiPal speaker)• lt is largely because of his encouragement that we 
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have decided to maintain, and - 11' possible 

despite the loss of our staff and our tunding• 

to increase our efforts, 

The concern tor all our children, which is ahown 1n the divieion'• 

new 111aa1on statement, 1a a cood reflection of the proteaaional work 

llhioh 1a in proeeaa, and ot the caau.nity relationa which make that work 

eepecialcy fruitful• In many individual count1ea, it 1a clear that a tar 

crater aense ot contidence 1n the Division is now 1n place t.ban there baa 

been previously -- thus perri.itting division personnel to do their work with 

less of the semi-autCJ'latic distrust nnd opposition that there has been in 

the past: with !ar less expectation that 1110ney appropriated for the 

Department, and therefore the Division, would be spent for administration 

rather than on programs• With this contidence, I can clearly approach this 

Committee with ~ request t:-!at the existing policies of the management team 

be made more effective on the prograM level by assignment of more funds. 

Recent developnents, especially in Da_y Care and in institutional 

programs, have pointed up increased reports ot incidences ot abuse which 

may, to sme extent, reflect actual increase in their number, but which e,ren 

more certainly indicate a groHing awareness on the part of New Jerse~r 

citizens that these cases exist, that they are far too frequent, and that 

th97 are aerious J1&atters• To deal with this concern, we need -- as an 

iaaue ot aeoond iaportance -- noney to prOYide excellent traininc tor DllS 

-~• personnel and tor provider•• Thia training will enabl.e people 

not oncy to reccgnize the problem ot abuae, bat to provide prnentive 

programs consistent with the Department's long-standing policy or pr1-r,y 

reliance on family strengths, and on restoring those strengths where they 
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are lacking. Still more important, we need the money to provide just 
salaries to DIFS and provider personnel on the i.rnPlediate program level who 
-- ae we now realize even more strongly than before -- must have very 
aophisticated •kills, as well as adJ!lirable character, to offer to their 
charges the •ervices which our people clearly need• 

The naanage111ent team itself' and the . programs 1t is using are very 
helpful irxieed; what we need to do now is to make sure that the personnel 
on the front lines have the resources in training and in remuneration to 
kee;:; then there, and to make ther~, effective -while they are there. 

; I / 
r-t''/--i I :, , 
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by 
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N. J. Department of Community Affairs 

October 23, 1984 

IT IS VERY DIFFICULT TO MEASURE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE DELIVERY 

OF HUMAN SERVICES. IN FACT, MANY SOCIAL SERVICE PROVIDERS TELL ME THAT 

THERE IS NO WAY. 

THIS WAS A REVOLUTIONARY CONCEPT TO ME WHEN I FIRST BEGAN TO 

DISCUSS THE SUBJECT AS A MEMBER OF THE BOAP.D OF DIRECTORS OF FAMILY 

COUNSELING SERVICE, INC. OF BERGEN COUNTY. I ALSO LEARNED A GREAT DEAL 

ON THE SUBJECT WHEN DRAFTING ASSEMBLY BILL 1647 IN 1982 WHICH ESTABLISHED 

A COMMISSION ON MISSING PERSOi~S IN NEW JERSEY. I LEARN MORE ABOUT IT 

EVERYDAY. 

THE DIVISION ON WOMEN DOES NOT DELIVER DIRECT SERVICE. WE INTERACT 

WITH NON-PROFIT, PRIVATE AND GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES WHICH DO. OUR R8LE 

IS 1tS AN ADVOCATE FOR WOMEN. MANY ISSUES AFFECTING WOMEN, SUCH AS 

CHILD CARE, AFFECT CHILDREN. THEREFORE, IN FULFILLING OUR MISSION, WE 

HAVE FORMED A SOLID, PRODUCTIVE PARTNERSHIP WITH THE DIVISION OF YOUTH 

AND FAMILY SERVICES, NEW JERSEY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES. 

AS STATED, THE MEASUREMENT OF SUCCESS IN THE DELIVERY OF HUMAN 

SERVICES IS AT BEST A DIFFICULT TASK: 

Jo X 



TESTIMONY BEFORE THE ASSEMBLY 
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

PAGE 2 
OCTOBER 23, 1984 

"IS THE SYSTEM WORKING WHErJ ALL IS QUIET?" 

"IS THE SYSTEM NOT WORKING WHEN THERE IS A LOUD PUBLIC OUTCRY?" 

I BELIEVE THAT THE LOUD PUBLIC OUTCRY IS TESTIMONY THAT THE 

SYSTEM IS WORKING. 

AS DYFS MOVES FRC:-1 A CLOSED SYSTEM TO AN OPEN SYSTEM, THE INCREASED 

REPORTING OF CHILD ABUSE AS IS CURRENTLY UNDER DISCUSSION IS ONE RESULT. 

THE PRESENT SITUATION IS THE RESULT OF BETTER MANAGEMENT TECH'.!IQUES 

IMPLEMENTED BY DYFS. POSITIVE NEW INITIATIVES TO CREATE PUBLIC AWARE

NESS ARE WORKING. AN OVERWHELMING NUMBER OF CASES OF ABUSE HA VE BEE:J 

REPORTED WE KNOW. 

I KNOW THAT THIS IS A FACT THAT REGARDS THE: ISSUE OF D0~·1ESTIC 

VIOLENCE. BECAUSE OF AN AGGRESSIVE PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAIGN, GRASS-

ROOTS ACTIVISM AND TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE TO SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCIES BY THE 

DIVISION ON WOMEN REPORTS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE IN OUR STATE HAVE INCREASED 

WELL OVER 50% IN JUST A YEAR. THIS DOES NOT NECESSARILY MEAN THAT THERE 
ARE MORE VICTIMS; IT MEANS THAT MORE VICTIMS ARE SPEAKING OUT BECAUSE 

THEY NOW KNOW THAT A SUPPORT SYSTEM EXISTS FOR THEM. I HAVE WORKED 

CLOSELY ENOUGH WITH MY COLLEAGUES IN DYFS TO BELIEVE THAT THIS IS ALSO 

THE CASE WITH THE INCREASED REPORTS OF CHILD ABUSE. 

THE CHALLENGES TO STATE AGENCIES PRESENTED BY THE REALITY OF FAMILY 

LIFE IN 1984 ARE BEING FACED OPENLY, HONESTLY AND STRAIGHT-FORWARDLY A!JD 

COMMUNITY-BASED ORGANIZATIONS ARE FOCUSING ON THE ISSUES IN NEW WAYS. 

~ .1 \.. 
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PAGE 3 
OCTOBER 23, 1984 

A THOUGHTFUL LEGISLATIVE RESPONSE IS CRUCIAL TO THE ABILITY OF 

THE DIVISION OF YOUTH AND FAMILY SERVICES TO FULFILL ITS MISSION. 
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CH:dRhL\N FLYM., VICE CH~.IFf'Ar~ FOY, CUV,lTTEE f1f1'1EEFS, Affi GRATEFUL FOR 

Tr.E OPPCRTU~ITY TC ~EST I FY BEFORE YOU TCG!iY, 

I Ah HcKE AS CHi'.llFf1J.N CF THE S1ATE HUl·AI~ SEfNICES ADVISGRY COUNCIL. 

CLF, CUJi~CIL hAS RECENTLY CGrNENED LY CCM·lISSICf<ER. GEORGE ALEAMESE TO: 

0 

0 

C 

PROVIDE Ii,P~T IlffO DEP~RTf·ENT POLICY Of'l HU1"N1! SERVICE 

ISSUES EFFECTJr-'.G THE ST~.TE; 

TG v;(.;Ft \\ lTi, THc DEFAk1FENT 10hP.FD A COVi·iUf) ITY BASEL ~F'FP.OACH 
Tc '(L'T .... ,•-r·G rT·-r \✓ lnE ul1'·r•• ('Ervrrr GG;' (' : : /-\ , 1 c. 1 l ·; - 0 1 f-l. I t:. - :J ~ I'' IMI i 0 r, l-C. - 1-'L.,; 

-o F''r'i ,(: /".f, -s0 uE(' T[C~'TIFIIT. B'l' ,, 'E ""fl -r-'TY nNr l~l~,, 'f'TY Hu11.:ni: I vl-uv u1'1 1 0 v • u·l LL/ 1t1 1.',t I -- [. ~ L,~I 1·1r11,. 

SERVICES ~DV I SCFY cuur,JC I LS FEGARD I NG LCO,L hUr✓.Ai,; SEfN I CE FU~:D H lG' 

NEE!JS f.J!D SER'/I CES; Af,;D 

TO v.DRK 1✓ ITH TH[ eEPARTf'Bff OM ErUCATH!G ThE FUBLIC NlD 

FOSTEkir;G i1}i1~REIESS OF hUfO:Af·; SERVICES. 

OUR CCUNCIL IS CGfCSED Ur :)l>:TY-FIVE CCN"UNITr LUIEFS IN HUi1'JJ~ Sf:I'vICES 

1·.HO /1.RE EXPERIENCED MJG hE~L C:UALIFIB TO HE~P Sf:;fE DEPAkllHff POLICY, 



H-ft. ~ EEGAf\ hY PLANNING FOF: THIS TESTI~GrN, I ASKED E!~CH COUf\CIL FEMBER 
FOR THEIR ThOUGHTS Gf\ THE ISSUES v:E ARE HI GHLI GHTI NG TOG/'.; Y - THE EFFECTS 
OF INCREASED REPORTmG AND CASELOADS ON D'rfS STAFF AND DIVISICN f1L4NAGE!'·ENT, 

I U::If\G TO YOU Tl-£ CONC8~SL;S CF THE EXPEFJISE OF Cl P. VE/BE~S. 

TrlE cour·lCIL IS COGNIZANT OF THE WPORTANCE MiD COMPLEXI:Y OF THE DYFS 
F.ESPCi".~IBILI:Y TC PROTECT CHILDREN ;:,f~r, FN•;ILIES FRCM VIOLEi·!CE ~f-;D NEGLECT . 

. - --~C,..."J 7 - TLJ{T -:···r-Ir• ,~1_, ·c ·•i "\!CC'("·'E T'/'"'K EV-~ ,.•,[-" 'tORf""L ;,t ;--:,t\., \.:Ii Lt Ir • 1 1 rit K JUD L.; r<.I'~ A,';L .... · !', : ,~0 ti, 0:·, =-~. l'i •JJ 
Ci ;<CU:\ST ~NCE2 . HCv.EVEF,, v!I i"H A PROJECTED CASELOAD OF CVER 43, CCG EY THE 
~i,;D GF FISCAL YE.AF: i:::GS, Ai~L A 100'.s INCREtSE IN INVESTIGATIONS CVER THE 
Pr1ST ;' . .C YEP.RS, THE c.FrECTiVH:E~S CF C,~SH:C~R.S rn ChRF.YING OUT ThEiR 
CJ:ITI c;;L ~•fm< rs JEOPtFL r2ED, 

IF THIS PROBLEM IS NOT EE~CLVED, T~£ ChILDREN OF t:EW JERSEY v:ILL BE AT 
CFEATER FJSK, FOR INSTM;CE: 
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0 INADEQUATE PREVErJTIVE PROGPJJ·'IS \✓ I LL UUSE FAViILY PROBL81S 

M·i I Ch LEAD TO ABUSE/TG GO UNRESOLVED; 

0 OVERTAXED CASEhORKERS ARE UNAELE TO RESPcr,iD EF~Ec·:,-'ELY TO 

F.EFDRTS OF ABUSE-nil.KING IT IS LIIELY Tt;HI T!E iiBL~E \-:ILL 

CCNT I [·JUE I 

Tr-'E DOTTCr LI~\E IS - ~JDS J:.F:E GOil'lG TO GET hUF.T, I PERSC:1:AL~Y r::r:r TI-HS 

L'~Th I !·H<ABLE /1.MJ UNACCEPT AELE I 

v,E STROt~GLY URGE THE LEGISLATUPE TO TAKE \s:HiffEVER STEPS ~-PE NECESSARY, 

BOTh LEGISLATIVELY ~ND AD~iHHSTRATIVELY, TO SEE ThhT THERE ~PE rJOT ONLY 

SUFFICIHJ RESOURCES TO PROTECT OUR fOST VLU,ERADLE CITIZENS, E.cT 

RESOUF:CES THAT AKE Cf THE HIGHEST Ql;flLITY, 

SPECIFICALLY, \·,E RECOf•.✓B~D LEGISLATIVE ACTION TG C01'lfll Y \·dTH TFE 

DEPi.F:Tfl'HJT 'S ~.ECUEST FOR M: hDlJ IT I CNAL 507 DI STP I C7 CFF I CE ~iOkKERS AND 

7.85 r·:rLLICN co~~i,P.S FOR cm,rt:UMTY SEF:VICES. 
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OUR CCU·lCiL STAf\CS FDDY TO \·JCPJ( \✓ ITH YOU, TIE COUN1Y VELF;~RE AGENCIES, 
DYF~, M,D ThE CGr'ViL'NI1Y Ill i1 p;.r\1NERSHIF' CF CARE TO SEE THAT OUk CHILDREN 
,;!ill VUU~ERABLE ADULTS ARE PROTECTED I 

'1S CCfMUNIT\1 LEilCERS rn ThE 1-1:riiN SERVICES FIELD, \•;E HAVE {\ RESFONSIBIU-:-Y 
TO LET YCL f<J;O\✓ THE NEELS OF GU~ CC~NJNITIES Ar:D CITIZEf~S, ~.rm TO OFFEP. 
FECOWiEND/{ Ti ONS· FOR CHANGE I 

AS LEGISLATORS, I f-J'DW YOU Hi1.VE ~- CGN\'IITf-HlT TO HEAR GUR VlE}JS AND PESPOND. 

OL:P ~Tf\TE ~L:;•AN SERVICES ~DV!SCRY COUNCIL COf1,~ENDS E!\C-i C!\E OF YCU FOR 

f ·n.1 •-r ~ C\.· 
\C:v .Jtr . .:..-t, , 

·''':\ c·· TL- \''of f'ECi\l:LE -~,D ~'l="Glrr~ru ,, 1·•·- ,--yrc- OF ,u;u ;;·, .. t ,',JL'~ f\J-\J). /\I, :~ ... " c...,: 11~ ,---;t. ~lr,1L. 

v:E ARE CGi\FIGEi'ff Tf;/'.iT YCU \✓ ILL ;;(T /1PPROPFdA1ELY TO pr;_ovrnE LE~DER.Sl--iIP 
P.ND PESCUkCES TO RESOLVE THIS pc.G3LEf·I, 
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HISPANIC ASSOCIATION OF OCEAN COUNTY 
223 Second Street 

Lakewood, N.J. 08701 
Tel. 367-0619 

October 23, 1984 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Lydia J. Valencia 

President: Elda Maldonado Executive Director 
Vice President: Marcos Suarez 
Secretary: Jose A. Morales 
"fi!U8urer: Blanca Lewis 
'i'wstee: Dolores Corona 
Trustee: Gary Reyes 

Mr. Steve Frakt 
Office of Legistlative Services 
Room 103 
State House Annex 
CN 042 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Dear Mr. Frakt: 

Enclosed herewith please find testimony that I had expected 
to be able to offer at the Oversight Committee Hearing. 

I was unable to attend the second session, because of unfore
seen circumstances. I would appeciate your registering same on 
behalf of the Hispanic Working Group. 

Sincerely, 

HISPANIC ASSOCIATON OF OCEAN COUNTY 

-L,~ Q_ /~....e,._~._ 
L~~ J. 4'aiencia 
Executive Director 

cc: Ted Allen 

LJV/id 
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At the risk of repeating what others have said I feel the 

responsability to describe to you how individuals like me 

at the local level perceive what the DYFS Management Team 

has implemented. 

The new focus in family and community services is developing 

individual capabilities to understand their problems and 

facilitating that these will be better prepared to face them 

and attempt to solve them. In this process clients make them-

selves capable of continuing to deal positively in control of 

their lives (self-generating). 

The strength in the provision of services is placed in assisting 

the clientele visualize their problems and solutions at two levels: 

short term solutions and long term ones. 

While assisting individuals open-up to themselves, we must provide 

for others in similar situations to share and experience same. 

This will facilitate a bond among peers, thus satisfying people's 

need for human contact. In consequence, a horizontal assistance 

network is created. People assisting people, rather than insti-

tutions/government assisting or doing things for them. 

Though short term solutions are needed in order to decrease the 

risk of danger or satisfy immediate major problems, services 

must encourage clientele to look at their situation in a long 

term basis and assist these identify how to improve same. 
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Assisting the client to understand that he/she can, "through 

long term planning" bring quality into their lives will present 

opportunities for growth and personal investment/involvement. 

The emphasis is therefore in transforming our communities from 

ones that follow the leadership of service/public institutions, 

to communities that articulate, dictate and present a demand 

for what they understand is needed. Rejecting the conformist 

view of: 

states: 

I am benefiting from what is available 

this is what I need. 

- to one that 

We at the Hispanic Working Group encourage you to support the 

Human Services Department funding request since these will 

focus in the development of factors that are not only renewable 

but self-generating, well informed individuals working within 

a well intended system. 



J}ew ~ersep Congress of t)arents anb tlttacbtrs 
A BRA~CH OF THE NATIONAL 

OFnCE 

900 BERKELEY AVENUE· P. O. BOX 1774 

:-,) ; ,900 TRENTON, N. J. OB607 

: !~ -=- e· Tl:LIE .. HDNIE • , 16091 { 393. 6709 
l__ ~ _ ~ 393 • 500"' 
......... CONMIIIOll..,_.,..AN91'IACNDI 

October 22, 1984 
TO, Legislative Ov.ersight Committee 

FROM, Mia Andersen, Chairman 
Juvenile Protection 

RE1 Department of Human Services Request for Additional 
Personnel for the Division of Youth and Family Services 

I am here today as Juvenile Protection Chairman for New Jersey 
PTA to represent New Jers.ey • s oldest and largest child advocacy 
organization with 215,000 members. We appreciate this opportunity 
to share out concerns with you. 

New Jersey PTA urges you to approve the Department of Human 
Services request for an additional 507 positions for the Division 
of Youth and Family Services. We believe that DYFS must have 
these additioanl positions if the Division is to be successful 
in meeting its mandate. 

The Division of Youth and Family Services and the Bureau of 
Children's Services before it was formed in response to a 
community/societal need. In order to successfully address that 
need and reduce the problems· of child abuse and neglect and 
sexual abuse, DYFS must reach into and work with the community 
it serves. New Jersey PTA does not believe that DYFS nor any 
other social service agency can solve community/societa~ problems 
without the cooperation and support of the community because 
those problems exist within the context of and not separate from 
the community. Therefore, New Jersey PTA strongly supports and 
endorses the new mission statement and the policies and procedures 
which flow from it as critically important to the potential for 
success of DYFS to meet its mandate. 
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Child abuse and neglect are not new problems. while recent 
increases may reflect a slight increase in actual incidence of 
abuse and neglect since 1982, we believe that the dramatic rise 
more correctly reflects the success of DYFS ins 

-

1. providing and creating avenues for communications with the community 
2. educating the community so that it is beginning to accept its responsibility to protect its at risk 

chi1dren. 
We belive that the DYFS mandate can only be successfully ful-~ 

filled if sufficient resource are provided to meet existing case 
load as well as provide for program and personnel resources for 
prevention. If we only provide resources for staffing of program 
services for those al.ready on 'the critical list, so to speak, 
we will not be doing enough to reduce the incidence of the , 
dysfunctional behavior that results in abuse and neglect. To 
meaningfully address the issue of child abuse and neglect, we 
believe it is necessary to focus on means of reducing the 
incidence of abuse. To do this it is necessary tos 

1. work with abusive parents and abused children to; 
a. remediate abusive behavior 
b. give abused children the skills necessary to overcome the effects of abuse and hopefully break the abuse cyle 

2. establish broad based prevention programs which will; 
a. develop skills in children to protect them from abuse 
b. prevent children from becoming abusive parents 
c. educate the community 

In order to accomplish any of these or any other programs and 
services the Division must have the necessary resources. 

New Jersey PTA is very encouraged by the new more appropriate 
direction instituted by the new management team of DYFS. We 
advocated for many years for the adoption of such a community based, 
unified services approach for the Division believing that DYFS 
must reach out into the community in order to successfully fulfill 
its mission. we are optimistic that the new philosophy will 
result in positive cooperation between the Division and the 
community it serves to address the needs of children and families. 

: I '} 
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DYFS and New Jersey PTA are currently working together to develop 
materials and programs about child and sexual abuse for distri
bution and presentation to parents through PTA's. This important 
cooperative project will reach into the community at large to 

develop an awareness and better understanding ofa 
1. child and sexual abuse 

2. ways of identifying abused children, abusive families 
and at risk families 

J. how to report suspected child abuse 
4. DYFS as the community resource; its purpose and function 
5. what happens after an abuse report 
6. importance of community in addressing problem of child 

and sexual abuse and neglect 

7. current community resources 
8. needed community resources 

We are convinced that in order to reduce the incidence of abuse 
it is necessary to work in and with the community as a whole. 

Clearly child and sexual abuse and neglect are major problems

an epidemic-in New Jersey communities today. Government alone 
does not have the resources to remediate this epidemic. Govern-

ment and its agencies must forge a partnership with the comunity 
- it serves in order to successfully address the enormous social 

problems endemic to todays society. This project and projects like 
it are critically important if the community is to be educated 

to its responsibility for and ability to address its problems. 

In conclusion, we believe that the Division of Youth and Family 
Services cannot fulfill its mandate without additional resources. 

Clearly the problem of abuse and neglect has not disapated. 
What has been done historically has not been adequate to stem 

the rise of abuse and neglect let alone reduce it. New Jersey 
PTA urges the legislature to respect the request by the Depart

ment of Human Services as a responsible ·administrative evaluation 
of organizational need in the best interest of the at risk children 

and families of New Jersey. 

t.µ-f- ...._, 
•. r-
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NEW JERSEY 
COALITION FOR 
BATTERED WOMEN 
206 West State Street 
Trenton, N.J. 08608 
Telephone: (609) 695-1758 

Serving Victims of Domestic Violence 

The Problem of Family Violence is one which affects us all 
in one way or another. If not in your nuclear family most of us 
know someone at work, in our neighborhoods, or in our extended 
family who is suffering due to violence in the family. Call it 
child abuse, incest, spousal abuse or elderly abuse, the bottom 
li-ne is the same for programs providing services for. victims-
ending the violence in the home. 

My name is June Weaver. I am the Administrator of the New 
Jersey Coalition for Battered Women. Member programs provide 
services for victims of Family Violence throughout the State. We 
represent the interests of 27 programs providing services for 
Battered Women in New Jersey. These programs provide Shelter, 
Counseling and Advocacy Services, Hotline, Information and Refer
ral and Batterer's Counseling. 

Over the past decade services for Battered Women have grown 
from a grass roots program operated out of a private individual's 
home in Bergen County to the current levels of including 13 
current Shelters, 2 Shelter programs to be opened in the next 
several months, 8 counseling, advocacy, information and refferal 
programs and 8 batterers services. 

All of these programs are contracted through the Division of 
Youth and Family Services to provide these Services. While the 
DYFS has historically r.ecognized the connection of child abuse 
and spousal abuse by funding these programs, it is only in the 
past two years that the extent of connection has begun to be 
address by the State. 

Two years ago Division of Youth and Family Services 
Managemen~ Team representatives requested a meeting with all the 
programs through the New Jersey Coalition for Battered Women, 
founded by program representatives in 1977 to address common 
statewide concerns on a joint basis. 

Through the work of this management team programs serving 
Battered Women in this state provide Shelter for more and more 
families each year. In 1982, programs provided Shelter for 4,142 
New Jersey residents; in 1983, 5,139 individuals were sheltered; 
and for the first eight months of this year almost 3,000 women 
and children left their homes because of the violence in their 
lives. Other services offered by battered women's programs have 
provided counseling, information and ref err al and advocacy ser
vices for almost 40,000 additional families over the past three 
years. 

i+-L" 



Anyone working with Battered Women quickly recognizes that battering spouses frequently also physically abuse children in the family. Of the number of children sheltered by Battered Women's Shelters approximately one third have been victimized by physical abuse or incest as well as their mother. It is the position of the New Jersey Coalition for Battered Women that every child of a battered woman is victimized by the abuse if not physically, certainly psychologically and emotionally. Last year according to New Jersey's Uniform Crime Report 55% of the 24,477 Domestic Violence Spouse Abuse Offenses reported involved children or had children present during the violence. 

Because of this clear relationship it is important that services for Battered Women also include services for their children. Through the close partnership that the Division of Youth and Family Services Management Team has built with programs serving Battered Women, this administration for the first time has identified and begun.to address the fact that many of the families served by Battered Women's Programs are also families working with DYFS because of child abuse. Because of the proximity of these families when they are in a Shelter program and to coordinate the counseling offered it is vital that a working relationship between programs and local DYFS case workers be developed. 

Because of initiatives of the DYFS Management Team and the Commisioner of Human Services, the need to address this joint population as well as the overall problem of Family Violence, including child abuse, spouse abuse and elderly abuse was identified in New Jersey long before last months Attorney General's National Task Force on Family Violence Report was issued. 

Currently plans for joint training between DYFS staff and Battered womens program staff is being coordinated. The Coalition has been funded to work on gathering more precise statewide statistics, to develop a resource center on family violence and to educate the community about this complex problem. Last year DYFS sponsored the first statewide forum for discussion between program representatives and district and regional DYFS staff. The resulting plan, DOMESTIC VIOLENCE: PROTECTION, SUPPORT PREVENTION, A DRAFT PLAN FOR POLICY AND PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT is in the forefront nationally asa DEMONSTRATED formalized commitment to working towards homeby working with Battered Womens Programs and child abuse case workers. 

In making this commitment, I believe the DYFS Management Team is attempting to prevent duplication of services while at the same time provide services to child abuse victims which it is mandated to provide. Properly coordinated Battered Womens Programs can help alleviate the case load of DYFS staff. In working with the whole family violence problem which frequently includes spousal abuse we have a better chance toward acheiving the ultimate goal of ending violence in the lives of families in New Jersey. 
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N.J. Assembly Legislative Oversight Committee 
Beverly Gilbert 
10/22/84 

As a private provider agency working with victims of domestic violence I would 
like to add our agency's support of the DYFS service principles outlined in the mission 
statement; service principles that emphasize the preservation of families through 
a unified system responsive to the individual and to the col'lITlunity needs as identified 
by that community. In addition we particularly support the need for additional case 
workers and the continuation of the management team's efforts to address the needs 
of families victimized by abuse, neglect and exploitation. 

In Atlantic County We have long recognized the connection between domestic 
violence and child abuse/neglect. We have a long history of co-case management 
with our local District Office and experience the same frustrations in dealing with 
these cases as they do; lack of time, lack of resources and lack of case workers to 
address the needs of our mutual clients in breaking the cycle of abuse-neglect that 
so often perpetuates itself from generation to generation. 

From 1982 to 1983 our program experienced an 8% increase in requests for service. 
In the first half of 1984 the trend indicates a 29% increase. In August alone we 
received 40 requests for counseling appointments-:--twice as many as usual. And 
these requests are no longer limited to "specific" issues of domestic violence. 
More and more they tend to be women who were sexually abused as children or mothers 
who are seeking counseling because they've just discovered their own children are 
victims of sexual abuse. In some cases shelter has been provided at the request of 
the courts.and/or DYFS for these families. 

In the District Office in Atlantic County the increase in cases reported (1983) 
has risen 13.8% since 1982 and continues to hold for 1984. They too have experienced 
a significant rise in the number of reports of child sexual abuse in addition to the 
increase of reported abuse/neglect cases for 1984. Approximate figures for August/ 
September indicate a rise from 180 referrals (303 children) to 257 referrals (378 
children) from one month to another. There are approximately 1200 children presently 
under supervision in Atlantic County with an approximate average case load of 51 children 
per case worker, and there is no indication that either referrals or requests for service 
are going to do anything but increase in the months ahead. There is an increasingly 
apparent need for an increase in the number of both case workers and support staff as 
well as a need to streamline the process of rehiring case workers lost through normal 
staff turnover. The cumbersome process of hiring or rehiring case worker slots already 
allocated exacerbates the problems of case management when already overloaded staff 
are required to take on additional cases due to a "temporary'' reduction in staff. 

Beyond the need for additional case workers is the need to continue the efforts 
begun two years ago to unify the service delivery system in addressing the needs of 
abuse/neglect victims. Additional case workers may solve half the problem, but 
without community resources to address the problems, without community planning and 
community support the victim continues to become lost in the system. The Department 
of Human Services-DYFS has made a committment to the protection of vulnerable individuals, 
to the preservation of the family and to the community as the resource most capable 
of identifying, planning and providing solutions. The shift in thinking has not been easy. 
At the local level we still struggle with many issues and we have much more work to do. 
But the committment of the Department as exemplified by the Management team is apparent. 
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As a private provider agency struggling with the ins and outs of the bureaucracy • six years and consistently frustrated by the seeming lack of response at the state rel fur four of those six years I have to say that finally it seems that the .ority of this agency and of the Department-the clients-are the same. And though :now that this has always been so-its nice to feel it for a change. The Department Human Services, DYFS, and the management team have demonstrated a clear and 1sistent committment to victims, families and communities, a committment not taken ;htly by any of us working in social services. I support their recommendations. 

Thank you, 

.··3~> 
~ 

\.G~ 
Beverly I. Gilbert 
Executive Director, Atlantic County Women's Center Vice President, NJCBW 
Member, ACHSAC 

SRHSAC 
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The Association for Advancement of the Mentally Handicapped welcomes this opportunity to submit testimony concerning the Division of Youth and Family Services' request for additional funding in order to hire additional caseworkers. 

The need for additional field personnel has been well documented by others. Your committee and most witnesses, AAMH included, seem to be in agreement as to the very real need for additional caseworkers. However, several of the problems raised at the hearings will not be resolved by simply throwing additional workers at them. 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. Workers should be carefully screened prior to hiring and once employed, must be oriented to the Division's goals and objectives. 
2. Training prior to dealing with clients must be thorough, particularly for those who will be conducting investigations of alleged abuse and/or neglect. Periodic training should also be required at least on an annual basis. 
3. Support services must be provided for all workers. Transportation, clerical and secretarial services should be appropriate to the workers's needs. If these supports are.not readily available, the mere addition of caseworkers will not alleviate the problems confronting clients. 
4. Needed community based services must be developed and maintained. Without the expansion of service programs, the addition of more workers will do little in providing for client's needs. 
5. The uses of paraprofessionals should be more thoroughly explored. 

6. Caseload size should be carefully evaluated. Caseload is not synonymous with workload. A worker could conceivably have a full workload with five children at great risk. Conversely, if forty cases required nothing more than a token visit, such a load would not entail an overload .. The quality of performance of the worker can and should be assessed. 
SUMMARY: 
The addition of social workers is needed but would only partially, address the issues raised. Support services should be added to enable caseworkers to perform their assigned tasks. More training is needed. Most important, if the Division is to fulfill its mission, additional-community based services must be secured so that the Division and its workers have the resources available to address the needs of their clients. 




